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Performance
How are we doing against
our strategic objectives?

2010 strategic
objectives

Progress against
2010 strategic
objectives

Key performance
indicators

Accelerating
the growth of
our Contractual
Services
business

In 2010 our Group contract base grew

by 9 3 per cent in constant cumency,
evidence that in a difficutt economic
ermvironment, customers continue to turn

to Computacenter for contracted services,

to reduce cost and ensure a high quality
of sernce delivery

Increase contract base in constant
currency £m

+9.3%

Reducing

cost through
increased
efficiency and
industrialisation
of our service
operations

We continue to iInvest and denve value from
the Shared Services Factory ('SSF’), our
ndustnalised’ approach, which helps to
standardise customer engagement, serice
offenngs and also reduce the cost of
service delivery This Includes iInvestments
we have made in our offshore senice
delivery capability, 1o take advantage of

the lower costs avallable, such as in South
Afnca In addibon, we have made significant
nvestments in ndustry leading tools,

which enable us to prowde an enhanced
service at lower cost in areas such as major
Incident management and the remote
management of datacenter infrastructure

Increase revenue per services head
£'000/head

+3.0%




Maximising the
return on working
capital and freeing
working capital
where not
optimally used

In November 2009, we sold the remaining
part of our trade distnbution business

This, combined with the use of enhanced
procurement tools for purchasing from

the distnbution marketplace, has enabled
a working capital inflow of £21 milion for
the Group, despite a revenue nCrease

of 6 9 per cent Overall net cash, pnor

to Customer Specific Finance (‘{CSF?,
improved from £86 4 milion at the end of
2008, to £139 4 milion at the end of 2010,
a mapor mprovement from the net debt
pogtion of £16 2 millon at the end of 2007

Increase adjusted operating
cash flow £m

-21.6%

Growing our profit
margin through
increased services
and high-end
product sales

Overall, 2010 Group revenue Increased by
6 9 per cent, whilst adjusted profit before
tax increased by 21 8 per cent This reflects
the success achieved through the sale of
the trade distnbution business, the growth
in higher margin sales to large organisatons
and growth in services revenues of 6 5

per cert — combined with virtually static
sefing, general and administration costs
This resulted in EBIT to net revenue (overall
revenue less the cost of product for resale)
ncreasing from 6 0 per cent 1N 2009 to

6 6 per centin 2010

Increase EBIT as a percentage
of net revenue*

+0.6pts

* EBIT to net revenue % 13 defined as acfusted operating profit as a percentage of net revanue
Computacenter defines net revenue as turnover less the cost of product for re-sale recognised as an expense

Ensuring the
successful
implementation

of the Group-wide
ERP system

The Group-wide ERP system is an
extensive IT mplementation, as well as a
significant business process change The
systermn covers virtually all of our operating
actvities with entirely new resource
scheduling, call logging and maintenance
systems that are at the heart of our
business In additon, as we are managing
the Group-wide mplementaton, we have
had substantial internal discussion to agree
the alignment of Group-wide processes, In
crder to dnve maamum efficiency and cost
reduction across the Group

We are pleased to report that Germany,

the first country to go ‘Iive’ on this system
at the end of January 2011, has been
implemented without matenal disruption to
the German business The UK 1s scheduled
to follow dunng the third quarter, with
France in 2012

Delivery against the implementation plan




Welcome
to our joumey

Who we are

Computacenter is a leading IT infrastructure services provider.
We add value to our customers by advising on IT strategy,
deploying appropriate technologies, and managing elements
of their infrastructures on their behalf.

Our journey

We are on a journey to become Europe’s best IT company. We
will achieve this objective by constantly delivering IT services
and solutions that enable our customers to achieve their goals.

Our strategy

Our strategy is to deliver long-term earnings growth. To help
measure our success, we have five key strategic initiatives
against which to benchmark our performance (see over page).




Highlights

of the year

Revenue £bn

+6.9%

Diluted eamings per share p

+19.1%

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Underlying performance
* Ongoing” revenues increased 10 7 per
cent to £2 68 bilkon (2009 £2 42 billion)

» Adjusted” profit before tax increased
21 8 per cent to £66 1 million (2009
£54 2 milion)

» Adusted® diluted earnings per share
(‘EPS’) ncreased 19 1 per cent to
33 0 pence {2009 27 7 pence)

* Total dividend for 2010 of 13 2 pence
per share (2009 11 0 pence)

s Net cash pnor to customer specific
financing (CSF’) was £139 4 millicn
(2009 £86 4 milhon)

Statutory performance
* Group revenues Increased 6 9 per cent
to £2 68 billion (2009 £2 50 bilion)

* Profit before tax increased 35 1 per cent
to £65 4 million (2009 £48 4 million)

* Diluted EPS increased by 30 9 per cent
10 32 6 pence (2009 24 9 pence)

¢ Net cash after CSF of £111 0 milion
(2009 £37 3 million)

Adjusted* operating profit £m

+19.5%

Total dividend per share p

+20.0%

OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

* Revenues improved significantly in all
our major geographies

* Ongoing” Group product revenue grew
markedly, up 12 5 per cent (14 7 per
cent in constant currency) as a result of
strong customer demand for upgraded
and improved IT infrastructure

» Cur Group annual services contract
base grew over 7 1 per cent (9 3 per
cent in constant curency) to £539 4
million (2009 £503 6 million) in excess
of market growth predictions®

* Qur Group-wide ERP project remains
on track with a successful migration
onto the new platform in Germany

* On 15 February 2011 we announced,
subject to the approval of the French
Competition Board, our agreement to
acqure Top Info for an inibial debt free
cash consideration of €21 miltion

¢ Launch of C*Mal, the first in a surte
of cloud-based offenngs

* Adusted profit before tax and EPS s stated pnor to amortsabon of acqured intangibies and excepbonal terns
Adusted operatng profit 5 also stated after chargng finance oosts on CSF

# Source Gartner

A Ongong revenues exchude revenues from the disposed Trade Distbution busness
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Group overview
A European business
transacting across the world

Region % of Group revenue Financial ighlights
United Kingdom 470 Revenue
/o £1,265.4m
Adjusted* operating profit

£43.3m
German o Revenue
’ 38% £1,005.8m

Adjusted* operating profit

£20.5m
rrenes 13% Régggﬁm

Operating profit

+£1.0m

Benelux 20 /O Revenue

£45.6m

Operating loss

-£0.4m
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Group revenue by region

1 United Kingdom 47%
2 Germany 38%
3. France 13%
4. Benelux 2%
2010 highlights

= Revenues, excluding trade distribution,
by 10 8 per cent n 2010 to £1 27 biion
(2009 £1 14 biiory)
* Adusted” operating profit n the UK increased by
14 5 per cent to £43 3 milfon 2003 £37 8 miion)
= Services revenue grew by 13 8 per cent 10 £380 5
mifion (2008 £334 O miion) = services revenies
for the total UK rmarket decined by 0 1% n 2010
» RDC revenues ncreased by 30 3% to £38 2 mifion
(2009 £29.3 mifion), profits grew by 30 9 per cent

s Adusted” operatng profit for the year grew by
8 8 per cant to €23 9 miion (2008 €22 0 milior)

» Reverue ncreased by 12 2 per cent to €1,173 1 mision
(2009 €1 045 1 milon) and by 6.2 per cant, excluding
the becom busness acqured in 2009

¢ Serwoes contract base grew by 8 7 per cant to
€290 0 milion (2009 €266 8 milion) matenally
autperformng the Genmman mearket™

* The ntegrated becorn busness has started to
deliver real value especialy within the datacenter
product busmess

* Operating profit of €1.2 milion (2009 operabing loss
€3 1 milior), flattered by €1 0 miion compared o
2009, by a change n dassficabon of certan French
tax expenses

¢ Strong reverue growth n‘ata\dyompa'fcmlngﬂ’le
French market™, reported revenue
169 per cent to €419 4 miion (2009 63587mion)

* Product revenue graw by 19 7 per cent, senvces
revenue graw at 4 6 per cent

* Proposed acqusion of Top info, subject to approvd
by the French Competion Authonty 1s anticpated io
defiver further reverue enhancernent N 2011

= Adustad oparating loss of €0 46 milion n 2010
(2008 loss of €0 85 mifiion)
* Syonvficantly ncreased revenue up by 81 per cent
0 €53.2 millon 2000 €29 4 milion)
* ngatedlheumrbargmnmmom
Gearman orgaresabon, effective fom 1 January 2011

Contract wins

Extended exsting desktop managed services
agreements with AEGON and OB10

Signed a five-year contract with Wartrose prowding
harcware support to 268 stores, covermyg glectronc port
of sale sequmpment back office [T and network devces
£10 mifion nfrastructure management outsourcing
contract agreed with Gatwick Aipart, scopa includes
managng two datacenters at the arport, dong with
26 cnbcal [T noda rooms

A large global fnanaial nstitution selected
Computacerter as the sole supplier of cabling
installaton services to its new EMEA locations

Sugred a theeeryear €3 millon framework agreerment
with Dataport for the supply and deployment of Cisco
datacenter hardware and rdated servces consultation
work and mantenance

Volkswagen commissioned Computaceniter Gemmary
to mplernent its Windows 7/0ffice 2010 strategy
Urion [T Senvoes GrnbH renewed an esasting
outsowang contract untl 2017

The Franch Anmiy an exasing customer, awanded

Agread a three-year global software icensing contract
with EDF

Awarded a €10 2 miflon datacanter progect by a
wrreless technology provider as wel as a icensng
contract with a market leader in the field of local search
and advertising — valued at area €12 milion

VOIP prosect, worth €0 14 millon for the Red Cross
Randers, and a €0 12 miion MS Systern Center
praject for De Lin, & regonal pubiic ransport provoer
A datacenter technology related contract, for storage
mplementancn, vaued at €0 23 miion, awarded by
Pertar Europe ~ a leading provder of water solutons
and related tachrecal products

Group revenue by business type

1 Workplace 23%
Deskiop, laptop, moritor,
pnnters, penpherals and consurmables

2, Datacenter & Networking 29%
Intel and Unix senvers, storage,
networking and secunty

3 Software product 13%

4 Professional services 8%
Professional services delivered

by Compurtacenter

5. Support and managed services 2%
Support and managed services
delvered by Computacenter

6 Third party services 5%
Third party resold senices

Revenue by business types

1 Workplace 21%
2 Datacenter &

Networking 29%
3 Softwars product 15%
4 Professional services 8%
& Support and managed

senvces 23%
6 Thud party serices 4%

1 Warplace 17%

3%
3 Soitwars product 9%
4 Professiond services 7%
5 Suppot and managed

6 Thod party services 7%

1 Workpilace 43%
2 Datacenter &
Networking 17%

3 Soiftware product 19%
4 Professiona seraces 6%
5 Support and rmanaged

6 Thed party services 4%

1 Worlplaca 28%
2 Datacenter &

Networkng 34%
3 Software product 10%
4 Professona services 5%
5 Support and managed

senices 19%
6 Thad party sevoes 4%

* Adiusted operating profit 1s stated pnor to amortisabion of acquared nitangibies: exceptional terms and finance costs on CSF

“Based on Gartner figures

Computacenter plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010 3

Mandisw

Riiemnaca raviow:

farmamanca

Finanral aetatamante



Chairman’s statement

In 2011, we will continue to invest in our infrastructure, our talents and skills,
as well as enhancing our customers’ experience.

2010 was another year of strong
progress for our Company. Adjusted*
profit before tax once more grew by
mora than 20 per cent. It 1s worth noting
that Computacenter has delivered
greater than 20 per cent compound
annual growth in eamings per share
over the last four years. We ganed
market share and grew our services
revenues by 6.5 per cent. The German
business showed great resilience in
recavenng from a poor first quarter,
and our French business became
profitable agan. We are pleased with
this performance, not least because it
came as a result of the execution of our
strategy, rather than simply as a result
of an improving economic backdrop.

If 2009 was about cost and expenss
reduction and simplifying our structure,

then 2010 showed disciplined sales and
senice delvery Pleasing as it was, this only
oonfims that we have the opportunity to do
much more in growing share N our chosen
markets and improving our profitability in a
sustanable way

In 2011 we wil continue to invest n our
infrastructure, our talents and skills as well
as enhancing our customers’ expenence
Wa are on course to successfully mplernent
a sngle Group-wide ERP systemn, the

rmaor benefits of which will not manifest
themselves uritl 2012 and beyond Our
efforts to ‘Industnalise’ our senices are
aready showing margin mprovement

and better customer satisfacton and are

4 Computacenter plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010

designed to create long-tenm competiive
advantage The services contract base upon
which these mprovements operate grew by
more than seven per cent in 2010 and the
benefits will Increase as tme passes We

will continue cur refentless focus on cost

and expense management whils supporting
these significant investments

This year marks the 30th anriversary of the
founding of Computacenter Since then
the Company has grown considerably

N sze and this evolubon has required
Computacenter to adapt to the ever
changing legislatve environment We have
In place a governance framework, aligned
to the pnneiples of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, not smply because
we must do so, but rather because itis the
nght thing to do In this regard, | draw your
attention to pages 30 to 34 of this report
and gve you my commiment to uphold
the ments of the Code, as it applies to
Computacenter

I thank all of our employees for thar efforts
and our customers for ther business

We have much to do in 2011, on our joumey
of continuous improvermnent, to achieve

our potential

Greg Lock
Chairman “Adusted profit before tax and EPS s stated pnor to

amortisation of acquired ntangibles and exceptional items




Operating review

Computacenter has again delivered a strong profit performance in 2010.
This leaves us confident that Computacenter continues to meet the IT
investment needs of our customers and is evidence that our customers
rely on Computacenter to help them in reducing their operating costs,

over the longer term.

Computacenter has again delivered

a strong profit performance in 2010.
Group adjusted* profit before tax grew
by 21.8 per cent to £66.1 million (2009:
£54.2 million). The Group’s adjusted*
diluted earnings per share (‘EPS’)
grew by 19.1 per cent to 33.0 pence
(2009: 27.7 pence), pnmanly due to
this increase in profitability. We have
delivered in excess of 20 per cent
compound annual EPS growth over
the last four years.

On a statutory basis, taking into account
amortisation of acquired intangibles and
exceptional tems, Group profit before tax
increased by 35 1 per cent to £65 4 million
{2009 £48 4 millor) and diuted EPS
increased by 30 9 per cent to 32 6 pence
(2009 24 9 pence)

Croup revenue, as reported, ncreased

in 2010 by 6 9 per cent to £2 68 hilion
(2009 £2 50 bitior) After the significant
product revenue decline expenenced In
2009, dunng 2010 customers embarked on
refreshing, upgrading and improving ther
Minfrastructures  This resutted in strong
Group product revente growth of 12 5 per
cent or 14 7 per cent m constant curency,
excluding the effect of the CCD disposal
towards the end of 2009, but including the
acquisiions made fate in 2002 This growth
was achreved steadily over the year as
awhole and we also believe that, subject to
performance of the overall macroeconomic
conditions, growth should continueg

dunng 2011

Group senvices revenue, as reported,
increased by 6 5 per cent and 8 7 per cent
in constant currency Different to the product
revenue growth, the services revenue
growth was achieved, as expected, largely
durng the second half of 2010 Particularly
pleasing, as this is fundamental to the long-
term success of Computacenter, 1s that the
annual services contract base at December
2010, has increased by 7 1 per centon the
services contract base level at December
2009 and 9 3 per cent in constant currency
This Isaves us confident that Computacenter
continues to meet the T Investment needs
of our customers and 15 evidence that our
customers rely on Computacenter to help
them in reducing ther operating costs, over
the longer term The Group annual services
contract base stood at £539 4 millon at the
end of the year (2009 £503 6 milion)

In 2009, we reduced operating expenses
('SG&A) by over £30 million in constant
currency and the increase ganed in
operational leverage has in no small way
contributed to these encouraging resutts
Furthermore, the early indication of improving
corporate capital expendrture, first detected
some 12 months ago, has persisted, to
the extent that we have now gained a high
level of confidence that Computacenter’s
progress is sustanable and not of a
short-term nature The Group ncumred no
exceptonal costs dunng 2010 and this
should, in all likelihcod, continue untll the
ERP benefits start being reaised
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Operating review continued

Our balance sheet has further strengthened
considerably At the end of the year, net
cash pnor to Customer Specific Financing
(‘CSF?) was £139 4 mion (2009 net cash of
£86 4 milion) Including CSF, net funds were
£111 Omilton 2009 £37 3 million) This
matenal improvement In our cash position
was pnmanly due to increased profitabiity
and prudent working caprtal management,
which we believe is largely sustainable
However, the figures are flatterad by
approximately £38 millon 2009 £30 million}
with the continuation of extended credit
terms from one of our major vendors, which
have been made avalable to all of therr
business partners These terms could return
to normal in the second half of 2011

The Board has decided to recommend a
final dvdend of 9 7 pencs, banging the
total dmvidend pand for 2010 to 13 2 pence,
representing a 20 per cent increase on the
2009 total dndend pad of 11 0 pence The
ncrease in dividend 1s broadly conaistent
with our stated policy of mantairing
dvidend cover within our target range of
2102 5tmes Subject to the approval by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
{AGM’) on 13 May 2011, the proposed
divdend will be pad on 10 June 2011

to shargholders on the regrster as at

13 May 2011

Our offenngs continue to gain mormerntum

in the market, as customers chooss

to outsource [T infrastructure support
selectively, rather than opting for a
comprehensive IT outsourcing contract or
undertaking the work n-house  Service desk
offshonng remains an attractive offenng and
we continue to Invest In the expansion of this
resource We currently employ in excess of
750 staff, outside of the UK, Germany and
France, pnmanly within our mult-language
service desk in Barcelona and for an English
speaking desk in Cape Town Thease facibes
are making significant contnbubions towards
fueling the growth in confractual services,
through addressing the ncreased demand
from customers for global and mutt-lingual
service delvery

6 Computacenter plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010

Over the last two years, we have done much
to identify those Computacenter offenngs,
where we have competitive advantage

and for which there 1s market appetite We
believe that this 1Is whers our future success
lies and our focus 1s on repeating delivery of
these offenngs, in an efficient and high quality
manner We are investing into tools and
processes, which support repetitive delivery
of these services, whilst ensunng efficiency
and qualty

As the infrastructure demands of our
customers grow, so ther appetrte for
increased efficiency solutions has also
grown This has been the dmang force
behind the notable interest in cloud related
services Computacenter has responded
with the recent launch of C*Mail, the first in
a surte of dloud-based offenngs

We mantaned good progress in prepanng
for our Group ERP implementation During
the first week of February 2011, the Release
1 rmugrabon onte the new platform in
Germany was delivered, without matenal
disruption However, the remainder of 2011
will be important, as migration of the UK
systemm is scheduled to follow dunng the
third quarter The Release 1 migration has
signficantly reduced implementation nisk,
as the lessons we have leamt will assist
during the subsequent migrations As our
people become familiar with the system,
the benefits related to a single Group-wide
systern will start to matenalise Dus to the
commencement of the ERP depreciabon,
we will ncur an incremental charge of

£3 rruflion in 2011

We did not make any acquisthons dunng
2010, but on 15 February 2011, we
announced that our French business had
agreed to acquire Top Info, subject to the
approval of the French Competihon Board
Top Info will be acquired for an inttial debt
free cash consideration of €21 millicn, with

a further €1 millon payable, subject to

the financial performance of the Top Info
business N the penod to end December
2011 Afurther arca €15 milion will be paid
on the dosing date, for the cash on Top
Info's balance sheet at that tme  We believe
that Top Info's attractive customer portfolio in
Frarce will provide our French business with
new opportunties to deploy its services and
infrastructure solubions further, whilst at the
same time, strengthening its presence withuin
the [T infrastructure supply market to large
French corporatons and the Government




Computacenter helps Morrisons

iIncrease competitive advantage
with optimised IT

“Computacenter helps us
optimise our IT systems
and services so we can
respond more effectively
to demand from our
customers. With its
industnalised processes
and broad skills base, it
has also helped us make
financial savings.”

Gary Barr,
IT Director,
Momsons Plc

Customer challenge

To retain its position as the UK's fourth largest retaller, Momsons
must ensure its 439 stores, 15 distribution sites and 16
warehouses are supported by highly avalable [T systems. In
particular, the retaller's 131,000 employees need continuous
access to the Intemet, email and other desktop-based services
The retailer also needs 1o ensure store shelves remain well
stocked by enabling rapid product picking at ts warehouses

Computacenter solution

We have helped Momsons transform its [T infrastructure,
resutting in reduced cost and complexity. From designing

a new email platform and iImplementing a virtual desktop
environment to deploying mini datacenters to suppott a new
warehouse solution, Computacenter has assisted with a wide
range of IT projects. We also provide ‘cradle to grave’ desktop
services, including procurement, configuration, maintenance
and disposal

Results

Momsons' staff now have faster and more reliable access to
the technologies they need. For example, new desktops can
now be provisioned in five days instead of four weeks This,
along with improved email avallability, has increased staff
productivity resulting in greater competitive advantage The
retailer has also been able to reduce desktop support costs
and power consumption
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Operating review continued

Helping Severn Trent Water to cut
costs and boost efficiency with flexible
working initiative

“The IT transformation
has enabled a step
change in our working
practices. By embracing
new technologies we can
also improve the quality
and delivery of customer
services, which supports
the company’s goal of
highest standards, lowest
charges and great people
- in other words ‘being
the best’.”

Myron Hrycyk,
Chief Information Officer,

Severn Trent Water

8 Computacenter plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010

Customer challenge

Severn Trent Water has embarked on a ground-breaking T
project that will enable it to adopt flexible working practices -
Increasing staff productivity and reducing costs The project is
part of the company’s business transformation programme,
which i1s designed 1o turn t nto the best water company in
the UK, with the lowest charges, highest standards and

great people.

Computacenter solution

The [T transformation extends from the datacenter to the
desktop and includes new solutions for back-up, secunty,
storage, networking and [T management, as well as Microsoft
Windows 7 The new operating system will support a Crtnx
virtual desktop infrastructure that will enable Severn Trent
Water to support home working and desk-sharing — this 1s
crucial as the company’s new office and wider accommaodation
programme is designed around a mobile workforce.

Results

By standardising, consolidating and virtualising its infrastructure,
Severn Trent will be able to reduce the total cost of ownership
of IT and create a more predictable expenditure profile It will
also be able to provide a better user experience by equipping
staff with the latest productivity tools and ensuring reliable
access to critical applications, such as the company’s recently
implemented SAP Enterpnse Resource Planning system.




UK

Revenue

£1,265.4m

Adjusted* operating profit

£43.3m

Excluding the effect of the ext of trade
distnbution in 2009, UK revenues improved
by 10 8 per cent n 2010, to £1 27 bilion
(2002 £1 14 bilion} This Increase was
delivered by healthy revenue growth in both
the product and services businesses and
was largely atinbutable tc the continuing
and increasing capital expendrture of our
customers The rate of this increase in
revenue was broadly consistent over the
year, without a significant revenue spike in
the fourth quarter and no cbvious Increased
demand drven by the VAT rate change, but
certanty in thes regard 1s impossible

Computacenter UK’s services revenue grew by
13.9 per cent to £380.5 million (2009: £334.0 million).

Adjusted” operating profit In the UK
ncreased by 14 5 percentto £43 3
milion 2009 £37 8 milbon) This profit
growth flowed from the strong increase in
revenues, as well as some services margin
improvement We also continue to enjoy
leverage from the cost savings made

n 2009

SG&A In 2010 increased by £3 0 millon,
from the significantly reduced base n 2009
This increass was largely due to nvestrment
into our Services capability, amed at
improving our delivery and as would be
expected, higher commissions were also
eamed by our sales teams dunng the year

Computacenter UK's services revenue grew
by 13 9 per cent to £380 5 milion (2009
£334 0 milion), whereas services revenues
for the total UK market declined by 0 1

per cent n 2010, according to Gartner
figures Revenue performance in contractual
services was encouraging, as antcipated,
accelerating towards the end of the year

as new contract wins became active
Particularly pleasing was the increase in the
contractual services base, as it serves as an
encouraging lead indicator for this business’
reveniue Into 2011 and beyond A clear
indication of the retum of capital expenditure
into the market can, n part, be seenin

the strong revenue growth achieved in the
Professional Services Business

Together with growing the contract base,
our focus on retaning and 1deally, expanding
our actvibes with existing customers, 1s

also delivenng success For example, we
extended our desktop managed services
agreement with AEGON — to whom we've
been prowding T support for over 10 years,
with a continued end-to-end infrastructure
outsource worth over £12 million for a further
five years untl October 2015 We have also
renewed our relationship with OB10, the
global e-Invoicing company, for a further
five years The scope of this contract,

worth £6 millon, has been expanded to
incorporate our muth-site datacenter offenng

We were also successiul In winning a number
of new services contracts We signed a

new five-year, £10 milion infrastructure
management outsourcing confract with
Gatwick Arport The scope of work includes
managing two datacenters at the arport,
along with 26 cntical IT node rooms

The Infrastructure will be monitored and
managed inially, from our facilty in Hatfield
and in the future, from Cape Town, with an
onsite support presence at the arport The
arport operator will have access to scalable
and agle support models, as well as our
offshore capability and in the future, access
to ‘utity’ based computer provisioning

Wartrose, the leading high strest retailer,
awarded us a five-year support contract
Under the agreement, Computacenter will
provice hardware support to 269 stores,
coverng electronic point of sale equipment,
as well as back office IT and network
devices The service will ensure availabilty
of cntical devices and also deliver increased
efficiency for Warrose

RDC, our subsidtary which provides its
customers with secure and environmentally
appropnate solutions to therr end-of-life

IT equpment, once again delivered
exceptional performance, with overall
revenue up by 30 3 per cent to nearty

£38 2 milion (2009 £23 3 millon), while
profits grew by 30 9 per cent

To an increasing extent, [T nfrastructure
refreshes require physical cabling solutions,
pnor and dunng proects This 1s evidenced
by the 73 per cent Increase In contnbution
of our cabling business on the pravious
year Alarge giobal financial nstitution is
due to relocate a large number of ts current
premises across Europe, the Middle East
and Afnca { EMEA") and Computacenter's
cabling team has been selected as the sole
suppter of cabling nstallaton senvices to all
the new EMEA locations

Throughout 2010, Computacenter UK has
continued to win and deliver more critical
contracts, enabling our customers to operate
a resilent iInfrastructure and to reduce therr
operating costs These contracts Increase
the opportunty of retaining such customers
over the longer term
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Operating review continued

Germany

Revenue

£1,005.8m

Adjusted” operating profit

£20.5m

In Germany, overall adusted* operating

profit for the year, grew by 8 8 per cent to
€23 3 milion (2009 €22 0 milion) This result
represents a strong recovery from the slow
start to the year, when adjusted operating
profit declined by 46 7 per cent, compared
to the 2009 first half resutt

2010 can be viewed as a year of two halves
The expiry of some larger contracts at the
end of 2009, as well as general hestancy

in the market for caprtal expenditure,
resuited in reduced services revenue In

the first half of 2010, although there were
early signs of recovery towards the end of
this penod Market confidence improved
substantially in the second half of the year,
with [T infrastructure investment into both
services and products accelerating towards
the end of the year, with a particularty strong
revenue performance in December 2010
For the year as a whole, in focal currency
and including the acquired becom business,
revenue Increased by 12 2 per cent {o
€1,173 1 millon (2009 €1,045 1 rmullion)
and by 6 2 per cent, excluding the becom
business which was acquired in 2009

Our services contract base grew by 8 7 per
cent to €280 O millon (2009 €266 8 milion)
Both new and existing customers invested
In high-end products combined with our
service offenngs

We signed a three-year framework
agreement, valued at arca €2 million with
Dataport, for the supply and deployment
of Gisco datacenter hardware and related
services, Including consuttation work and
maintenance provision

Inteligent workplace and commurication
soltons also combine our product and
service offenngs  Volkswagen commissioned
Computacenter Germany to mplement

the car manufacturer's Windows 7/Office
2010 strategy The overall project lays the
foundaben for the future workplaces at the
Volkswagen Group, worldwide

Union IT Services GmbH, as the [T services
provider to the financial servwce company
Union Investment, a leading real estate
mvestment manager in Europe for private
and insttutional investors, renewed the
outsourcing contract with Computacenter
Germany, untl 2017 This end-to-end
outsourcing contract has been expanded
to include the mplementatton and operation
of a new and flexable IP telecommunication
centre, as part of ts unified communication
and collaboration solution

Market confidence improved substantially in the
second half of the year, with IT infrastructure
investment into both services and products,
accelerating towards the end of the year, with

a particularly strong revenue performance in
December 2010.

The integrated becom business has started
to deliver real value to Computacenter
Germary’s overall business, especially within
the datacenter product business, which

has seen much healthier actmvty than last
year Additionally, a close relationship with
Microsoft has coninbuted to Computacenter
Germany's recent certification as a Microsoft
Voice Specialist, in addrhion to the exsting
certificaton as a Cisco Master Unified
Communication Speciahist

It 1s the first tme in Germany that

any provider has been awarded both
certifications and our responss to current
market requirements for muth-vendor
commurkcaton solutions has been matenally
enhanced Our overall relabionship with
Cisco continues to grow, culmmating n the
award of ‘Cisco Enterpnse Partner of the
Year-Eurcpe’

Revenue growth in the second half of 2010
was, In part, denved from our reorganisation
actvities in the first six months The
managed services delivery structures were
integrated into a new Managed Service
Factory and the product and services
portfolios were merged These changes
enabled Computacenter Germmany to
maximise its opportuniies on the economic
rebound and even grow In excess of the
Geammnan market n 2010

Wae are pleased with our overall performance
for the year, especially as many of our senior
staff members were focused on the design
and mplementation work for a smooth

ERP system mugration This was achieved

in earty January 2011, an event which will
provide lessons for the rest of the Group's
future migrations
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Computacenter cabling solution boosts
productivity and agility for IKEA

Mannows

“The cabling project had to
be carried out on a busy
building site that was not
yet wind or rainproof, where
dozens of other contractors
were working at the same
time. Computacenter still
managed to ensure that our
infrastructure was ready in
time and to specification.”

Ken Struelens,
IT Manager,
IKEA Belgium

Customer challenge

To provide an exceptional retal expenence at its 301 stores,
IKEA needs to ensure its 123,000 employees have continuous
access to business-critical systems and information. To
safeguard connectivity, IKEA needed to equip ther new head
office with a robust cabling environment and also equip therr
20,000+ m2 flagship store with wireless access points coverng
the complete surface

Computacenter solution

We deployed a flexible and cost-effective structured cabling
environment at IKEA's new Belgian store and office. Thanks
10 our extensive cabling experience, we were able to mitigate
implementation risks and work alongside other contractors
to ensure that the installation was completed on time for the
store opening.

Results

IKEA 15 able to maximise data throughput at its head office and
new store, contnbuting to greater staff productivity and higher
customer service levels The cabling infrastructure has been
scaled to support future growth In users, [T devices and access
ponts, which increases business agllty and faciltates change.
A future-proofed and flexible cabling environment will also help
IKEA avoid capital expenditure.
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Operating review continued

BAA makes cost savings
of more than £1.8 million with
agile virtualised datacenter

“By virtualising our
production systems we
have been able to make a
significant contnbution to
the company’s strategic
goals for IT simplification
and cost reduction while

achieving greater business
agility and IT performance,
which is critical to the

running of BAA’s airports.”

Terry Fusco,
Head of IT,
Heathrow, BAA

Customer challenge

As part of its efforts to reduce operational expendriure, BAA

is currently undergoing an [T simplification programme The
sale of Gatwick Arport highlighted the need for a more flexible
IT infrastructure, BAA decided to virtualise its production
datacenters to meet both its agiity and cost reduction

goals. With all the airport operator’s key services reliant upon
datacenter avallabilty, it was crucial that BAA could minimise
the nsks associated with the project

Computacenter solution

BAA partnered with Computacenter to design, plan and
mplement a new virtual datacenter ('VDC') based on HP and
VMware technologes Computacenter assisted at every stage
of the project — from evaluating BAA's existing datacenter
environment and the best workloads to migrate to the virtual
devices 1o testing and ntegration. The VDC includes in-built
disaster recovery capabilties as well as network virtualisation
to maximise uptime and flexibility

Results

The VDC has enabled BAA to reduce its production environment
by 246 servers, with spare capacity to support future growth.
This has contributed to cost savings of £1 8 million The new
nfrastructure will also reduce carbon emissions by 1,239 tonnes
a year, minimise nsk and enable greater business agility
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France

Revenue

£359.6m

Operating profit

+£1.0m

Computacenter France delivered an
operating profit of €1 2 millon (2009
operating loss €3 1 miion}, flattered to the
extent of €1 O milion, when compared to
2003, by a change n classification of certan
French tax expenses, from administration

expenses In 2009, to income tax expense
n 2010

Wa achisved strong revenue growth,
matenally outperforming the French market,
with reported revenue increasing by 16 9 per
cent to €419 4 millon (2009 €358 7 million)
Although both sennces and product revenue
growth outperformed tharr respective
markats, product revenue grew by an
mpressive 19 7 per cent, whilst senaces
revenue growth was lower, at 4 6 per cent
Services now represent 18 5 per cent (2009
18 4 per cent) of the total business

We achieved strong revenue growth, materially
outperforming the French market, with reported
revenue increasing by 16.9 per cent to €419.4 million

(2009: €358.7 million).

Product growth resulted manly from
increased higher-end enterpnse and
software sales Enterpnse revenue growth
i the year, by 53 per cent, was partly due
to the success In up-scaling our enterpnse
service offenngs The French Ammy, an
exsting custormer, addbonally awarded us
a comprehensive hardware supply contract
to support therr storage consolidation and
virtualisation project, from conception to
roll-out and traning, which supply i1s due
to continue through 2011 There was
further emdence of encouragng growth

in enterpnss sales 1N the product supply
contract win for the virtualised workplace
envircnment of Europ Assistance, a major
international prowder of insurance and
ASSUrance Senvices

Towards the end of 2010, we won a four
year product supply contract with SAE,
the Government Purchaaing Agency led
by the Minister of Finance EDF, a major
energy utiftes company, has also awarded
Computacenter France a three-year
global software Icensing contract with

twe extension optons of one year each

Our services business in 2010 grew at

a slower rate than in 2009 However,

while no significant exsting contracts
were lost dunng 2010, we expenenced

a natural erosion of revenue from older
maintenance contracts and new wins had
not yet started contnbuting revenue  This
resulted In a margin dechine of 0 1 per cent
N local cumency, in contractual serices
Encouraging though was the 15 3 per cent
growth n professional services revenue,
whuch should be a natural consequence of
strong product revenue growth, but which
has not previously been realised in France,
to this extent

SGRA expenses were held flat through
effective controls and external costs were
reduced sufficientty, to allow for investment in
enhancing and up-skiling our salesforce We
rofled out an opportunty management tool
to enhance potential customer engagement
across the Company and we created a sales
specialist tearm to provide technical support
to the salesforce

Additorally, we comprehensively reviewed
the salesforce incentvisabion mechanisms,
resutting in changes to ndividual targets
and other ncentive structures Whlst this
Investment was amed at sales acceleration
nto 2011 and beyond, there have been
clear signs of early successes, making us
confident of further organic growth and
profitabity in 2011 In addition, the proposed
acquisition of Top Info, subject to approval
by the French Competrion Authorty,

1S anticipated to delver further revenue
enhancement in 2011
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Operating review continued

Benelux

Revenue

£45.6m

Operating loss

-£0.4m

The Benelux operation showed an adjusted
operating loss of €0 46 milion in 2010
(2009 loss of €0 85 millon), resutting from
an operating profit for Belgurn and the
Nethertands of €0 49 milion (2009 loss

of €0 45 millon) and an operating loss for
Luxemnbourg of € 0 95 miflon (2009 loss
of €0 38 milion)

The business in Belgium and the
Netherlands delvered significantly increased
revenue, up by 90 8 per cent to €496
milen (2009 €26 0 million), largely denved
through product sales However, 2 matenal
proportion of this revenue was denved from
a single, one-off sale Services revenues
ncreased by 3 3 per cent to €9 6 milion
{2009 €3 3 milion) and our managed

In recogrising the business needs of

our local customers, we Integrated our
Luxembourg team structure into the German
organisation, effective from 1 January 2011
Going forward, performance of the Belgum
and Netherlands based businesses will be
reported separately from the Luxembourg
business, the latter which will be reported as
part of the German business performance

Outlook statement

We believe that 2011, as a whole, will

be a year of continuing improvement

for Computacenter’s performance As we
state every year, it s always a challenge
drawing any meaningful conclusions

about the new financial year untl we have
completed at least the first quarter This year,
drawing conclusions from compansons with
pror first quarter resutts, will be particularty
difficutt In the first quarter of 2010 In the

UK, we had very buoyant market conditons
and a largs one-cff contract, which flattered
revenue {0 a greater extent, than profit This
1 a marked contrast to Germany, where the
companson is matenally easier, due to ther
challenging start to 2010

We believe that 2011, as a whole, will be
a year of continuing improvement for
Computacenter’s performance.

services business mantaned a stable long-
term contract base

This bugsiness has strengthened its

competitve posthion by combining its local
presence with intermational shared serices
faciibes for icensing, service dask and
datacenter actnvites This has allowed the
business to compete for and win, major
product and licensing contracts, asis
evidenced by a €10 2 millon datacenter
project to a high profile wareless technology
provider, as well as a licensing contract with
a market leader in the field of local search
and adverhsing, valued at circa €1 2 milion

Continued investment into our Professional
Services offenng enabled some project
contract wins in the fields of unfied

IP communications, for example, a

€0 14 milon VOIP project for the Red
Cross Flanders, as well as in Microsoft
technologies, as evdenced by a €012
milbon MS System Center project for De
Lyn, a regional public transport prowder
Additionally, a datacenter technology related
contract, for storage rmplermeritzabon, with
a value of €0 23 milion was awarded by
Pentarr Europe, a leading prowider of water
solubons and related technical products

In Luxembourg, a restructunng project, ata
cost to the profit and loss account of crea
€0 48 millon, was undertaken to reduce
the future cost base significantly and to
enhance focus on growing the long-temmn
managed services contract base An early
success, In this context, 1s evident from
having been awarded a two-year contract,
valued at €0 47 millon, by Enovos, a gas
and elecincity utithes company

Lookang further ahead, we believe there

are a number of growth dnivers which
Computacenter will be able to take
advantage of End user demand for new
techrnology 15 dming the requirement for
nvestrnent in corporate [T nfrastructure,
helped by economic mprovement within
our customers’ markets Our services
marketplace continues to grow, albert at

a modest pace, but we fedl iIncreasingly
confident about our ability to continue to
outperform the market This reflects our
customers’ desire not to outsource to a
single supplier, but to 'smart source’ best of
breed suppliers, playing to Computacenter's
strengths We believe that these growth
dnvers, coupled with the opportunity to
further reduce our operating cost over tme
due to our Investment in systems, will enable
Computacenter to continue our eamiNgs
momentum

Mike Norris
Chief Executive

“Adustoed profit before tax and EPS 1s stated pnor to
amortisation of acoqured mangbles and exceptional
terns Adjusted operating profit is also stated after
chargng firance costs on C8F
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Computacenter helps Best Buy
UK open new stores on time
with repeatable IT solution

“By creating a repeatable

and reliable yet

customisable approach
for mplementing IT at our
new stores, we are able
to respond more quickly
to customer demand

and market changes.”

Trevor Lynch,
Head of [T,
Best Buy UK

Customer challenge

Best Buy Europe is a joint venture between The Carphone
Warehouse and the US-based electronics retaler Best Buy

Co. Inc, and 1s designed to make it easier for consumers to
purchase technology To meet its growth aspirations, Best

Buy UK needed to launch its first ‘big-box’ stores in a short
tmeframe Technology is fundamental to successful day-to-day
retall operations and must be provisioned 1o a high standard
with transparent costs from the outset

Computacenter solution

We developed a robust ‘new store in a box’ solution for Best

Buy UK, which will ensure a consistent level of IT quality and
govemance across its retall estate Computacenter is responsible
for provisioning, staging, configuring and installing the store
infrastructure, which includes point of sale devices, desktops,
prnters, cabling, network connections and servers We are

also providing ongoing support under a three-year contract

Results

By partnenng with Computacenter, Best Buy UK has removed
both unnecessary cost and complexity from the launch of new
stores. As a result, it was able to guarantee the on-time opening
of its first six UK stores n 2010 As well as deliverng guaranteed
costs, the Computacenter solution also supports continuous
Improvement.
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Market overview
Outperforming the market

Authonr:
John Simcox, Current Analysis

-0.1%
Decline in value
in total UK IT
market in 2010

-2.3%

Decline in value
in total mamnland
Europe IT market
n 2010

+13.9%**

Computacenter UK services
revenue growth in 2010

+4.3%**

Computacenter mainland
Europe services revenue
growth in 2010
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2010 was a challenging year for many organisations and
companies delivering technology related products and
services were not immune from it. Economic recovery, whilst
welcome, was often patchy and the onset of Government
action ~ required to address the high levels of annual public
sector borrowing built up durng the previous few years -
dampened commercial and consumer confidence. Despite
this, the IT Services segment of the marketplace in which
Computacenter operates, saw only a modest overall decline
in value, and specifically was almost flat in the UK (0.1 per
cent decline) and a 2.3 per cent decline for mainland Europe*
(Germany, France and Benelux).

The IT ndustry, as a whole, is in some ways well used to dealing

with a market that 1s dechring s almost taken as a gven that the
technology product you buy today will be superseded in the near
future by a new version offenng more features and more performance
at alower pnce Agamst this background, the sector constantly has
to ook at ways to create new opportunities to expand the adopton
of technology, In order to grow the overall sze of the market In part,
the cause of the decling N the cost of technology also creates the
opportunity, as solutions previously thought to be too complex or
expensive become both possible and affordable

For the IT Services sector, the impact of external events resutting in
an sconomic downturmn is not always negative Firstly, traditional T
Services contracts are usually for a number of years and therefore,
the impact of any downturn in the past few years s only really
seen when thase contracts are being renewed or new contracts
negotated — and not so much In the revenue denved from exsting
contracts This does, of course, present the potental for the
recessionary effect to be felft in the services sector for a number

of years after the economy retums to growth




However, daaling with and also exiting from an economic downturn
also presents opportunes As companies seek to respond to
the tougher market condibons, which challenge the potental for
mantaning - let alone growing - revenue, they look at ways of
operating more efficently and reducing costs, so that they can
maintan or even grow profitability The provision of [T, along with
changes In the way that IT 1s used by the business, are often
amongst the ways in which companies look to make efficiencies
As such, there s the real potertial for ary recuction in the value
of contracts to be more than offset by the decision to Increase
the utilsation of T within the orgarisation Figures frorm a number
of research agencies support this with the market seeing a sfight
downtum in 2010, but returning to growth, albert modast, in 2011

Cloud computing brings to an end
the claim of smaller enterprises that
outsourcing is not for them, because
they are too small.

One area that 1s expected to see a lot of attention n 2011 and
beyond, 1s cloud computing Much hyped for a number of years,
the market is now starting to see real traction and that can be
expected to grow significantly in the future The cloud computing
marketplace is ttseff very diverse with a vanety of options open to
the custorner, whether ‘Public’ enabling customers to access a
(usually shared) facility provided by the supplier, or ‘Private’ where
the facilty 1s dedicated to one customer and (often) on the
customer’s premises — where 1t 1s managed and operated by the
chosen suppler Within the cloud environment, the custormer can
access and use apphcations on a smple ‘pay as you use' basis or
alternatively, obtain the core T nfrastructure upon which to place

and run bespoke applicatons

Cloud computing bnngs to an end the claim of smaller enterpnses
that outsourcing 1S not for thern, because they are too small For
many, cloud computing provides a very cost effective and highly
flexible solubion for meeting the changing IT needs of smaller
organisatons  The fiexbility that the customers crave from adopting
cloud-based solutions does have an impact on the supplier sector
in that the revenue stability that the ndustry has enjoyed due to

the long-term nature of the contracts will not be there, Increasing
suppliers’ exposure to economic fluctuations

It would be wrong to imply that the whole market 1s moving to
cloud-based solutions and that the days of companies buying
hardware, software and the assocated mplementation and
mantenance services are finished Organisations, even those

who have adopted cloud-based services, will continue to nvest

in hardware and software as well The challenge for the T ndustry
i1s that there continues to be pnce erosion, especially when ¢ relates
to CPU performance and storage capactty If therefore, a company
1S to grow (or even simply maintan) its revenues in this area it needs
1o be able to also offer a range of quality product related services

it would also be wrong to suggest that the product related

market had become stagnant as a result of the economic Issues
Orgarisations will continue to refresh therr equipment base, as
falure to do so could have senous consequences for the operational
efficiency of the business and its abiity to caprtalise on the latest
software avallability

One area that is seeing significant
interest at present is what could
be termed the consumerisation

of corporate IT.

One area that 1s seeing significant interest at present 1s what could
be termed "the consumensation of corporate I With the advances
seen in the capabilities of devices such as smartphones and tablet
based computing devices, which were pnmanly developed for the
consumer market, ncreasingly, corporate IT departments are being
required to support and even ntegrate these devices Into the IT

real estate This agan presents a commercial opportunity for the

IT industry to provide the necessary senaces in order to successfully
and securely Integrate these new devices Into the corporate
ernvironment, in pariicular ensunng that the user expenence

of the demce 1s retaned

In 2010, the corporate sector began the wholesale adoption of
Microsoft Windows 7, it 1s to be expected that this wall continue
to gather pace in 2011, especally as Microsoft encourages
organisahons to move away from iis clder Windows XP and
Windows Vista products This change in operating system, along
with the avallability of Microsoft Office 2010, will act as a catalyst
for the refreshing of hardware and other software being used
across the custorner base For many IT service organisations,
especally those with product related dwvisions, this presents

a further revenue opportunity

The public sector, regardless of country, has always been a
significant part of the IT marketplace As with the commercial world,
2010 was a year In which expenditure by the public sectoron IT
came under the microscope, with projects re-examined to determine
whether they coffered value for money The change of Government in
the UK made this re-appraisal process more acute than some other
European countnes, although countnes in the Eurozone had therr
own public finance 1ssues to contend with, but the outcome was
broadly smilar [T expenditure closely revewed and in some cases,
contracts cancelled or renegotated As with the private sector, [T In
the public sector can also be an enabler to drve efficiency and, as
such, it 1s to be expected that in the coming year there will be new
opportunibes for [T companies to engage with the public sector

In the UK, there are some specific nibatives that have the potental
to change the suppler landscape for the public sector Thereisa
stated mtention to open up the market to comparies other than the
few very large [T companies dominating the sector today To date,

IT projects undertaken by central Government have tended to be

of such a scale that only the very largest players have the scale of
operation to be considered as suppliers Highty publicised project
falures have illustrated that even these large companies may not
necessanly provide the answer Going forward, 1t is expected that
large Government projects wil be made more modular in scope and
thus accessible to smaller companies, who often have the innovative
Ideas that really make a difference

In the UK there are some specific
initiatives that have the potential to
change the supplier landscape for
the public sector.

The UK Government is also expected to establish ts own cloud
computing environment (often referred to as "G-Cloud’), in order to
encourage shanng of applicatons cumently used by one department
across other departments — rather than indwvidual departrments
incumng the cost of developing solutions that have already been
developed and deploved elsewhere There is also the potential within
G-Cloud for access to ‘off the shelf’ applications to be made widely
avalable to Governrment employees Assuming these inthatives come
to frution, it will sgnificantly alter the interaction between Government
and the IT industry

Whilst 2011 will no doubt prove to be a commercially challenging
year for al companes, there is real cause to beleve that the T
Industry, especially those active In the services sector of the industry,
will see significant opporturities to grow therr busmess and offset any
decines in the more tradbonal parts of therr orgarusation However,
the IT services industry will also need to adapt and embrace new
technology tself, n much the same way as it 1s encouraging its
customers to do, in order to betler service their custorners and

grow profitability

* Source Gartner figures
= Figures prowded n constant cumency
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Finance Director’s review

The net funds (excluding CSF) improved from £86.4 million to £139.4 million

by the end of the year.

Turnmover and profitability

In 2010, Computacenter Group delivered a strong turnover and
profit, across all our man geographies with revenue growth in all
business Iines Our 2009 revenues iIncluded £84 6 million from the
frade distnbution ('CCD’) business in the UK, which was disposed
N 2009 Excluding CCD, tumover increased by 10 7 per cent, with
product revenues Increasing by 12 5 per cent and senvice revenues
increasng by 6 5 per cent

This growth was partially achieved due to the impact of the
acquisiions of becom and Thesaurus, which were both made

in Novernber 2009, offset by a small diluton n growth due to
movements in curency The like-for-like turnover growth, which
excludes curmency fluctuabons, the CCD disposal and the impact
of acquisitions, was 10 3 per cent On this measure, product
revenue growth was 11 4 per cent, and services growth 7 7 per
cent The tumover growth reflects the strong rebound in corporate
nfrastructure spending in 2010 across UK, Gemmany and France

Adusted profit before tax improved by 21 8 per cent from

£54 2 million to £66 1 milion, albest £0 9 miflion of this IMmprovement
15 generated from a change in classification of certain French tax
expenseas from administrabon expenses in 2009 to income tax
expense n 2010 Without this classification change, adjusted

profit before tax increased by 20 1 per cent

After taking account of excepbonal tems, in 2009, and amortisation
of acquired intangibles, statutory profit before tax mcreased by
35 1 per cent from £48 4 millon to £65 4 millon
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Adjusted operating profit

Statutory operating profit increased from £52 1 milbon to

£65 9 million However, management measure the Group's operating
perfomance using adjusted operating profit, which s stated pror
to amortisation of acquired intangibles, exceptional tems and the
transfer of Internal ERP implementaton costs and after charging
finance costs on customer specific financing ('CSF’) for which the
Group recenves regular rental income  Gross profit 1s also adjusted
to take account of CSF finance costs The reconciliation of statutory
to adjusted results s further explained in the segrmental reporting
note (note 3) to the financial staterments

UK

UK revenues, excluding the CCD disposal, grew strongly in 2010

by 10 8 per cent overal Product sales increased by 9 5 per cent
and services revenues also increased by 13 9 per cent Revenue
decline In the govermment sector was mare than offset by growth

in other sectors, parbcularly financial sermces Adjusted gross profit
margn moved from 14 8 per cent to 15 O per cent with the loss of
low margn CCD revenues replaced by higher revenues on corporate
product sales

At a headline level, adjusted operating expenses ('SG&A) increased
by £3 0 mulion as reported However, we incurred operating
expenses of £3 5 milion in 2009 n the CCD business Following

the cost reductions realised in 2009, the UK business entered into
certan targeted SG8A nvestments to mprove efficiency, repeatability
and industnalisation of our service operations function




Table 1
Group revenues £m

Half 1 Half 2 Total
2008 1,250 3 1,309 8 2,560 1
2009 1,222 2 12810 25032
2010 1,288.8 1,387.7 2,676.5
2010/09 54% 83% 69%
Table 2
Adjusted profit before tax £Em

Half 1 % Half 2 Y Total %
2008 113 09% 318 2 4% 431 17%
2009 182 15% 360 2 8% 54 2 22%
2010 21.2 1.7% 44.9 3.2% 66.1 2.5%
2010/09 16 6% 24 5% 21 8%
Table 3
Revenues by country £m
2010 2009

Half 1 Half 2 Half 1 Half 2
UK 6519 613.5 624 9 6020
Germany 455.8 550.0 4333 497 4
France 164.2 195.4 1611 168 3
Benelux 16.9 28.8 129 133
Total 1,288.8 1,387.7 1,222 2 1,281 0

Germany The operating resuft tumed around from a loss of £2 7 milion in 2009

Revenue, as reported, grew in 2010 by 8 1 percentto £1,005 8
rion (2009 £930 7 millon), atthough approxmately £54 3 million
(or 72 3 per centy of the growth can be attnbuted to the acquisition
of becom Informatonsysteme GmbH (‘becom’)

In local cumency, revenue grew by 12 2 per cent, with product and
services revenues Increasing by 16 8 per centand 4 1 per cent
respectively The adusted gross profit percentage for Germany as
a whole decreased from 13 4 per cent to 13 1 per cent of sales,
due to a higher product revenue mix

SG8A Increased by £6 2 millon to £111 0 millon (2009 £104 8
millon), albett excluding the SG&A Increase associated with the
acquisiton of bacom and takang into account the effects of currency,
the like-for-Ike SG8A growth s 2 6 per cent

France
The rebound In revenue was most pronounced n France, with revenue
ncreasing by 12 6 per cent or 16 9 per cent In local currency

Product revenue increéased by 19 7 per cent in local curmency mainly
due to a relatvely buoyant product market and strong growth n

the enterpnse product sector Following two years of double digit
growth, services revenue grew by a more modest 4 6 per cent, with
professional seraces up 15 3 per cent and managed senaces down
by O 1 per cent in local currency

Due to the high product sales growth, gross profit percentage
recuced from 11 7 per cent to 10 5 per cent Thisled to an

overall gross profit increase of £0 4 million, with SG8A down by

£3 3 milion The operating profit 15 flattered by the change in the
basts of the calculation of certan tax payments In 2010, £0 @ milion
has been charged in ncome tax expense that N previous penods
was classtfied within administration expenses

to an operating profit of £1 0 milion in 2010 This is a particularly
pleasing performance, being the first time our French business has
generated an operating profit since 2001

Benelux

Reported revenue increased by 74 O per cent to £45 6 million
{2009 £26 2 milion), franglating to an increase of 80 8 per cent
N local curency Inlocal cumency, product revenue increased by
130 5 per cent whilst service revenue grew more modestly by

6 2 per cent This s dnven by a large product win dunng 2010
in Belgium and the Netherlands, that 1s not expected to be
repeated In 2011

Our business In Belgium retumed to profitability n 2010, reporting an

operating profit of £0 4 millon {2009 operating loss of £0 4 million)

The business In Luxembourg however, was once agan loss-making,
and as a consequence we Incured £0 4 miion of redundancy costs

within an operating koss of £0 8 milion (2008 €0 4 milior) From
2011, the Luxembourg business will be managed and reported
through our German business and going forward, will form part
of the German geographical segment

The operating loss generated In the Benelux segment was therefore
£0 4 milion (2009 £0 8 rrflion)

Exceptional iterns

Following exceptional tems of £5 3 million in 2009, no exceptonal
iterns were recorded dunng 2010 Further details of the pnor year
exceptonal ters are provided in note 5 to the financial statements

Finance income and costs

Net finance costs on a statutory basis reduced from £3 7 milion n
2009 to £0 5 million in 2010 This takes account of finance costs
on CSF of £2 1 milkon (2009 £4 0 miflon) On an adjusted bass,
pnor to the mterest on CSF, net finance incorne recovered from

£0 3 miliion 1 2009 to £1 6 milionn 2010, mainly due to the
significant improvernent In net funds
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Finance Director’s review continued

Table 4
Adjusted operating profit by country £m
2010

Half 1 % Half 2 Ya
UK 18.1 28% 25.2 4.1%
Germany 3.7 0.8% 16.8 30%
France {1.2) {0.7%) 2.2 1.1%
Benelux {0.0) {0.1%}) {0.4) (1.4%)
Total 20.6 1.6% 438 3.2%

2009

Half 1 % Half 2 %
UK 12 6 2 0% 252 4 2%
Germany 72 17% 124 25%
France (14) {1 0%) (13 (0 8%}
Benelux {0 4) {3 2%) 04 (3 4%}
Total 18.0 1.5% 35.9 2.8%

Taxation The net funds {excluding CSF) mproved from £86 4 mifion to

The effective adjusted tax rate for 2010 was 23 1 per cent (2009

22 6 per cent) The Group’s tax rate continues to benefit from losses
uthsed on earmings N Germany and will benefit from the reducing
corporation tax rate in the UK.

Deferred tax assets of £11 3 mifion (2009 £11 4 millien) have been
recognised in respect of losses carmed forward In addition, at 31
December 2010, there were unused tax losses across the Group of
£171 2 rulion 2009 £188 1 milion) for which no deferred tax asset
has been recognised Of these losses, £99 4 millon (2009 £1111
milkon) anse in Germany, albert a significant proportion have been
generated In statutory entiies that no longer have sgnificant levels
of trade The remaining unrecognised tax losses relate to other loss-
making overseas subsidianes

Eamings per share and dividend

The adusted” diuted earnings per share has mersased in line with
profit growth by 19 1 per cent from 27 7 pence in 200910 330
pence IN 2010 The statutory diuted eamings per share growth of
30 9 per cent takes into account exceptional tems reported n 2009

The Board s recommending a final dividend of @ 7 pence

per share, bnnging the total dvdend for the year to 13 2 pence
(2008 11 O pence) This will be payable on 10 June 2011 to
registered shareholders as at 13 May 2011

Cash flow

The Group's trading net funds position takes account of factor
financing, but excludes CSF There 1s an adusted cash flow
staternent prowided i note 29 that restates the statutory cash flow
to take account of this defintion
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£138 4 milion by the end of the year The Group has a history of
strong cash generation However, the increase in 2010 was unusual,
grven the Increase In product revenues, due to a number of factors
Firstly, following the extt from the CCD business in the UK in late
2008, the UK increased the rmix of its purchases via distnbutors,
resutting in lower stock holdings and increased creditor payment
terms Secondly the Group continued to benefit from the extension
of a tempoerary mprovement in credit terms with a significant vendor,
equivalent to £38 millon at 31 December 2010, an increase of
approximately £8 milion over the course of the year These terms
will continue until at least 30 June 2011

These factors combmed to generate a £21 4 millon working capitaf
nflow, despite a 7 1 per cent Increase in product sales compared to
2009 This, together with the post tax earmings In the penod of £50 3
mullion, mproved the cash position, by over £50 million in the year,
desprte contmued nvestment in the ERP systern, investment in our
datacenters and dwidends of £17 0 millon paid

Whilst the increase in net cash in the year 1s particularly strong,
changes n future penods are moere [kely to be in hne with the
undarhang earmings of the business, except if the iImprovement
In credit terms wath a significant vendor Is reversed

CSF reduced In the year from £49 1 millon to £28 4 millon, partially
due to a decision to restnct this form of financing in the Iight of the
credit emvironrment and reduced custemner demand Taking CSF into
account, total net cash at the end of the year was £111 0 mulhon,
compared to £37 3 milon at the start of the year




Customer specific financing

In certan crcumstances, the Group enters into customer contracts
that are financed by leases or loans The leases are secured only on
the assets that they finance Whilst the outstanding balance of CSF
15 mcluded within the net funds for statutory reporting purposes,

the Group excludes CSF when managing the net funds of the
business, as this CSF 1s matched by contracted future recepts
from customers

Whilst CSF 1s repaid through future customer receipts,
Computacenter retains the credit nsk on these customers and
ensures that credt nsk 1s only taken on customers with a strong
credit rating

The committed CSF financing facihes are thus cutside of the normal
working caprtal requirements of the Group’s product resale and
savice actvites

Capital Management
Detalls of the Group's caprital management pokcies are included
within note 25 of the financial statements

Financial instruments

The Group's financial nstruments compnse bomowings, cash

and kquid resources and vanous tems that anse directly romds
operatons The Group occasionally enters into hedging transactons,
prncipally forward exchange contracts or curmency swaps The
purpose of these transactions 1s to manage cumency nsks ansing
from the Group's operations and its sources of finance The

Group's policy rermans that ne trading in financial instruments

shall be undertaken

The man nsks ansing from the Group's financial Instruments are
interest rate, lquidity and foreign cumency nsks The overall financial
instruments strategy 1s to manage these nsks in order to minimise
therr impact on the financial results of the Group The policies for
managing each of these nsks are set out below Further disclosures
In ine with the requirements of IFRS 7 are included in note 24 of
the accounts

Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operatons through a mdure of retaned
profits, bank borrowings, nvoice factonng in France and the UK and
finance leases and loans for certain customer contracts The Group's
bank borrowangs, other faciiies and deposits are at floating rates No
nterest rate denvative contracts have been entered inte When long-
term borrowings are utiised, the Group's policy is to mantain these
borrowings at fixed rates to imi the Group's exposure to interest

rate fluctuations

Liquidity nsk

The Group's policy s to ensurs that it has sufficient funding and
committed bank facities in place to meet any foreseeable peak in
borrowing requirements The Group’s net funds postion Improved
substantially dunng 2010, and at the year-end was £13€ 4 milion
excluding CSF, and £111 0 millon including CSF

Due to strong cash generation over the past three years, the Group
1S Now In a postion where it can finance its requirements from ds
cash balance As a result, the Group has not renewed a number
of overdraft and factonng facites dunng 2010, and consequently
the uncomimitted overdraft and factonng fachities avallable to the
Group has reduced to £15 5 mifion at 31 December 2010

(2009 £100 3 milion)

At 31 December 2010, the Group stit has access to a £60 O millon
three-year commutted faciity established in May 2008, of which

£43 5 milion (2009 £42 9 milion) 1s not utiised at the balance sheet
date This facility s due o expire n May 2011, ardd s not expected
to be renewed

The Group manages its counterparty nsk by placing cash on deposit
across a panel of reputable banking nstitubons, with no more than
£50 0 millon deposited at any one time except for UK Government
backed counterparties whera the it 1s £70 0 mulhon

CSF faciies are comrnitted

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates pnmarily in the UK, Gemrnary, Frarce, and the
'‘Benelux’ countrnes, using local bormowings to fund s operations
outside of the UK, where pnncpal rcepts and payments are
denommnated m Euros In each country a small proportion of the sales
are made to customers outside those countnes For those countnes
within the Eurozone, the level of non-Eure denominated sales is

very small and if matenal, the Group's policy 1s to eliminate currency
exposure through forward currency contracts  For the UK the vast
magonty of sales and purchases are denominated in Sterling and
any matenal trading exposures are eiminated through forward
curmency contracts

Credit nsk

The Group pnncipally manages credit nsk through management of
customer credit imits The credtt imis are set for each customer
based on the creditworttiness of the customer and the anbcipated
levels of business actvity These limits are invally detenmined when the
customer account Is first set up and are reguiary monitored thersafter
In France, credit nsk is mibgated through a credit msurance policy
which applies to non-Government customers and provides insurance
for approximately 50 per cent of the relevant credit nsk exposure

There are no significant concentrations of credit nsk within the
Group The Group’s major customer, disclosed in note 3 to the
financizl staterments, consists of entries under the control of the UK
Government The maxamum credit nsk exposure relating to financial
assets Is represented by carmying value as at the balance sheet date

Events after the balance sheet date

On 15 February 2011, the Group announced its agresment 1o
acquire TOP [nfo SAS and its subsidianes {Top Info’), an information
technology reseller of hardware, software and services based in
Pans, France The acquisiion is still subject to compethion clearance
In France, with the closing date not expected before the end of
March 2011 The expected consideraton totals €21 miilon payable
on the closng date with an additional €1 miion dependent upon the
performance of Top Info in the penod to 31 December 2011 The
management and exercise of contral over Top Info will not pass to
Cornputacenter untll the closing date

Going concern

As disclosed m the Directors’ Report, the Directors have a reasonable
expectaton that the Group has adequate resources to continue &s
operations for the foreseeable future Accordingly they continue

te adopt the going concern basis n prepanng the consolidated
financial statements

Tony Conophy
Finance Director
9 March 2011
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Risk management
Protecting our business

Strategic
objectives

Accelerating
the growth of
our contractual
services
business

Reducing cost
through increased
efficiency and
industralisation
of our service
operations

Principal risks

Cur offenngs transpire to be uncompetitve
within the market or an unforeseen technology
shiit occurs where the market develops
appette for different equipment and solutions
to those offered

We potentially do not dedicate comect levels
of resource to satisfy our customers’ varying
needs for nnovation

Cur growth asprrations are mpacted by the
economic clmate and with a certain level of
uncertainty about a full retum te economic
stabifity In the short-term, there 1s the
potental for reduced capital expenditure
from customers

There Is an absence of appropnate INvestment
into automated tools and other efficiency
measures, which effectively fals to reduce

the need for manual intervention actmwty

or a sutable returm on these investments

1s not reaised

Principal mitigations

We formally review all lost bids and most
won bids to ensure that we keep abreast of
custorner expectation from therr T services
and solutions partner We formally review our
rtermal service providers aganst pnee points
and benchmarked service quality standards
We launched a Custormer Value Scorecard
to identrfy our larger customers’ nnovation
needs and we are currently implementing the
‘continual mprovement framework” to detect
where innovation needs are ansing

We operate within different economies that
are affected differently at different tmes We
also belleve that our offenngs are targeted
specifically towards being beneficial to our
customers who are loolang to reduce costs

22 Computacenter plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010

The ndustnalisation and rnvestment review
board convenes monthly and monitors the
return on nvestment as well as the planned
KPl mprovements




Computacenter's Group Risk Departrent facilitates a process
through which the Group's maost senior management team

dentdy all the significant nsks posed to the strategic goals Dunng
2010, the Strategic Risk Profiing Project ('SRPP'), or ‘top-down’

nsk identification, was additonally faciitated by an external nsk
consuttancy and the result of this exercise was adopted by the Board
and shared with all the business unit leaders across the Group

The annual ‘bottom-up’ nsk assessment rvolves all
business unit leaders across the Group, to identiy and pnontise, in
accordance with a pre-approved nsk matnx of severtty and likefihood

Safeguards already in place and further required migations for each
identrfied nsk are included i the nsk logs, together with the owners
of the nsks The frequencies for reviewing the effectiveness of the
safeguards, as well as the date by which miigation plans need to
be progressed, are added to complete the nsk plans

The Group Risk Committes, charred by the Chief Execttive,
convenes quarterly to review progress against the nsk plans
Additionally, the Committee considers any new nsks of potental
significance which may be added to the appropnate nsk log and
for which a nsk plan is required

values, those nsks posed to the objectives and targets set for their
indivdual business units The output of this process presents a nsk
footpnnt for each business urit, as well as, a collated top nsks log
for the Group, which 1s compared to the SBPP log

Maximising the
return on working
capital and freeing
working capital
where not
optimally used

Growing our
profit margin
through increased
services and high-
end product sales

Ensuring the
successful
implementation
of the Group-wide
ERP system

Following significant progress over the last
years In freeing working capital through the
disposal of the distnbution business, as wel

as other working capital optrmisation intiatves,

a matenal increase in working capital demand
could harm further progress in this regard

Our sales teams do not focus on our defined
propostions and target market, resultting in
‘over-promising’ on the scope of services
offerad to new customers or making
non-standard offenngs dunng the iife of a
contract, resuting IN margin ercsion, customer
dissatisfaction or delays in the initial phases

of the contract

Our vendor partners compete in the high-
end sales envircnment and approach our
customers directly

With a project of this scale, there 1s the
potential that durng earty transition operational
1ssues could oceur which rmay mpact on
customer service levels and ulimately, overall
financial performance of the Company

After the ERP system 1s embedded there
15 the potential that the full return on this
nvestment s not realised

There 1s continued focus on stnct cost control
and in future, the ERP system will facilitate

a common approach o working capital
management, across the Group, through
best practice and other working capital
control adoption

Goverrance boards and a tool through
which all relevant parties have to engage,

aim to prevent any non-standard offenngs

All change management will be reviewed by
a governance board and if matenal, the same
approval process as for new contracts will

be intiated

Senior management work very cosely with
our leading vendor partners and customers

in order to continually promote and protect the
valus we bnng to the sale Computacenter’s
customers demand optimisation of ther

IT infrastructures and to this end, vendor
independent sottions are imperatve

The transtion of the vanous systems have
beer phased over a penod of crca three
years, with the other countnes providing
back-up support to the transitoning country
Lessons learnt from the sarty 2011 fransition
In Germany will be depioyed n the UK

and France

Retumn on investment plans have been
developed and will be built Into the internal
govemance struciure at all relevant levels
and targets have already been added to
senior management pay plans
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Corporate Sustainable
Development (CSD)
Acting responsibly

Computacenter recogrises that its people and the sociebes and
environment within which we operate ars integral contributors to
delvenng value and supportng our key strategic aspirations Whilst
we pnde oursetves on the provision of technologically advanced
mformation solutions, we recognise that our business occurs within
a wider community including employees, shareholders, customers,
suppliers, business partners and the natural environment as a whole

In 2007, the Group committed itself to the 10 core principles of the
United Nations Global Compact (UNGC', amed at demonstrating
ethucal, envronrmental and social responsibilty towards our own
workforce and in our business interaction within each community
and country we operate In 2009, the Group published its first
Commurucation on Progress (‘CoP') on the UNGC website, followed
by our second CoP n Apnl 2010 Additionally, the Group retains

its membership to the FTSE4Good Index Senes The Group’s CSD
Policy 1s annually revewed by the highest governance structure,

the Group Board

Integral to this commement, we stnve to ncorparate the UNGC and
its pnnciples into our strategy, culture and day-to-day operatons
We do this through the development, communication and
implementation of relevant policies to manage and montor cur
progress towards these principles  Since our commitment to the
core principles, we have adopted and revised a number of policies
and procedures across the Group

We support public accountability and will publish, as part of our
annual Business Review, a Report on Progress We are also
communicating our sustainability efforts and achievernents with

all our shareholders in the Annual Report and Accounts, as well as
our Company website We believe that what 1s not measured 1s

not effectively managed and in kne with this, we are endeavounng
to identfy at least one standard indicator {'Sl"), as recognised by the
Global Reporting Inttiatve (GRI'), per core pnciple In this regard,
we have made progress, but there remains more work to be done
over the next years

Computacenter will seek to collaborate with and encourage our
suppliers, corractors and customers to operate In a similar socially
responsible manner, as guided by the UNGC ten pnnciples We
have already secured support from the maonty of our suppliers and
contractors, but we acknowledge that this will be an ongoing task

Mike Norris
Chief Executive Officer
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Human nghts
1. Support and respect the internationally proclaimed
human rights

Human nghts

2010 objectves and achreverments — Sl not formalised

+ Mantan human nghts awareness through the Gompany’s
‘Principles of Employee Behaviour’

v All human nghts related policies across the Group have been
reviewed and made avalable to new starters through an employee
handbook, new employment contracts and/or the intranet Training
remans avalable to alt

* France's HR team will mprove the recruttment of minonty groups

v Vanous intiatives in France have resulted in 30 per cent more
seniors in full tme equnvalent (FTE’) employ and airca 47 per cent
more disabled in FTE employment than n 2009

2011 obyectives

+ Mantan hurman nghts awareness through the Company's
‘Principles of Employes Behaviour’

* Germany will launch a comprehensive ife balance awareness
programme, the LEQ programme, amed at engaging employees
within the second half of ther careers, as well as young
professionals

Health and Safety

2010 obyectve and achievements — Sl's = AIR and AFR

* Mantain the Acoident Incident Rate {(AIR) at below 2 5 and the
Accident Frequency rate (AFR) at below 1 0

v Inthe UK, the average AIR mproved to 0 61 (2009 0 89) and the
average AFR mproved to 0 34 (2009 0 39)

v In Germany, the average AIR ncreased to 1 53 (2009 1 44} and
the average AFR declined to 0 86 (2009 © 80)

v in France, the average AIR increased to 1 40 (2009 1 30} and the
average AFR declined to 0 78 (2009 O 76}

2011 objectives \
* Manntan the AIR and the AFR at 2 5 and 1 0 respectively and
retan BS OHSAS 18001 and UVDB certifications
* The margnal decline in the acadent rates in Germany and France |
have been identified as being due to road accidents, stress and ‘
back stran In France, the MASE Health and Safety management
systern has been launched and the objective 1s to progress
the action plan towards certification In 2012 Stress prevention
and road safety awareness trainng will be undertaken in both
Germany and Franca, with back safety traning to be provided

to all employees in Germany

AIR — Number of acadents per 1,000 employees
AFR - Nurnber of acodents per 100,000 worleng hours

Heatth and Safety Group average AIR




2 Ensure that the Group is not complicit iIn human
nghts abuses

2010 obyectives and achievements — Sl yet to be formalised

* Amend the questionnare 1o incorporate requirements of the
Anti-Brbery Bill and to nclude questons on diversity

v The Supplier Assessment questonnare has been revewad to
specifically address matters of diversty and ant-bnbery and all key
and new vendors are required to complete the questonnaire An
on-line version of the questonnarre has been launched to faciitate
ease of completion

= Select supplier audits will be conducted in France, in order to venfy
sustanable development conformance levels and these actvbes
will be monitored quarterly by utlising the GRI scorecard

v Inal conformance venfication audits have commenced in France,
but GRI scorecard measurement postponed

2011 objectives

« Mantan key and new vendor assessments through the
questionnarrs and montonng of the retums

* |n France, the target is to drectly interact with 100 suppliers
to venfy retumed questionnaires and o assess a surtable GRI
scorecard measurement for this pnnciple

Labour standards
3. Uphold employees’ freedom of association

2010 objectives and achievements — Sl to be formalised

* Maintain current status and reassess vendor conformance,
through the completion of a questionnare to be revised
dunng 2010

v The Supplier Assessment questonnarre has been reviewed to
specfiically address matters of diversity and ant-brbery and all
key and new vendors are required to complete the questonnarre
An on-line version of the questionnaire has been launched in
France to faciitate ease of completion

v The voluntary employee representation structure in Germany
has been aftered to a formal Works Council In terms of the
German Works Constriution Act

+ Select supplier audits will be conducted in France, in order to venty
sustanable development conformance levels and these activiies
will be monrtered quartery by utlising the GRI scorecard

v Inial conformance venfication audts have commenced in France,
but GRI scorecard measurement postponed

2011 objectves

+ Mantain cunent status and reassess vendor conformance,
through the review of questionnaire responses

* Embed the new processes invelved in the Works Councl
n Gemany

Computacenter recognises that

its people and the societies and
environment within which we operate
are integral contributors to delivering
value and supporting our key strategic
aspirations.

4, Eliminate all forms of forced and compulsory labour

2010 objectives and achievements — Sl to be formalised

* Mantain current status and reassess vendor conformance,
through the completion of a questionnaire to be revised
dunng 2010

v The Supplier Assessment guestionnarre has been reviewed to
specifically address matters of dversity and anti-bnbery and all key
and new vendors are required to complete the queshonnaire An
on-ine version of the questonnaire has been launched N France
to facitate ease of completion

v The voluntary employee representabon structure in Germany has
been aftered to a formal Works Council in terms of the German
Works Constitution Act

» Selact supplier audits will be conducted in Francs, in order to venfy
sustanable development conformance levels and these actvibes
will be monrtored quarterty by utitsing the GRI scorecard

v Inmal conformance venfication audits have commenced in France,
but GRI scorecard measurement postponed

2011 objectives

* Mamntan current status and reassess vendor conformance,
through the review of queshonnaire responsss

» Select supplier audits wil be conducted in France, in order to venfy
sustanable development conformance levels and these actvities
will be monrtered quarterty by utitsing the GRI scorecard

“To help deliver a better service to our
members and minimise environmental
impact, we wanted to equip revenue-
generating employees and occasional
home-workers with the ability to access
comporate systems and data while outside
the office environment. Computacenter
helped us design and implement a secure
and reliable mobile computing solution that
supports flexible working, reduces trave|,
cuts carbon emissions and has enabled
significant cost savings.”

Martin Elsender,
Technology Services — Supplier Delivery,
Nationwide
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Cormorate Sustainable Development (CSD) continued

5. Abolish all forms of child labour

2010 objectives and achievemnents — SI not forralised but continued

support for educatonal intiatives within the communities where we

operate, will be monitored and reported

* Continus to develop young careers and seek assurance from
all key vendors that no child labour 1s deployed, on behalf of the
Group, in non-European geographies

* Reassess vendor conformance, through the completion of the
revised guestonnare

v The Supplier Assessment queshonnaire has been reviewed and all
key and new vendors are required to complete the questonnares
An on-ine version of the questonnare has been launched In
France to facitate ease of completion

v In the UK, the graduate development programme has been
repeated with 12 graduate intakes dunng 2010 The Handelsblatt
und Junge Camere agan presented Computacenter Germany
with the Farr Company seal for the appropnate treatment of
student ntems In France, the FTE of apprentices employed
increased by 15 1 per cent

2011 obectve

» Continue to develop young careers and seek assurance from
all key vendors that no child labour 1s deployed, on behalf of the
Group, n non-European geographies

6 Support equality in respect of employment and occupation
and eliiminate all discrimination

2010 objectves and achievements — 51 = Increase n staff utiisation

of the UK Benefits@Computacenter webate

* Reassess vendor conformance through a follow-up circufabon of
the revised CSD questionnare

v The Supplier Assessment questonnare has been reviewed and all
key and new vendors are required to complete the questionnare
An on-line version of the questionnarre has been launched In
France to facitate ease of completon

¢ Progress the Investors in People mprovement plan

v Investors in People improvement plan has been collated into
separate projects, dnven by vanous members of management,
with good progress achieved

* Monrtor Benefits@Computacenter website utilsation

v Staff utilsation of Benefits@Computacenter in the UK, has
Increased by 13 per cent and the Excellence in Acton reward and
recognmion scheme has seen a 30 per cent Increase N use

e France’s HR team will improve the recruriment of minomnty groups

v Vanous intiatves in France have resutted in 30 per cent more
seniors N FTE employment and circa 47 per cent more disabled
in FTE employ than in 2009

2011 objectives

* Awork life balance intranet portal, including family support,
Balance@Computacenter, launched in Germany, will be expanded
and its availability promoted dunng 2011

* The Benefits@Computacenter offenng wil be further promoted
n the UK
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Environment
7. Apply precaution to activites which can impair
the environment

Electricity consumption at Group head office (million kWh}

2010 objectives and achievements — Sl = Group Carbon Footprnt

in milion KWh

s Reduce electnerty consumption at the Group head office

X Blectncty consumpbon at the Hatfield location increased by crca
2 2 per cent dunng 2010 This is due to relocation of vanous
functions to Hatfield, including a service desk relocated from
Mitton Keynes, comesponding broadly with electnoty consumption
reductions at the vacated locations

v New energy efficient highting has been installed in the Hatfield car
park, which reduces the electncty used in this area by 50 per cent

+ Complete a Carbon Trust accredited energy audit at the Group's
head office and investigate the wability of further energy reduction
strategies

¢ An energy audt, performed by Ervicio, resulted in the developrment
of électhaty reduction plans for Hatfield, detaled under the 2011
objectves

v The average CO; emitted per UK fleet vehicle reduced from
168 g/km in 2008, to 146 g/hkm in 2010

+ Achieve bronze status to the Mayor of London’s Green
Procurement Code

v Bronze status achieved to the Mayor of London’s Green
Procurement Code

* A ‘safe and envronmentally fnendly drving’ traiing course to be
delvered to relevant staff in France

v Approximately 69 per cent of all employees in France have
completed an emaronment frendly drmng course

» Develop web conferencing utiisation in France and monitor usage
through GRI Scorecard guidelines

v Web enabled conferencing faciites have been deployed within
France, together with five further Teleconference facilities in the
UK GRI scorecard guidelines will be considered and likely relate
to minutes of use

* Develop an Envirenment Management System in France, to
ISO 14001 level 110 2010 and level 310 2012

v France has opted to develop an environmental management
systermn aligned to the 1, 2, 3 Emaronmental Standards and level 1
15 cue to be audited for certfication dunng February 2011




2011 objectves

* Proceed with the installation of the Voltage Optimisation devices
at Hatfield and monttor the projected electncity consumption
reduction of between 7 and 10 per cent per year

* Proceed with the wiability study for the installation of a 15 to 20 KW
wind turbine installation at Hatfield

* Achieve certification to level 1 to the 1,2,3 Ermironmental
Standards in France

* Expand on the participation in Germany in the Volkswagen Green
Fleet programme

8. Undertake intbatives to promote greater involvement
In the community

2010 objectves and achievernents — Sl = Track and monttor chanty

fundraising actmties

* Mantain the cument level of chanty fundraising actmty, with an
appropnate focus on local needs

v Employees in the UK raised £115,000 dunng 2010, of which
crca £40,000 was donated to the Willows Foundation, a Hatfield
based chanty Support for the Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue
dogs continued as well as support for a road safety awareness
campaign at local schools, called Kidsafe

v’ Computacenter UK became a founding member of Herts 100,
a charty which enables combined support of vanous organisations
within the region, to reach the pnmary needs of the society In
the region

v Cormputacenter France continued rts support to ONG Aide
et Action

+ Continue to track and monrtor chanty fundrassing actvities

v Employees in Genmany are encouraged to report ther private
chanty efforts and such voluntary actvties are logged and intemally
publicised

v Group subsidiary and reuse and recycling specialists, RDC, was
invited to participate as speakers at the United Nations Industnal
Development Grganvsation (‘UNIDCO') event in Vienna, in November
2010, where the develcpment of safe IT reuse strategies inio
developing countnes were explored

2011 cobjectives
» Mantain the current level of chanty fundraising actmty
+ Continue to frack and monitor chamty fundraising actvties

We strive to incorporate the UNGC and
its principles into our strategy, culture
and day-to-day operations.

9. Encourage the development of environmentally
fnendly technologies

2010 objectives and achievements — St = Proportion of custormer

contract wins where 'Green [T’ was part of the contract scope

* Actvely market the datacenter solutions

v The Group has sgnificantly expanded the availability of datacenter
faciites, in order to provide customers with an offenng which
would reduce cost and ther carbon exposure, to the extent where
addtional faciities are being planned

+ Contnue to track customer demand for 'Green [T' offenngs

v In 2010, 17 71 per cent {2008 13 75 per cent) (2009 18 82 per
cent) of new contract wins included an express ‘Green IT” scope

+ Computacenter France will develop and faunch the ‘Green (T”
Adwvisory Services for customers

# France has launched a ‘Green IT' offenng including IT Recycling
and Pnnt Optimisation solutions

v BDC achieved the goal of zere landfil for all waste, which
contnbuted to being awarded the 2010 Award for Environmental
Excellence for Recycling Performance, by the Charntered Institution
of Wastes Management

2011 objectves

* Contnue to track customer demand for ‘Green IT' offenngs

* Computacenter France will expand on its ‘Green [T" Adwisory
Services for customers, with the addition of audt and
consulting services

Overview

Ant-corruption
10 Impede corruption in all ts forms, ncluding extortion
and bnbery

2010 objectves and achievements — Sl not yet formalised

¢ Review the Ant-Bnbery Bill requirements and revise the Business
Ethics policies across the Group

v A Group-wide Code of Conduct and a revised Business Ethics
Policy for the Group were developed, following the promulgation
of the UK Bnbery Act in Apnl 2010

¢ Communicate to all the rewvised version of the Ethics Policies,
when completed

v The Code of Conduct and rewised Ethics Policy has been 1ssued
for implementation across the Group

* Reassess vendor conformance, through the completion of the
revised questionnae

v The Suppler Assessment questionnare has been reviewed to
specifically address matters of dversity and anti-bnbery and all key
and new vendors are required to complete the questionnaire An
on-line version of the questionnaire has been launched in France
to facitate ease of completion

2011 obyective
+ Launch traning and anti-bnbery awareness sessions across the
Group to ensure alignment to the Code of Conduct

Business review

Govemance

Stephen Benadé
Company Secretary
9 March 2011

Financial statements
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1 Greg Lock

Chaiman

Greg 1s the Chairman of Kofax pic and a Non-Executve Director

of Urited Business Media and private technology company, Target
Group He has more than 38 years’ expenence in the software and
computer senvices industry, Including four years as Charman of
SurfControl plc and from 1998 to 2000, as General Manager of IBM's
Global Industnal sector Greg also served as a member of IBM's
Worldwide Management Councit and as a govermor of the

IBM Academy of Technology Age 63

3 Tony Conophy
Finance Director

Tony has been a member of the Institute of Chartered Management
Accountants since 1982 He qualfied with Sempent (reland) Ltd
and then worked for five years at Cape Industnes pic He joined
Computacenter In 1987 as Financial Controller, nsing n 1991 to
General Manager of Finance In 1996 he was appointed Finance
and Commercial Director of Computacenter (UK) Limited with
responsibdity for all financial, purchasing and vendor relations
actvities In March 1988 he was apponted Group Finance Director
Age 53

5.John Ormerod
Non-Executive

John 1s the Senior Independent Director and Audt Committes
Charman of Misys plc, a Non-Executive Director and Charman

of the Audit Committes of Gemalto NV, a Non-Executive Director
of TV Pic and Deputy Chaiman of Tnbal Group plc John has held
senor postions with Arthur Andersen and with Deloite, whers he
was a member of the UK Executive Cormmittee and elected Board

Age 62

7lan Lewis

Non-Executive

lan s Director of the Universty Computing Service at the Unversity
of Cambndge Dunng hus career he has held a number of serior
positions, induding First Vice President and Global Chief Technology
Officer of Memll Lynch's Investment Banking and Sales division and
Global CTO at Dresdrer Kleinwort Wasserstein Investment Banlang
Age 50

2 Mike Noms
Chief Executive

Mike Noms graduated with a degree in Computer Scrence and
Mathematics from East Anglia Unversity in 1883 He joined
Computacenter in 1984 as a salesman in the city office In 1986 he
was Computacenter's top account manager Following appointments
as Regional Manager for London Operations in 1988 and General
Manager of the Systems Dmsion n 1992 with full sales and
marketing responsibiites, he became Chief Executive in December
1984 with responsibility for all day-to-day actavbies and reporting
channels across Computacenter Mike also led the Company
through flotation on the London Stock Exchange in 1908

Mike was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Science from
Hertfordshire University in 2010 Age 49

4 Peter Ogden
Non-Executive

Peter founded Computacenter with Philip Hulme in 1881 and was
Chaimman of the Company untl 1998, when he became a Non-
Executrve Director He is Charrman of Dealogic (Holdngs) plc and
pror to founding Computacenter, he was a Managng Director of
Morgan Stanley and Co Age 63

6 Phihp Hulme

Non-Executive

Philip founded Computacenter with Peter Ogden in 1981 and
worked for the Company on a full-tme basis untl stepping down as
Exacutve Charman in 2001 He is a Director of Dedlogic (Holdings)
plc and was previously a Vice President and Director of the Boston
Consutting Group Age 62

8 Bnan McBnde

Non-Executive

Bnan was most recently Vice President and Managing Director of
Amazon co uk. His early career and ent development was

at (BM, where he started and spent 12 years in sales, culminating

in the appontment as Drector of UNEX Marketing for IBM Eurcpe
Bnan has had broad non-executive expenence, having served as
Chairman of the Remuneraton Committes and SID of S3 PLC, NED
at Celc Football Club PILC and Chairman of Virgin Mobile Age 55
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Corporate governance statement

Compliance statement

The Board remans committed to the pnnciples of good corporate governance and supports the best practice guidelines contaned
within the FRC Combined Code on Comporate Govemance (‘the Code’) as published in June 2008, which can be found on the
FRC's website www frc org uk/corporate/ukcgeode cfm) This statement explains the Company’s governance policies and
practices and sets out how the pnnaiples of the Code have been applied for the year ended 31 December 2010 (‘the year’) The
Board confirms that, save as detalled below, the Company has comphed with section one of the Code throughout the financial
year Ounng 2011, the Board will consider the requirements as set out in the revised UK Corporate Govermance Gode published

in June 2010, Including annual re-election of the Directors and extemal board evaluation

Board of Directors

Composition

Al 31 December 2010 the Board consisted of Greg Lock (Chairman), two Executive Directors, Mike Noms and Tony Conophy, and
four Non-Executve Directors Philip Hulme, lan Lews, Peter Ogden, John Ormmerod Cliif Preddy stepped down from the Board at
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 14 May 2010 Bnan McBnde was appointed to the Board as Non-
Executive Director on 10 January 2011 Details of the current Directors, including therr membership of Committees, are set out
below and their biographies, which include details of their otber significant commitments, appear on page 29 The Board considers
that Greg Lock was independent on appontment and that lan Lews, John Crmerod and Bnan McBnde are also independent
under the provisions of the Code Bnan McBnde 1s curently the Senior Independent Director

The Combined Code on Corparate Governance, provision A 3 2, states that at least half of the Board, excluding the Chairman,

must consist of iIndependent Non-Executive Directors The Company was not compliant with this provision dunng the year The
Nominations Committee considered the size and structure of the Board, including the required skills and agreed that the present
size and composition of the Board remamned appropnate, for the requrements of the Company The pnmary reason for the lack
of non-conformance to this provision relates to the lack of ndependence of the founder members, Philip Hulme and Peter Ogden,
due to the duration of therr membership to the Board The Nominations Committee continues to beleve that these two Directors’
expenence and business acumen bnng significant value to the Board as a whole The Norminations Committee will consider the
Board's composition agan n 2011

Following Cliff Preddy’s departure from the Company, the Board did not intrally nominate a Director to act as Senior Independent
Director, but at the Board meeting in August 2010, Mr Ormerod agreed to act as ntenm Senior Independent Director This role was
relinquished upon the appointment of Bran MeBnde on 10 January 2011

Audrt Remuneration Neminations
Narme PLC Board Independent Committee Committee Committee
Greg Lock Chairman  On appointment No Yes Char
Mike Noms Executve No No No No
Tony Conophy Executve No No No No
Philip Hulme Non-Executive No No No No
lan tews Non-Executive Yes Yes Yes Yes
Bnan McBnde' Senior Independent Director Yes Yes Chair Yes
Peter Ogden Non-Executive No No No No
John Omerod Non-Executive Yes Chaur Yes Yes
Ciiff Preddy? Senor Independent Director Yes Yes Char Yes
Stephen Benadé Secretary  Not Applicable Secretary Secretary Secretary

Bran McBnde )aned the Board on 10 January 2011
2 Cift Preddy stepped down from the Board on 14 May 2010

Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board has responsibility for the cverall management and performance of the Group, it sets the Company’s strategic ams,
ensunng that sufficient resources are In place to meet these objectives The Board reviews the performance of senior management
in order to ensure that they are meeting the agreed objectives The Directors set appropriate values and standards, ensunng that
obligations to shareholders and other stakeholders are understood and met and that a satisfactory dialogue with shareholders 1s
mantamned A framework of prudent and effective controls exsts to ensure that nsks are properly identrfied, assessed and managed
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Roles and responsibilities of the Board contnued

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and ther responsibilities are clearly defined in writing, reviewed and
approved annually by the Board In summary, the Chaiman’s role 1s to lead and manage the Board The Charrman facitates the
contnbution of all Directors and 1s responsible for ensunng constructive relations between them The Chief Executve 1S responsible
for the day-to-day managsment of the Group's activities and execution of the strategy approved by the Board There 1s no
indmdual or group of Indmduals who dominate the Board's decision making processes The Board believes that it oversees

the Group effectively and 15 proactve in its approach

There 1s a documented schedute of matters which is reserved for the Board and these matters include the agreement of strategies
and budgets and the approval of acquisitions and major caprtal expenditure This schedule 1s reviewed annually or more frequentty
where required and updated by the Board

Board effectiveness

Upon joning the Board, all Directors receve a comprehensive induction programme, tallored to therr requirements New Oirectors
receve an induction pack which contains information on the Group'’s business, 1ts structure and operations, the Board procedures,
vanous corporate govemnance retated matters and details of Directors’ duties and responsibiliies As part of the induction
programme, all new Directors meet with senior management and mestings are arranged with major shareholders

All Directors receve appropnate documentation in advance of each Board and Committee meeting, Including detaled brefings
on all matters where the Board 1s required to reach a decision, as well as regular reports on the performance of the Group Sernior
management frequently present to the Board on the resutts and strategies of therr respective business units, thus ensurng the
Board remain familiar with key elements of the business and the management of the Group

The Board is subject to an annual performance review, which is led by the Chairman and covers the effectiveness of the Board as
a whole, its individual Directors and its Committees The performance review takes into account a wide range of factors, including
strategic and operational matters, corporate govemance, nsk management and shareholder advocacy Each Director Is required
to complete a questionnare, followed by one-to-one meetings with the Charman The infonmation from the questionnaires and
Interviews 15 compiled into a report and presented to the Board The performance of the Chairman 1s assessed by the Non-
Executive Directors, led by the Senior Independent Director All Directors provide feedback on the performance of the Chairman

Board support

The Group Company Secretary I1s responsible for adwvsing the Board on all corporate govenance matters and for ensunng that all
Beard procedures are followed, applicable rules and regulations are complied with and the Board 1s updated on regulatory and
governance matters All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary

A procedure 1s In place to enable indvidual Directors to obtain independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense,
where they believe it is iImportant to the furtherance of ther duties No such adwvice was sought by any Director dunng the year

Board meetings

The attendance of the Directors at scheduled Board and Committee meetings held dunng 2010 1s detaled below The Board
convenes at least exght scheduled mestings per year, as well as a full day strategy review, with at [east one meeting each year
at the location of an overseas business

Board Audit Remunerabon Nominatons
Director Meetings Commites Committea Committee
Number of scheduled meetings held 11 5 6 5
Executive
Mike Norns, Chief Executve 11 n/a n‘a na
Tony Conophy, Finance Director 11 n/a n/a va
Non-Executive
Greg Lock, Chairman 11 n/a 5] 5
Philip Huime 11 n‘a na n/‘a
lan Lews 10 5 5 5
Peter Ogden 9 n/a n/a n/a
John Ommerod 10 5 6 5
CIiff Preddy {to 14 May 2010) 4 2 4 2

Unscheduled Beard meetings are required to conclude matters considered at a previous meeting, or to address an imperative
Issue, or to consider the contents of disclosures Two such meetings were convened dunng 2010 and Peter Ogden and John
Omerod attended one such meeting and the remamder of the Board was present at all meetings It is inevitable that there will be
occasions when circumstances anse to prevent Directors from attending meetings In such circumstances, the absant Director
will review the Board papers and raise any considerations on specific issues with the Chairman pnor to the meeting

In addition to the formal Board and Committee meetings, the Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors, ndwvidually and as a
group, meet without the other Executive Directors being present, at least once a year

Dunng 2010, in addition to participating in the review of the Group’s strategy, approval of the budget and oversight of the Group’s
operating performance, the Board reviewed the integration of acquisitions made at the end of 2009, monitored the investment in
and mplementation of the new Group ERP system, reviewed the plans for ndustnalisation of key customer service processes,
and reviewed the plans for development of the senior executive team, including succession planning and talent identification
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Cormorate governance statement continued

Directors
The Company aranges msurance cover In respect of legat action against the Directors and to the extent allowed by legislation,
the Company has granted an indemnity to Directors against clams brought by third parties

All Directors are subject to election at the first AGM after therr appointment and currently are required to retre by rotation, at least
every three years Those Non-Executive Directors who have served for more than nine years are obliged to offer themselves for
re-election annually One third of the Board 1s required to retire at each AGM

Board Committees

The Board has delegated certain govermance responsibiities to three pnncipal Board Commitiees, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nominations Committee The Terms of Reference for each Committee can be obtaned from the Company’s
website www computacenter comvinvestors or from the Company Secretary, by request The compositon and main
responsibiities of the Commitiees are detaled below

Audit Committee

Prior to 14 May 2010, the Audit Committee consisted of three Independent Non-Executive Directors, John Ormerod {Chairman),
lan Lewss and Ciff Preddy Following the AGM on 14 May 2010, when Cliff Preddy stepped down from the Board, the Committee
continued to be served by the two remaining independent Non-Executive Directors  Dunng the vear, the Committee met on five
occasions and attendance at those meetings s set out in the table below

Audit Cormmittee members Roe Attendance record
John Crmerod (Chairman) Non-Executve Director 5/5
lan Lews Non-Executive Director 5/5
Cliff Preddy (to 14 May 2010) Senior Independent Director 2/2

The Charman, Group Chief Executive, Group Finance Director, Group Intemal Audit Manager, Group Financial Controller and the
extemnal audttor are routinely Invited to, and attend, the majority of meetings Penodically, the Committee also meets privately with
the external auditor and the Group Internal Audit Manager The Board believes that the members of the Committee have sufficient
skills, qualifications and expenence to enable the Committee to discharge its duties, In accordance with the Terms of Reference
The Board 1s satisfied that John Ormerod has relevant and recent financial expenence The Terms of Reference for the Committee
are reviewed annually to ensure that they are in Iine with current best practice

The Committee’s key duties include, to

» Consider the reappointment of the extemal auditor, and make a recommendation to the Board In doing this, the Committee
reviews reports on the execution by the auditor of ts work, considers the report on audtt fimns by the Auditing Inspection Unt,
and draws upon the expenence of Committee members of the work of other firms and at other businesses,

« Review the independence of the Group's auditor Annually the Committee receves a report on the auditor’s internal procedures
to ensure that they remain independent, mcluding its procedure for the rotation of key audit personnel To support mantaining
the objectmity and independence of the external audrtor, the Committee has approved a formal policy goverming the
engagement of the external auditor to provide non-audit services This policy precludes the auditor from providing certain
services and permits other imited semices which are subject to low fee thresholds or which require pror approval in
accordance with a pre-agreed authonty matrog,

s Review the audt plan and resuits of the extemal audit This includes receving the auditer's assessment of audit nsk and
approval of its audt plan and fees The Committee reviews the accounting policies adopted by the Group,

= The Committee receves reports from management and the auditor on the Group’s annual and intenm financial statements and
reviews any other published financial Information In doing so, the Committee considers the application of accounting policies
and key jJudgments in areas such as revenue recognition on major contracts, impaiment and financial statement cisclosure,

» Receve reports on the Group's systems of internal control and nsk management from the Group's management, the Group
Risk Manager, ntemal audit and external auditor, and to review and report to the Board on therr effectiveness Dunng 2010
the Committee has receved reports on the design of controls in the new ERP system,

+ Evaluate and monitor the effectiveness of the intemal audit function,

+ Review the Group's business ethics policy and ensure procedures are in place for an approprate investigation, following any
concems or potential breaches that may be raised by staff, and

+ Evaluate the effectiveness of the Committee, including its performance and constitution

Nominations Committee
In compliance with the Code, the majonty of the Commitiee 1s made up of Independent Non-Executive Directors The Committee
convened five times dunng 2010 and the members' attendance at those meetings 1s set out below

Norunatons Committee members Rols Attendance record
Greg Lock (Chairman) Chairman 5/5
lan Lews Non-Executve Director 5/5
John Omerod Non-Executive Director 5/5
Ciiff Preddy (to 14 May 2010) Senior Independent Director 2/2

The Committee 1s responsible for reviewing the Board's composttion, skills, knowledge and expenence and nominating candidates
for both Executve and Non-Exacutive Directorships on the basis of ment and objective critena It also ensures that the procedures
for the appointment of new Directors are formal, ngorous and transparent and that there s an orderty succession for appointments
to the Board and senior management To assist in this regard, the Group Chief Executive 1s invited to attend the meetings of this
Committee, when appropnate
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Board Committees continued

Nominations Committee continued

The Nominations Committee led the search for a new Non-Executive Director after Ciiff Preddy stepped down from the Board on
14 May 2010 The Commitiee appointed an external agency to identrfy candidates aganst pre-deterrmined cntena, as prepared by
the Nominations Commitiee Through this process, the Committee identified a number of candidates who were all ntervewed by
vanous members of the Board The Committee applied consideration to the Board's constritution, combined skifis and dversity
and Bnan McBnde was recommended and appainted to the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 10 January 2011

Remuneration Committee

In Ime with the Code, the majonty of the members of this Commuittee are Independent Non-Executve Directors Generally the Chief
Executive Officer attends part of the Committee meetings by invitation  Following CIiff Preddy’s departure from the Board and

as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, on the 14 May 2010, Greg Lock, the Chairman of the Board, agreed to charr the
Remuneration Committee in the intenm Therefore, until the appontment of Bnan McBnde on 10 January 2011, the Company was
not compliant with B2 1 of the Combined Code The Committee convened on six occasions dunng the year and the attendance
of the members 1s set out below

Remuneration Committss members Role Attendance record
Clif Preddy (Charman to 14 May 2010)  Senior Independent Director A/4
lan Lews MNon-Executive Director 5/6
John Ormerod Non-Executive Director 6/6
Greg Lock Non-Executive Director 6/6

The Committee 1s responsible for the Group’s policy on executive remuneration and decides on the specific packages of the
Executive Directars and senior management Further information on the Remuneration Commitiee and 1its activities can be found
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 35 1o 40

Directors’ remuneration
The pnnciples and details of Directors’ remuneration are contained in the Remuneration Report on pages 3510 40

Relations with sharehoiders

The Board acknowledges the importance of mantaining regular communication with its shareholders and the Group has an
established programme of communication based on the Group's financial reporting calendar in addition to this programme, the
Executve Directors have regular contact with institutional shareholders The Board receves regular reports on the meetings with
and other feedback from the Company's major shareholders, 1n order to ensure that they have a comprehensive understanding
of ther vews Dunng the latter part of 2010, Greg Lock met a number of larger shareholders and summaries of those discussions
were shared with the Board Bnan McBnde, as Senior Independent Director since 10 January 2011, i1s avalable to address any
shareholder quenes that are unable to be resolved through regular channels

All of the Directors attend the AGM and value the opportunity of welcoming Indwidual shareheolders and other investors to
communicate directly and address ther questions in addition to mandatory infermation, a full and balanced explanation of the
business of all general meetings 1s sent in advance to shareholders Resolutions at the Company’s general meetings have been
passed on a show of hands and proxtes for and aganst each resolution {together with any abstenttons) are announced at such
meetings, noted in the minutes, availtable on the Company’s website and notified to the market

Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for mantaning and rewewing the Group's systerns of internal control, ensuring that the controls
are robust and effective enabling nsks to be appropnately assessed and managed The Group's systems and controls are
designed to manage nsks, safeguard the Group’s assets and to ensure reliability of information used both within the business and
for publication Systems are designed to govern, rather than eliminate, the nsk of falure to achieve business objectives and can
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The Board conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of the systems of internal control including financial, operational
and compliance controls and nsk management systems Where weaknesses have been identified, safeguards are implemented
and monitored

All systems of Intemal control are designed to cantinuously identrfy, evaluate and manage significant nsks faced by the Group
The key elements of the Group’s controls are as follows

Responsibilities and authonty structure

The Board has overall responsibiity for making strategic decisions and there 1s a written schedule of matters reserved for the
Board The Group Executive Committee meets on a quarterty basis to discuss day-to-day operatonal matters Separate Executive
Committees have been established for each of the Group's operations in the UK, France and Germmany A flat reporting structure 1s
mamntaned across the Group, with clearly defined responsibilities for operational and financial management

Control ervironment

The Group operates defined authonsation and approval processes throughout all of its operations Access controls exist where
processes have been automated to ensure the secunty of data Management information systems have been developed to identify
nsks and to enable assessment of the effectiveness of the systems of intemal control Accountability 1s remnforced and further
scrutiny of costs and revenues encouraged, by the Iinking of staff incentives to customer satisfaction and profitability
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Corporate governance statement continued

Internal controls continued

Planning and reporting processes

A three-year strategic plan s prepared or updated annually and reviewed by the Board A comprehensive budgetary process 1s
completed annually and 1s subject to the approval of the Board Performance 1s monitored through a ngorous and detalled financial
and management reporting system, by which monthly results are compared to budgets, the previous year and the agreed targets
The results and explanations for vanances are regularly and routingly reported to the Board Appropnate action 1s taken where
vanances anse

Management and specialists within the Finance Department are responsible for ensunng the appropnate maintenance of financial
records and processes that ensure financial information 1s relevant, refiable, in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations,
and distnbuted both intemally and exdemally in a timely manner A review of the consolidation and financial statements 1s completed
by management to ensure that the financial position and results of the Group are appropnately refiected Al financial information
published by the Group 1s subject o review by the Audit Committee

Risk management

The Risk and Insurance Department monitors developments and oversees compliance with legislative and regulatory reguirernents
A comprehensive nsk management programme 1S developed and monitored by the Group Risk Cormmittee, the members of which
include senior operational managers across the Group, the Group Finance Director, the Group Risk Manager and the Group
Internal Audit Manager The Group Risk Commuttee 1s chaired by the Group’s Chief Executve  Further inforrmation on the
Company's nsks can be found within the Risk Report on page 22 Through a programme of assessment, appropnate measures
and systems of contral are maintained Detalled business interruption contingency plans are in place for all key sites and these are
regularly tested, in accordance with an agreed schedule

Capital expenditure and investrments

Procedures exist and authority levels are documented to ensure that capital expenditure is propery appraised and authonsed
Cases for all investment projects are reviewed and approved at dvisional level Major investment projects are subject to approval
by the Board

Centralised treasury function

The Board has established and reviews regularly, key treasury policies over matters such as counterparty exposure, borrowing
arrangements, and foreign exchange exposure management All cash payments and receipts are managed by centralised finance
functicns within each of the operating companies Weskly repcrting of cash balances to the Group Finance Department ensures
that the position of the Group, as a whole, 1s properly controlled The management of liquidity and borrowing factities for customer
specific requirements, ongoing capital expenditure and working capital of the business is undertaken by the Group Finance
Director, with regular reporting to the Board

Quality and integnty of staff

Rigorous recruitment procedures are In place to ensure that new employees are of a suitable callbre Management continuously
monitors traning requirements and ongoing appraisal procedures are In place to ensure that required standards are mantaned
Resource requirements are identified by managers and reviewed by the relevant national Executve Committee The Company has
a comprehensive Business Ethics Palicy in place and should an employee be found in breach of the policy, appropnate disciplinary
actions are applied A separate Code of Conduct, which confirms the prohitition of forms of bnbery, was adopted by the Group
Towards the end of 2010, the Group adopted a revised and separate Anti-Bnbery Code of Conduct Addticnally, ncreased focus
on enhanced succession arrangernents for key members of management across the Group has resulted in plans which recenved
CONLINUCUS progress reviews

Internal audit
The Group has an intermal audtt function led by the Group Intemal Audit Manager who reports to the Charman of the
Audit Committee

The Board, acting through the Audt Committee, has directed the work of intemal Audit towards those areas of the business that
are considered to be of the highest nsk The Audit Committee approves a roling audit programme, ensunng that all significant
areas of the business are Independently reviewed over, approximately a three-year penod The programme and the findings of the
reviews are continually assessed to ensure they take account of the latest information and in particular, the results of the annual
review of intemal control The effectiveness of the Intemal Audit Department and the Group’s nsk management programime are
reviewed annually by the Audit Committee

Compliance with DTR
The information that 1s required by DTR 7 2 6, nformation relating to the share capital of the Comparly, can be found within the
Directors’ Report on page 41

By order of the Board

Stephen Benadé

Company Secretary
9 March 2011
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Directors’ remuneration report

This report has been prepared by the Remuneration Commuittee (the Committee' and approved by the Board In prepanng this
report and establishing its polcy, the Board has gven full consideration te, and follows the provisions of, the Combined Code, the
Companies Act 2006 and the relevant parts of the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authorty Parts of this report have been audted
by the Company’s auditors Emst & Young LLP, in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 The audited
sections are identified within the report A resolution to approve this repart will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting (AGM} cf the Company

Remuneration Committee and advisors

All of the Independent Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman of the Board were members of the Committee throughout 2010
CIff Preddy was the Chairman of the Committee until he stepped down from the Board on 14 May 2010 Greg Lock, Chaiman of
the Board, agreed to serve the Committee as Intenm Chairman until such time as a new Non-Executive Director and Chairman of
the Committee was apponted On the 10 January 2011, the Board apponted Bnan McBnde as a Non-Executive Director Brian
will also act as Chamman of the Remuneration Committee and Senior Independent Drector The attendance of Cirff Preddy, lan
Lews, Greg Lock and John Ormerod at Committee meetings can be found in the Corporate Governance statement on page 30
The Chief Executive Officer (*CEQ’) generally attends parts of the Committee meetings by nvitation

The Committee’'s Terms of Reference are avallable for public inspection, ether on the Company’s website

(www computacenter comvinvestors) or by request from the Company Secretary Dunng the year, the Remuneration Committee
receved external advice from Delotte & Touche LLP and Mercer Limited In addition, employees of the Group, who provided
matenal adwvice or senices to the Committee dunng the year were Stephen Benadé (Company Secretary) and Barry Hoffman
(HR Director)

The Committee considers comparative practice in the European technology sector, FTSE techMARK 100 companies and
FTSE 250 companies

Remuneration policy

The Committee reviews and determines, on behalf of the Board, the overall remuneration policy of the Executive Directors,
Charman and with advice from the CEQ, the senior executives No individual 1s involved in deciding his own remuneration The
Executive Directors make recommendations for approval by the Board concerning the fees for Non-Executive Directors that reflect
the time, commitment and responsibilities of therr roles

The Company’s remuneration policy is designed to reward Executive Directors with remuneration arrangements that are
competriive, but not excessive and which further align the interests of the Directors and shareholders The policy i1s designed to
ensure that a significant proportion of the total remuneration 1s dependent upon the Group's financial performance, over the fiscal
year as well as over extended penods and that the remuneration policy 1s aligned to the Group's nsk profile These cbjectives are
achieved through a combination of base salary and benefits, performance related annual bonuses, a defined contnbution pension
scheme and share incentve schemes

The Committee considers, when reviewing the remuneration of the Executive Directors and other senior executives, the wider
remuneration levels of all employees of the Group The Committee reviews the average base salary ncreases applied across the
Group when base salary increases of the Executive Directors and other senior executives are consicdlered

Remuneration
The man elements of Executve Directors’ Remuneration for 2010 are shown below, with the 2011 elements detalled on page 36

Fixed Performance based

Blement Basic salary Bonus Performance Share Plan

Maximum CEO Finance Director 100% of base salary

award 100% of 75% of

base salary base salary

Maxamum Upiift 115% 86 25%

Purpose Reflects competitive salary levels  Rewards the delivery of Group Improved motivation for sentor
and takes account of personal operational performance and executives to contnbute to growth
contnbution and performance achievement of persona objectives and profitability and better align the

Company's incentive arrangements
with shareholders' nterests

Performance Indvidual contnbution 80 per cent of the maxmum bonus EPS growth, relative to RPI

standard potential based on achievement of

specffic Group annual financial
performance targets, with the balance
based on personal objectives approved
by the Remuneration Commuittee each
year For the personal objective
component to be payable, Group
budgeted profit must be achreved
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Basic salary and benefits

Each Executive Director’s salary 1s reviewed annually, in order to ensure that the basic salary and benefits remain appropnate
Dunng the review, the Committee considers vanous factors including performance and relevant market practices on pay, as well
as conditions affecting the Group generally For 2010, the Board as a whole, agreed that no Executive Director would receve a
base salary increase dunng the year, but that a study be undertaken at the end of the year to review the total reward levels and
Incentve structures

At the end of 2010, Mercer Limited was engaged by the Remuneration Committee to perform a total remuneration benchmarking
exercise This study huighhighted a misalignment of the CEO and Finance Director’s total eamings, compared te the FTSE250
comparator group The Remuneration Committee agreed that it was preferable to address this misalignment by adjusting both
base salanes and bonus opportunity, rather than base salary alone It was agreed that for 2011, the CEQO’s base salary would be
increased from £475,000 to £500,000 and the Finance Director’s base salary would be increased from £300,000 to £315,000

The Executive Directors receive benefits In ine with those offered to employees throughout the Group, including the prowvision
of a car allowance, Iife nsurance, personal accident nsurance and the opportundy to participate in the Group's Save as You Eam
scheme (‘SAYE"), as well as participation n the flexible benefits scheme (‘MyBenefits’)

Performance-related bonus scheme

The Executive Directors participate in an annual performance-related bonus scheme and in 2010, for the role of CEO, this had
a maximum bonus opportunity of 100 per cent of base salary For the role of Finance Director, the maximum bonus opportunity
was 75 per cent of base salary

The level of bonus payable 1s dependent on the achievemnent of Group financial performance targets and specific personal
objectves Regarding the award for 2010, up to 80 per cent of the maximum bonus potential was linked to the financial
performance of the Group against pre-agreed targets The balance {20 per cent} of the maximum bonus potential was related to
the achievement of specrfic personal objectives agreed with each Director, for the year, by the Chairman or CEO, as appropnate,
and approved by the Committes In order for the personal objective element of the bonus to be achieved, the Group budgeted
profit target bad to have been reached

In addition, from 2010, it was possible to exceed the meaxamurm bonus opportunity, subject to an overachievement on the PBT
element of the bonus targets, on a straight-line basis, up to a maximum boenus uplift of 115 per cent of base salary for the role of
CEO and 86 25 per cent for the role of Finance Director For 2010, Mike Noms earmed £467,875 (2009 £413,250), representing
86 O per cent of the maximum and Tony Conophy eamed £221,830 (2008 £189,000), representing 98 50 per cent of the
MaXImUm

Pension

The Executive Directors participate in the Computacenter Pension Scheme, a defined contribution salary sacrfice scheme, under
which a maximum annua Company contribution of £5,850 per employee i1s payable, based on basic salary For the year 2010, the
CEOQO and Finance Director recened the maximum annual Company contribution of £5,850 The scheme also allows employees to
make addrional salary sacrfices, which the Company may contnbute to the scheme, on their behalf

Share incentive schemes
Share incentive schemes are considered to be an important part of the executive remuneration policy, designed to support
management retention and motivation, whilst aligning senior management’s interests with those of shareholders

The details of the histoncal grants and associated performance conditions are set out In the table of Directors’ interests in share
options on page 39

Performance Share Pian - annual awards

The Performance Share Plan 2005 (‘PSP 1s the Company’s pnmary long-term incentve scheme for Executive Oirectors and semor
employees The Committee approves grants under this scheme, once a year, although further grants may be made in appropnate
circumstances For 2010, the Committee agreed that awards made to the Executive Directors would be at one tmes base salary

Annual awards under this plan are subject to performance condiions, as detalted below

For 2010, the PSP performance target was based on the Group’s annual adjusted eamings per share (‘EPS') growth in relation

to the retall pnce index ('RPI) and measured over a three-year penod This arangement applies throughout the Group, except in
France, where in accordance with local market practice, a two-year measurement penod applies, with a further condition that the
shares are held for an additiona! two-year holding penod, in order to gan favourable tax treatment One quarter of the shares will
vest if cumulatve annual EPS growth equals RPI plus 3 per cent per annum Awarded shares will vest in full f cumulative annual
EPS growth equals or exceeds RPI plus 7 5 per cent per annum  If cumulative annual growth in EPS s between 3 percent and 7 5
per cent per annum above RPI, shares awarded will vest on a straight Ine basis No share awards will vest if cumulative annual EPS
growth 1 less than RPI plus 3 per cent per annum There will be no retesting of the performance condition and any awarded shares
that do not vest will automatically lapse

EPS has been chosen as a performance measure as it 1s widely used and 1s considered a transparent yardstick EPS is calculated
on a pre-exceptional, diuted basis
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Share Incentive schemes continued
Performance Share Plan - annual awards
The Committee reviewed the performance critena to ensure that these reman sufficiently challenging in kght of market expectations

and in companson to market practice It was agreed that the performance conditions for the annual grant made in 2010, would
reman the same

The Committee have recommended certain changes to the award limit and performance condttions to the Performance Share Plan
{'PSP’) for grants made from 2011 onwards For those changes which require it, shareholder approval will be sought at the AGM to
be held on 13 May 2011 The proposed changes to the PSP are set out n detail in the Notice of Meeting 2011

Share options

The Company also operates the Computacenter Employee Share Option Scherme 2007 (‘the scheme’) As the PSP 1s the pnmary
long-term incentive scheme, the Committee iIntends that the scheme be used only in exceptional crcumstances No grants were
made to employees or Directors, under this scheme, dunng 2010 The Executive Directors have histoncally been awarded share
options under the Company’s previcus share option schemes and details of these grants can be found in the table of Directors’
interests N share options on page 38

The maximum number of options that can be awarded under the scheme will remain three times base salary, atthough this can
be exceeded in excephional circumstances Where grants are made to Executive Directors, it 1s curent policy to grant a maximum
of 1 25 times base salary

Should grants be made under the scheme in 2011, any applicable performance conditions will be subject to review by the
Committee, taking account of prevaiing market conditions, Group plans and objectives There i1s currently no intention to make
grants under this scheme

Dilution imits

The Company uses a mixture of both new 1ssue and market purchase shares to satisfy awards under the option, PSP and SAYE
schemes In line with best practice, the use of new Issue or treasury shares to satisfy awards made under all share schemes, 1s
restncted to 10 per cent In any ten-year roling penod, with a further restnction for discretionary schemes of 5 per cent in the same
penod As at the year-end, the potential dilution from awards under all share plans was approximately 5 41 per cent and the
potential dilution from awards under the discretionary schemes was approximatety 1 87 per cent

Minimum shareholding

The Committee beleves that it 13 beneficial for Executive Directors and certain members of the senior management team to build
up and retain a shareholding in the Company With effect from 2011, executives will be required to builld up, over a five year penod,
and mantain a shareholding under the Share Ownership Guidelnes, until such time as the following minimum level of qualifying
interest 1s reached

Group 1 Group CEO 2 x base salary

Group 2 Group Finance Director 1 x base salary
Executrves within the remit of the Remuneration Committee
Executives within the Group Executve Committee

Group 3 Senior Country, Functional or Other Executives 0 5 x base salary
Directors’ contracts
Contractfetter Unexpxred term Notce
of appointment {months)” as at penod
Dwector start date Expiry date 10 March 2011 {months)
Executive
Mike Noms 2304 1998 n/a none speciied 12
Tony Conophy 2304 1998 na none specified 12
Non-Executive
Greg Lock 01 07 2008 2011 AGM 2 3
Philp Hulme 05 05 2009 2012 AGM 14 3
lan Lewis 15 06 2009 2012 AGM 14 3
Peter Ogden 05 05 2008 2012 AGM 14 3
John Omerod 3110 2008 2012 AGM 14 3
Bnan McBnde 1001 2011 2014 AGM 38 3

Caleutated as at 8 March 2011, assuming that future Annual General Meetings Wil be held in May each year, and further assuming re-electon where required
to retwe at earler Annual General Meetings In accordance wath the Company's Aricles of Associabon
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Directors’ contracts continued
All Executive Directors have a rolling 12 rmonth service contract with the Company, which is subject to 12 months' notice by either
the Company or the Director

No contractual arangements are In place, which guarantee additional payments upon termination of employment by the Company
All senvice contracts provide for summary termination in the event of gross misconduct

Executive Directors are permitted to held outside Directorships, subject to approval by the Charman, and such Executve Director
1s penmitted to retain any fees pard for such services Dunng the year, Mike Nomns served as a Non-Executive Directar of Tnage
Limited and recenved a fee of £19,500

The Non-Executive Directors have not entered inte senice contracts wath the Company They each operate under a letter of
appointment which sets out therr terms, duties and responsibiliies Non-Executrve Directors are appointed for an initial term,
which runs to the conclusion of the third Annual General Meeting, {ollowing therr appointment and may be renewed at that point
for a further three-year term

The Board 1s aware of the revised UK Corporate Govemance Code published in May 2010, as it relates to all Directors offenng
themsetves for annual re-election at each AGM and the Board has agreed to consider this duning the second half of 2011

Performance graph
Computacenter’s shares are quoted on the London Stock Exchange and the Committee has deemed the FTSE Software &
Computer Senvices share index as the appropnate comparator, aganst which to assess Total Shareholder Return performance

The performance of the Group over the last five financial years, in relation to other relevant UK-quoted shares, is shown in the
graph below

Total Shareholder Return performance
Computacenter versus FTSE Software and Computer Services sector
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Audited information
The Directors’ remuneration and Directors’ interests in share incentive schemes detailed in the tables below, and ther associated
notes, are subject to audit

Directors' remuneration

Performance
Basic satary related Total Tota)
and foes bonuses Other 2010 2000
£ £ g £ £
Executive Directors

Mike Noms 475,000 467,875 - 942,875 888,250
Tony Conophy 314,800 221,630 - 536,430 503,800

Non-Executive Directors
Greg Lock’ 150,000 - - 150,000 140,000
Philip Hulme? 39,000 - - 39,000 34,000
lan Lewis®3 44,500 - - 44,500 38,583
Peter Ogden? 39,000 - - 39,000 34,000
John Ormerod? * 53,000 - - 53,000 47,000
Cliff Preddy® 16,964 - - 16,964 39,500

1,132,264 689,505 1,821,769 1,725133

T Greg Lock recenved an annual ncrease of £10,000 pa as Chanman of the Board

2 Phifip Hulme, lan Lews, Peter Ogden, John Omercd and Ciiff Preddy all recenved an annual increase in Non-Executve Director fees of £5,000

3 Dunng 2010 lan Lews recened an addibonal annual fee of £5,500 for his seraces as Chauran of the ERP Proect Commities, a committee separate
from the Board

4 John Omenod receved an addbonal annual fee of £14,000 for his seraces as Chaiman of the Audit Committee

5 Cliff Preddy racenved an addtonal annual foe of £7,000 for his serces as Charman of the Remuneration Committee Clif Praddy stepped down from the Board
on 14 May 2010

Bnan McBnde was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 10 January 2011 for which he will recene an annual fee of £33,000 In addiion he will recenve
an annual fee of £7,000 for his services as Chaiman of the Remuneration Cormmittee and a further addivonal fee of £5,000 for his services as Senior

Independent Dvector
Interests in share incentive schemes

Exercisa/ At 1 Granted Exercsed At 31

Schems  share pnce January dunngthe  dunngthe December

Director type in Exercse dates Note 2010 year year Lapsed 2010

Mike Noms Option 32200 10/04/2005 - 09/04/201 2 3 122,670 - - - 122,670

32000  O1/12/2014 - 31/05/2015 2 4,859 - - - 4,859

Total 127,529 - - - 127,529

PSP 28525  01/04/2010-01/10/2010 5 156,026 - 156,026 - -

187 00  01/04/2011 - 01/10/2011 6 223,930 - - - 223,930

126 50 13/03/2012 - 13/08/2012 7 208,102 - - - 208,102

12300  20/03/2012 — 20/09/2012 8 390,000 - - - 390,000

316 00 15/03/2013 - 15/09/2013 9 150,316 - - 150,316

Total 978,058 150,316 156,026 - 972,348
Tony

Conophy  Option 32200  10/04/2005 - 09/04/2012 1.4 9,316 - - - 9,316

32200  10/04/20056 - 09/04/2012 3 66,770 - - - 66,770

17800  01/12/2012 — 31/05/2013 2 9,438 - - - 9,438

Total 85,524 - - - 85,524

PSP 28525  01/04/2010 - 01/10/2010 5 101,319 - 101,319 - -

18700  01/04/2011 - 01/10/2011 6 136,364 - - - 136,364

126 50 13/03/2012 - 13/09/2012 7 131,433 - - - 131,433

12300  20/03/2012 - 20/09/2012 8 240,000 - - ~ 240,000

316 00 15/03/2013 - 15/09/2013 9 - 94,937 - - 94,937

Total 609,116 94,937 101,319 - 602,734

Computacenter plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010 39

Riicinecs review

Gnvemance

Finannial statements



Directors’ remuneration report continued

Interests in share incentive schemes continued
The Company's Non-Executive Directors are not invited or permitted to participate in any of the Company’s Employee
Share Schemes

Notes

1
2

2

Issued under the terms of the Computacenter Employee Share Opbon Scheme 1988
lssued under the terms of the Computacentar Sharesave Plus Scheme, which s available to employees and ful-time Executve Directors of the
Computacenter Group

lasued under tha terms of the Computacentsr Performance Related Share Option Scheme 1998 The options become exercisable if the avarage annual compound
growth in the Group's earmings per share {on a post-investrment in the Biomini joint venture, diuted basis) compared to the base year of 2001, s at least equal to the

RPI pius 5 per cent n any of the threa-, four- or five-year penods up to and including 2004, 2005 or 2006 respectvely

Exeraisable on tha condion that the average annual compound growth in the Group's eamings per share {on a post-investment in the Biomry jont venture, dikted
bass) compared to the base year of 2001, 5 at least equal to the RP1 phus 5 per cent n any of the three-, four- or five-year peneds up to and including 2004, 2005
respectvely

or 2006

Isstsed under the terms of the Computacenter Performance Share Plan 2005 One quarter of the shares will vest i the average annual compound growth

n the Group s eamings per share 1S at least equal to RPI plus 3 per cent over the three consecutve financial years starting on 1 January 2007 and ending on
31 Decamber 2009, compared to the basa year of 2006 Awards will vest in full f the Group's cumulative annual growth is at or above RPI plus 7 5 per cant
If the Group's eamings per share growth over the penod 1s between 3 per cent and 7 5 per cent above RPI, awards wil vest on a straight ing basis

lssued under the termms of the Computacenter Performanca Share Plan 2005 One quarter of the shares will vest f the average arnual compound growth

in the Group's eamngs per share 1$ at least equal to RP1 plus 3 per cent over the three consecutive financial years starting on 1 January 2008 and ending on
31 December 2010, compared to the base year of 2007 Awards wil vest in full if the Group's cumulative annual growth ts at or above RPI plus 7 5 per cent
If the Group's eamings per share growth over the penod s between 3 per cent and 7 5 per cent above AP, awards wil vest on a straight line basis

lssued under the terms of the Computacenter Performance Share Plan 2005 One quarter of the shares will vest f the average anmual compound growth
in the Group's eamiNgs per shara 1S at least equal to RP1 phus 3 per cant over the three consecutve financial years startng on 1 January 2009 and ending on
31 Dacamber 2011, compared to the base year of 2008 Awards will vest in ful ff the Group's cumulatve annual growth is at or above RPI plus 7 5 per cent
if the Group's earmings per share growth over the penod 1s between 3 per cent and 7 5 per cent above RPI, awards wil vest on a straght ine basis

If in 2011, profit before tax maches £90 millon, 25 per cent of the awards will vest, if the profit before tax 15 £100 rmihon or more, 100 per cent of the awards
will vest, awards wilt vest on a straght ine basis between thosa imits

Issued urder the terms of the Computacenter Performance Share Plan 2005 One quarter of the shares will vest f cumulative annual EPS growth equals RPI plus

3 per cent per annum Awarded shares will vest in full if cumulatve annual EPS growth equals or exceeds RPI plus 7 5 per cent per annum  if cumulative annual

growth in EPS 15 between 3 per cent and 7 5 per cent per annum above RPI, shares awarded wil vest on a straight Ine basis

Gains made from Executive Share Schemes dunng the year by the Directors were

Exercrse Market value Gan on
Number of pnce at exercise EexXpross
Date of vesting Schemea shares [ie)] [is}] )

Director
Tony Conophy 16/03/2010 PSP 101,319 n/a 31356 317,695
Mike Noms 16/03/2010 PSP 156,026 na 31356 489,235

The market pnce of the ordinary shares at 31 Decernber 2010 was 388 00 pence The highest pnce dunng the year was 404 00
pence and the lowest was 246 00 pence

Stephen Benadé
Company Secretary
9 March 2011
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of Cornputacenter ple and tts subsidiary companies
('the Group'} for the year ended 31 December 2010

Principal activities
The Company I1s a holding company The pnncipal actvities of the Group, of which it 1s the parent, are the supply, implementation,
support and management of information technology systems

Business review

The Companies Act 2006 reguires the Group to prepare a business review, which commences at the start of the Report and
Accounts up to page 27 excluding the market overview on pages 16 and 17, as this overview has been externally compied

The review includes information about the Group’s operations, financial performance throughout the year and likely developments,
key performance indicators, prnncipal nsks and information regarding the Group's sustainable development plan

Corporate governance

Under Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7 2, the Company 1s required to include a Corporate Govermnance Statement within the
Directors’ Report Information on the corporate governance practices can be found in the Corporate Govemnance Statement on
pages 30 to 34, which 1s ncorporated into the Directors’ Report by reference

Results and dividends
The Group's activities resulted in a profit before tax of £65 4 millon (2009 £48 4 millon) The Group profit for the year, attnbutable
to shareholders, amounted to £50 3 millon (2009 £37 7 million)

The Directors recommend a final dvidend of 9 7 pence per share totaling £14 9 million (2009 additional ntenm dmdend

£11 8 milion) Dmdends are recognised in the accounts in the year in which they are paid, or in the case of a final dvidend, when
approved by the shareholders As such, the amount recognised in the 2010 accounts, as descnbed in note 11, 1s made up of last
year's additional internm dmvidend (8 pence per share) and the intenm dividend (3 5 pence per share)

The final ordinary dvidend for 2010, f approved at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM), will be paid on 10 June 2011 to
those shareholders on the register as at 13 May 2011 The Company pad an intenm dividend of £5 2 millon an 15 October 2010

Post Balance Sheet Event
Detalls regarding the potential acquisition of the French company, Top Info SAS and its subsicitanes, can be found in the Operating
Review, page 6

Directors and Directors’ authority

The Directors who served throughout the year ended 31 December 2010 were Tony Conophy, Philp Hulme, lan Lews

Greg Lock, Mike Noms, John Ormerod and Peter Ogden CIiff Preddy stepped down from the Board at the concluston of the
AGM held on 14 May 2010 Bnan McBnde was appointed to the Board as Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration
Comrnittee and Senior Independent Director on 10 January 2011 Bref biographical detalls of the Directors at the date

of this report are given on page 29

Tony Conophy and John Ormerod will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election Philip Hulme and Peter Ogden, having served as Directors for more than nine years, will also retre and offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM Bnan McBnde, who will be attending his first AGM since his appointment, will offer himself for election

The Company’s Articles of Association provide for a Board of Directors consisting of not fewer than three, but not more than
20 Directors, who manage the business and affars of the Company The Directors may appoint additcnal or replacement
Directors, who shall serve until the next AGM of the Company at which pont they will be required to stand for election by the
members A Drrector may be removed from office at a general meeting by the passing of an Ordinary Resolution {provided
special notice has been given)

Members have previously approved a Resolution to give the Directors authonty to allot shares and a renewal of this authorty s
proposed at the 2011 AGM This authonty allows the Directors to allot shares up to the maximum amount stated in the Notice

of Annual General Meeting (approximately one-third of the issued share capital) and this authonty would generally expire at the
following AGM  In addition, the Company may not allot shares for cash (unless pursuant to an employee share scheme) without first
making an offer to existing shareholders in proportion to their existing holdings This 1s known as pre-emption nghts A Resolution to
allow a imited dis-application of these pre-emption nghts has been passed by the members previously, and a renewal of this
authorty 1s proposed for the 2011 AGM This authonty 1s also restncted to a specific amount {as detalled in the Notice of Annual
General Meeting), which 1s approximately 5 per cent of the issued share capital This authonty generally expires at the conclusion

of the following AGM
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Directors’ report continued

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has granted indemnities to each of ts Directors and Officers to the extent permitted by law and these indemnities
rerman in force at the date of this report The indemnities are uncapped and cover all costs, charges, losses and liabiities the
Crrectors may incur to third parties, in the course of acting as Directors of the Company or its subsidianes The Company has
made qualifying third party ndemnity provisions, for the benefit of its Directors, dunng the year and these reman in force at the

date of this report
Directors’ conflicts of interests

Since 2008 and in satisfaction of a revised requirernent of the Companies Act 2008, all Directors have submitted detalls, to the
Company Secretary, of any curent stuations appomtments or otherwise) which may give nse to a conflict or potential conflict of
interest These were reviewed by the Board and the Board identified those which required further consideration and, If appropnate,
approval Followang consideration, the Board approved the conflict or potential confiict matters, subject to the condition that the
Drrectors concemed abstain from participating in any discussion or decision affected by the conflict matter In each case,
authonsation was given by Directors who were genuinely independent of the conflict matter A record of all authonsations s
maintaned by the Company Secretary and will be reviewed by the Board twice a year All Directors are required to notrfy the
Company Secretary of any changes to therr registered interests, Including new potential conficts of nterest

Directors’ interests in shares

The interests of the Directors in the share capital of the Company at the beginning and end of the year are set out below

At 1 January 2010

At 31 December 2010 or as at date of appointment
Number of Number of Nurber of Number of
ordinary shares ordinary shares ordinary shares ordinary shares
Beneficial Non-Beneficial Beneficial Non-Beneficial
Executive Directors
Mike Noms 1,385,658 - 1,385,658 -
Tony Conophy 2,175,905 - 2,175,905 -
Non-Executive Directors
Greg Lock 350,000 - 350,000 -
Philip Hulme: 18,291,770 10,143,921 19,291,770 9,143,921
lan Lews 45,000 - 45,000 -
Peter Ogden 35,335,636 979,166 35,335,636 979,166
John Ormerod 25,000 - 15,000 -
Chff Preddy* 14,166 - 14,166 -

1 Clff Preddy stepped down from the Board on 14 May 2010, his share nterests are as at date of lkaving
Between 31 December 2010 and 9 March 2011 there have been no changes to the nterests detaled above

Major interests in shares

In addition to the Directors’ interests set out above, as at 9 March 2011, the Company had been notrfied, in accordance with the
Financial Services Authonty's Disclosure and Transparency Rules, of the following substantial interests in the Company's issued

ordinary share capital
Number % of
of ordinary ssued
shares held share caprtal
Standard Life Investments Ltd 11,281,778 733
Investec Asset Management Ltd 7,658,451 500
JP Morgan Asset Management Holdings Inc 7,647,154 499
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Capital structure
As at 10 March 2011, there were 153 8 million fully paid ordinary shares in issue, all of which have full voting nghts and there are
no restrictions on the transfer of shares

Pursuant to the Company’s share schemes, there are two employee trusts which, as at the year-end, held a total of 5,393,341
ordinary shares of 6 pence each, representing 3 5 per cent of the issued share capital Dunng the year the Trusts purchased a total
of 808,290 shares The voting nghts attached to these shares are not exercisable directly by the employees, but are exercisable

by the Trustees However, n line with good practice, the Trustees do not exercise these voting nghts

In the event of another company taking control of the Company, the employee share schernes operated by the Company have

set change of control provisions  Participants may, In certain circumstances, be allowed to exchange their options for options of an
equivalent value over shares in the acquinng company Altematively, the options may vest early, in which case, early vesting under
the executve schemes will be pro-rated accordingly and under the Sharesave scheme, employees wilk only be able to exercise the
option, to the extent of their accumulated saving

The Company was granted aithonty at the 2010 AGM, to make market purchases of up to 15,384,979 ordinary shares of 6
pence each This authonty will expire at the 2011 AGM, where approval from shareholders will be sought to renew the authorty
Dunng the penod 115,371 ardinary shares of 6 pence each were purchased for cancellation, at a total cost of £447,617

This represented O 75 per cent of the 1ssued share capital of the Company

Significant agreements and relationships

The Group has vanous borrowing facilities provided pnmanly by Barclays Bank ple, the most signfficant of which is a £60 milion
secured credit facility signed in May 2008 Further details regarding the status of these facilities and their renewal considerations,

In hght of the Groups current balance sheet strength, are provided in the Finance Director's Review on pages 18 10 21 These
agreements nclude a change of control provision, which may resuft in the facility being withdrawn or amended upon a change of
control of the Group In addition to financing arrangements, the Board considers that there are a number of major product suppliers
who are significant to the business, namely HP, IBM, Cisco, Microsoft, Oracle and Lenovo

Creditors’ payment policy

The Company does not hold any trade creditor balances However, it 1s the policy of the Group that each of the businesses should
agree appropnate terms and conditions with suppliers (ranging from standard written terms to ndmdually negotiated contracts) and
that payment should be in accordance with those terms and conditions, provided that the supplier has also complied with them
Group creditor days amounted to 50 (2008 46}

Financial instruments
The Group’s financial nsk management objectives and policies are discussed in the Finance Director's Review on pages 18 to 21

Employee share schemes

The Company operates executive share option schemes and a performance-related option scheme for the benefit of employees
Dunng the year, as in the previous year, no options over ordinary shares of 6 pence each were granted under the executive share
option schemes

At the year-end, options remained outstanding under these schemes, In respect of a total of 2,162,756 ordinary shares of 6
pence each (2009 2,714,756 shares) During the year, 267,000 options over shares were exercised and optons over 285,000
shares lapsed

The Company also cperates a Performance Share Plan (PSP') to incentmise employees Dunng the year, 1,195,677 ordinary
shares of 6 pence each were conditionally awarded (2008 3,028,337 shares) At the year-end, awards over 5,249,112 shares
remaned outstanding, under this scheme (2009 5,053,973 shares) Dunng the year, awards over 850,791 shares were transferred
to participants and awards over 149,747 shares lapsed

In addition, the Company operates a Sharesave scheme for the benefit of employees At the year-end 2,758,808 options granted
under the Sharesave scheme remained outstanding (2009 2,595,964)

Corporate sustainable development

The Board recognises that acting in a socially responsible way benefits the community, our customers, shareholders, the
environment and employees allke Further information can be found in the Corperate Sustainable Development Report on
pages 24 to 27

Health, safety and environment

It rermains the policy of the Group that each busiress maintains the high standards necessary to safeguard the health and safety
of ts employees, customers, contractors and the public This commitment 1s formally contained in the Health and Safety Policy
Statement, which 1s avallable from the Company's website at www computacenter comvcorporate-responsibilty or upon request
The Group's Health, Safety and Environment ('HSE’) Department monitors and reviews all procedures and policies, utilising the
adwvice of external consultants, where necessary, In order to ensure that management systerns comply with cumrent legal
requirements Further objectives in relation to the mantenance of appropnate health, safety and environment standards,

are detaled in the Corporate Sustanable Development Report on pages 24 to 27
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Directors’ report continued

Equal opportunities

The Group acknowledges the importance of equality and diversity and 1s committed to equal opportunities The Group monitors
and regularly reviews policies and practices to ensure that it meets current legislative requirements, as well as Computacenter's
own intemal standards The Group 1s committed to making full use of the talents and resources of all its employees and to provide
a healthy environment that encourages productive and mutually respectful working relationiships within the organisation Policies
dealing with equal opporturuties are n place in all parts of the Group, which take account of the Group's overall commitment and
also addresses local regulatory requirements Further information can be found in the Corporate Sustainable Development Report
on pages 24 to 27

Employee involvement

Computacenter remains committed to involng all employees in significant business issues, particularty matters which affect their
work and working environment Employee involvement 1s undertaken through a vanety of methods including team brefings,
intranet, electromic mail and in-house publications The pnmary method 1s through team brefings where managers are tasked with
ensunng that mformation shanng, discussion and feedback happen on a regular basis Employee consultative forums exist in each
couniry to consult staff on major issues affecting employment and matters of policy and to enable managerment to seek the views
and opinions of employees on a wide range of business matters Should there be transnational 1ssues to discuss a facility exists

to engage a European forum made up of representatives from country forums

Performance and personal development

The Group 1s committed to the development of its employees through a regular performance review process Managers are
responsible for setting and reviewing personal objectives, aligned to corporate and functional goals Performance s reviewed
agamnst behavioural standards appropnate to job level, with agreement on appropriate training and development interventions

and through discussing career aspirations The Board closely oversees and monitors management development and the availability
of the required skills to meet the current and future management needs of the Group At dvisional and functional level, review
processes exist to ensure that there s breadth and depth of management talent throughout the business The UK business retains
its Investor in People status The Board also directly monitors and reviews progress on succession and development plans of key
senor managerment

Computacenter’s reward strategy Is reviewed regularly and continues to emphasise performance-related pay, particularty for more
senior managers, with bonus payments aligned to financial performance

Key performance indicators (‘KPIs’)

Performance and operational KPIs can be found within the strategy spread at the front of the report and accounts The Board
considers employee-dnven attntion rates as a KPI in relation to employee 1ssues For the year ended 31 December 2010, this figure
was 7 78 per cent (2009 6 14 per cent) Further KPIs on employee and environmental matters can be found within the Corporate
Sustainable Development Report on pages 24 to 27

Workplace

Intemational human nghts obligations and intemational employment laws are met through a broad range of policies across
the Group These ensure that, for example, employees are not subject to discnmination, arbitrary or unjust dismissal or unjust
application of wage rates Further information on this can be found in the Corporate Sustanable Development Report on
pages 24 to 27

Business ethics

An ethtcs policy 1s operated by the Group, which commits Computacenter employees to the highest standards of ettucal behawvour
in respect of customers, suppliers, colleagues and other stakeholders in the business The policy includes a requirement for all
employees to report abuses or non-conformance with the policy (‘whistle-blowing’) and sets out the procedures to be followed
The Group has additionally adopted a Code of Ethics specifically aimed at the prevention of tnbery

Community relations and chantable activities

The Group supports community and chantable projects as part of its commitment to corporate social responsibility and
encourages Its employees to support such projects It also organises and supports ad hoc chantable fundraising events

In addition, the donation of IT equipment to schools and other chantable causes 1s a feature of the Group’s recycling progranmes
Further information on the Group's community intiatves can be found within the Corporate Sustanable Development Report on
pages 24 to 27 In 2010 the Group made chantable donations amounting to £115,000 (2009 £100,050)

Dunng the year the Group did not make any political donations to any poltical party, or other political organisation and did not incur
any poliical expenditure within the meaning of Sections 362 to 379 of the Companies Act 2008

Going concern
The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting in prepanng the annual financial statements

Auditor
Emst & Young LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office as auditor and a resclution approving the re-appontrment
of Emst & Young LLP as the Company's auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
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Directors’ responsibilities
Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable company

law and those Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

The Directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present farly the financial posttion of the
Company and of the Group and the results and cash flows of the Group for that penod In prepanng the financial statements,
the Drrectors are required to

select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistenty,
make judgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures being disclosed and
explaned in the accounts, and

» prepare the accounts on a gong concem basis, unless it 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Group or Company will continue
In its business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the
financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 2006 and Article 4
of the |AS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence, taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulanties

Disclosure of information to auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a Oirector at the date of approval of this report confirms that

+ {0 the best of each Director's knowledge and belef, there 1s no information relevant to the preparaticn of their report of which
the Group's auditors are unaware, and

+ each Director has taken all steps a Director mught reasonably be expected to have taken, to be aware of relevant audt
information and to establish that the Group’s auditors are aware of that information

Directors’ responsibility statement

« The financial statements, prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the EU,
give a true and farr view of the assets, labilities, financial position and profit for the Company and undertakings ncluded in
the consalidation taken as a whole, and

» Pursuant to the Disclosure and Transparency Rules the Company's annual report and accounts nclude a far review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, together with a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties that they face

On behalf of the Board

WL Mgy 6ol

Mike Norris Tony Conophy
Chief Executive Finance Director
g March 2011
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Independent auditor’s report to the
members of Computacenter pic

We have audited the Group financial statements of Computacenter pic for the year ended 31 December 2010 which compnse the
Consoldated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Staternent and the related notes 1 to 33 The financial
reporting framework that has been applied i ther preparation 1s applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
('IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union

This report 1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Comparues Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiity to anyone other than the Company and the Compary's members as a body, for our audt work, for this repont, or for
the opinicns we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explaned more fully n the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 45, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Group financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility 1s to audit
and express an opinion on the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audtt nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements suificient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial staternents are free from matenal misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's circumstances and have been consistently appled
and adeguately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial staterments

Opinion on financia! statements

In our opinion the Group financial statements

« (e a true and far view of the state of the Group's affars as at 31 December 2010 and of its profit for the year then ended,
« Have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and

« Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the nformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Group financial statements are
prepared 1S consistent with the Group financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you ff, In our opinion

» Certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
*  We have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

« The Drrectors’ statement, set out on page 44, in relation to going concern, and

e The part of the Corporate Governance Staternent relating 1o the Company's compliance with the mine provisions of the
June 2008 Combined Code specified for our review, and

« Certan elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on Directors' remuneration

Other matter

We have reported separately on the Parent Company financial statements of Computacenter plc for the year ended 31 Decemnber
2010 and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is descnbed as having been audred

| P iy 1P

Nick Powell (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London
9 March 2011

458 Computacenter pkc Annual Report and Accounts 2010




Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2000
Note £'000 £'000
Revenue 3 2,676,495 2,503,198
Cost of sales (2,310,682) (2,153,395)
Gross profit 365,813 349,803
Distnbution costs (18,978) (19,032)
Administrative expenses (280,288) (272,876)
Operating profit: 4
Before amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional items 66,547 57,895
Arnortisation of acquired intangibles (655) 517}
Exceptional tems 5 - {5,299
Operating profit 65,892 52,079
Finance income 7 2,329 1,307
Finance costs 8 {2,823) {4,977)
Profit before tax:
Before amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional items 66,053 54,225
Amortisation of acqured intangibles (655) (517)
Exceptional tems - (5,299)
Profit before tax 65,398 48,409
Income tax expense:
Before exceptional tems (15,078) (12,113)
Tax on exceptional tems 5 - 1,415
Income tax expense ] {(15,078) {10,698)
Profit for the year 50,320 37,711
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 10 50,321 37,703
Non-controling interests (1) 8
50,320 37,711

Earmings per share 10
— basic 34.1p 257p
- diluted 32.6p 249p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
£°000 £:000

Profit for the year 50,320 37,711
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (4,076) (10,173)
Total comprehensive income for the period 46,244 27,538
Equity holders of the parent 46,250 27,543
Non-controling interests (6) (5}
46,244 27,538
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Notes £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 12 88,882 105,290
intangble assets i3 78,531 72,965
Investment in associate 15 47 57
Deferred ncome tax asset 9 15,577 16,444
183,037 194,756
Current assets
[nventones 17 81,569 67,086
Trade and other recenvables 18 471,133 475,646
Prepayments 44,219 55,785
Accrued income 39,971 29,538
Forward currency contracts 24 562 726
Cash and short-term deposits 19 159,269 108,017
796,723 736,798
Total assets 979,760 931,554
Current liabilitles
Trade and other payables 20 440,790 378,929
Deferred income 100,840 123,861
Financial babilties 21 37,936 48,647
Income tax payable 5,941 3,815
Provisicns 23 2,644 2,202
588,151 557,454
Non-current liabilities
Financial labilities 21 10,320 22,022
Provisicns 23 10,749 11,605
Other non-current liabilties - 227
Deferred income tax liabilities 9 o978 1,674
22,047 35,528
Total liabilities 610,198 592,882
Net assets 369,562 338,572
Capital and reserves
Issued capital 26 9,233 9,186
Share premium 26 3,697 2,929
Capital redemption reserve 26 74,957 74,950
Own shares held 26 (10,146) (9,657)
Forexgn currency transiation reserve 26 12,137 16,208
Retaned earmings 279,674 244,940
Shareholders’ equity 369,552 338,556
Non-controlling interests 10 16
Total equity 369,562 338,572

Approved by the Board on 9 March 2011

b, Guni

MJ Norris FA Conophy
Chief Executive Finance Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2010

Atirbutable to equity holdars of the parent

Forexgn

Capxtal Own cumency Norn-

lssued Share  redermnption shares translaton  Retaned controling Total

capial premwm reserve held resgrve eamnNgs Total wterests equty

£'000 £000 £:000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £:000
At 1 January 2010 9,186 2,929 74,950 (9,657) 16,208 244,940 338,556 16 338,572
Profit for the year - - - - - 50321 50,321 (1} 50,320
Other comprehensive iIncome - - - - {(4,071) - (4,071} &)y (4.,076)
Total comprehensive ncome - - - - {4,071) 50321 46,250 6) 46,244
Cost of share-based payments - - - - - 2,620 2,620 - 2,620
Deferred tax on share-based
payment transactions - - - - - 789 789 - 789
Exercise of ophions 46 264 - 1,563 - (1,563) 310 - 310
Issue of share capital 8 504 - - - - 512 - 512
Purchase of own shares - - - (2,501) - - {2,501) - (2,501)
Cancellation of own shares ] - 7 449 - {449) - - -
Equity dvidends - - - - - (16,984) (16,984) - (16,984)
At 31 December 2010 9,233 3,697 74,957 (10,146} 12,137 279,674 369,552 10 369,562
At 1 January 2009 9,181 2,800 74,950 {11,169) 26,368 218,970 321,190 21 321,211
Profit for the year — - - - - 37,708 37,703 8 37,711
Other comprehensive ncome - - - - (10,180) - (10,160) (13) (10,173)
Total comprehensive income - - - - (10,180y 37,7083 27,543 5 27,538
Cost of share-based payments - - - - - 2,555 2,555 - 2,555
Deferred tax on share-based
payment transactions - - — - - 298 298 - 298
Exercise of options 5 39 - 2,072 - (2,072) 44 - 44
Purchase of own shares - - - (560) - - (560} - {560)
Equity dvidends - - - - - {12514} (12,514} - (12,514)
At 31 December 2009 9,186 2,929 74,950 (9,657) 16,208 244,940 338,556 16 338,572
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Notes £'000 £'000

Operating activities
Profit before taxation 65,398 48,409
Net finance costs 494 3,670
Depreciation 12 31,722 35,326
Amortisation 13 6,550 4,631
Share-based payments 2,620 2,555
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 815 23
Profit on disposal of business 5 - (1,879)
{Increase)/decrease In inventones (16,400} 34,126
(Increase)/decrease In trade and other recevables {3,660) 52,348
Increase In trade and other payables 46,435 10,960
Other adustrments (49} 283
Cash generated from operations 133,925 190,452
Income taxes paid {(11,281) (17,500)
Net cash flow from operating activities 122,644 172,952
Investing activities
Interest recenved 2,284 1,717
Acquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acquired 16 - (9.742)
Proceeds from sale of business 5 - 2,982
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 372 7
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (12,856) (9,511}
Purchases of intangible assets (12,774) {11,790}
Net cash flow from investing activities {22,974) (26,337)
Financing activities
Interest pad (3,200} (4,540)
Dradends paid to equity shareholders of the parenit 1 {16,984) {12,514)
Proceeds from share issues 822 44
Purchase of own shares {2,501) {560)
Repayment of capital element of finance leases {20,641) {20,956)
Repayment of ioans (12,622) {40,248)
New borrowings 5,957 16,357
Increase/(decrease) in factor financing 1,568 {25,600)
Net cash flow from financing activities {47,601) {88,017)
Increase In cash and cash equivalents 52,069 58,598
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents (1,090) (533)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 19 104,954 46,889
Cash and cash equivalents at the year-end 19 155,933 104,954
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

1 Authorisation of financia! statements and statement of compliance with IFRS

The consolidated financial statements of Computacenter plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 were authonsed for ssue
In accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 9@ March 2011 The balance sheet was signed on behalf of the Board by
MJ Noms and FA Conophy Computacenter plc s a imited company incorporated and domiciled in England whose shares
are publicly traded

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Finanaial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS?),
as adopted by the European Unicn as they apply to the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 Decermber 2010
and applied in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial staterments are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000) except
when otherwise indicated

Basis of consolidation

The consoldated financial statements compnse the financial statements of Computacenter plc and its subsidianes as at

31 December each year The financial statements of subsidianes are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent
company, using existing GAAP in each country of operation Adjustments are made on consalidation translating any differences
that may exist between the respectve local GAAPs and IFRS

All intra-group balances, transactions, Income and expenses and profit and losses resulting from intra-group transactions have
been eliminated in full

Subsidianes are consclidated from the date on which the Group obtains control and cease to be consolidated from the date
on which the Group no fonger retains control

Non-cortroling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidianes that 1s not held by the Group and
15 presented separately within equrty in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from parent shareholders’ equity

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations dunng the year Except as noted below,
adoption of these standards did not have any effect on the financial performance or position of the Group They did however give
nse to additenal disclosures The other pronouncements which came into force dunng the year were not relevant to the Group

IFRS 3 {revised} Business Combinations

IFRS 3 {(Revised) introduces significant changes in the accounting for business combinations |t requires that all acquisttion refated
costs are expensed in the period incurred rather than included n the cost of the iInvestment, that changes to the contingent
consideration following a business combination are shown in the statement of comprehensive income instead of adjusting goodwill
and that changes to deferred tax assets relating to business combinations are only reflected within goodwaill if they occur within the
measurement penod The Group has appled IFRS 3 {Revised) with effect from 1 January 2010 Dunng the penod the Group
recognised the benefit of tax losses of £1 7 millon attnbutable to an acquisition completed in a previous penod The impact Is included
within current Income tax expense Had the standard not been adopted, an adjustment to goodwill would have been required

IAS 27 (amended) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

The amended standard requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary {without loss of control) 1Is accounted for as
a transaction with owners In therr capacity as owners and these transactions will no longer give nse to goodwill or gains and losses
The standard also specfiies the accounting when control 1s lost and any retaned interest 1s remeasured to far value with gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss
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2 Summary of significant accounting policles continued

Improvements to IFRS

In May 2009 the IASB i1ssued its second omnibus of amendments to its standards, pnmanly with a view to removing
nconsistencies and clanfying wording The adoption of the amendments did not have any impact on the financial posttion
or performance of the Group

New standards and interpretations not yet effective

Dunng the year, the IASB and IFRIC have issued the followang standards and interpretations which are expected to have
implications for the reporting of the financial pesrtion or performance of the Group or which may require addibional disclosures
in future financial years

IAS 24 Redated Party Disclosures f{Amendment) (effectve* 1 January 2011)

The amended standard clanfied the defintion of a refated party to simplfy the dentfication of such relationships and to elminate
inconsistencies in its applicaticn The revised standard introduces a partial exemption of disclosure requirements for govemment
reflated entties The Group does not expect any impact on its financial position or performance

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Classification and Measuremnent (effective* 1 January 2013)

IFRS 9 as 1ssued reflects the first phase of the IASB’s work on the replacement of IAS 33 and applies to classification and
rmeasurement of financial assets as defined in IAS 39 In subsequent phases, the IASE will address classrication and measurement
of financial iabities, hedge accounting and derecogniton The adoption of the first phase of IFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets The Group will quantfy the effect in conjunction with the other
phases, when issued, to present a comprehensive picture

Improvements to IFRS (fssued in May 2010)

The Group expects no impact from the adoption of the amendments on its financial position or performance

*  The effectve dates stated above are those given in the onginal IASBAFRIC standards and interpretabons. As the group prepares its financial statements in
acocordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union (EU), the applicaton of new standards and interpratations will be subject to therr hawng been endorsed

for usa in tha B via the B endorsement mechanism In the majonty of cases this will resutt in an effectve date consstent with that gven in the onginal standard
or nterpretation but the need for endorsement restncts the group™s discretion 10 earty adopt standards

Critical judgments and estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgments on how to apply the Group's
accounting policies and make estimates about the future Due to the Inherent uncertainty N making these cntical judgments
and estimates, actual outcomes could be different

The mere significant jJudgments and estimates, where a nsk exists that a matenal adjustment to the camying value of assets
and kabities N the next financial year could occur, relate to

* revenue recognition where, on a limited number of support and managed services contracts, an estimate of the total contract
costs I1s required to determine the stage of completion,

+ estimation of residual value of assets owned to support certain contracts,

« imparment of intangible assets and goodwill, which 1s based upon estimates of future cash flows and discount rates for the
relevant cash-generating unis,

+ recognition of deferred tax assets In respect of losses camed forward, which are dependent upon estmates of future profitability
of certan Group companies, and

» other estimated tax posttions, where the decisions of tax authonties are uncertain

Further information s provided within this note summansing significant accounting policies, and notes 9 and 14 to the
financial statements

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment I1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated imparment losses

Depreciation, down to residual value, 1s calcutated on a straight-ine basis over the estimated useful Ife of the asset as follows

Freehold buldings 25-50 years

Short leasehold improvements shorter of 7 years and penod to expriry of lease
Fixtures and fittings

- Head office 5-15 years

- COther shorter of 7 years and period to expriry of lease
Office machinery, computer hardware 2-15 years

Motor vehicles 3 years

Freehold land 1s not depreciated An tem of property, plant and equipment 1s derecogrised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to anse from the contmued use of the asset Any gain or 10ss ansing on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the tem) 1s Included in the Income
staternent in the year the tern i1s derecognised
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Leases

Assets held under finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially ali the nsks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased ttem, are caprialised at the nception of the lease at the far value of the leased asset or, f lower, at the present value of the
minmum lease payments Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaning balance of the hability Finance charges are charged directly aganst incorme

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful e of the asset and the lease term

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the ncome statement on a straght-line basis over the lease term

Intangible assets

Software and software licences

Software and software licences include computer software that s not integral to a related tem of hardware These assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any iImparment in value Amertisation 1s cakculated on a straight-line basis over
the estmated useful Ife Currently software 1s amortised over four years

The carrying values of software and software icences are reviewed for mpaiment when events or changes in crcumstances
indicate that the carmying value may not be recoverable If any such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amount, the assets are wrtten down to their recoverable amount

Software under development
Costs that are incurred and that can be specffically aftnbuted to the development phase of management information systems
for ntemal use are capitalised and amortised over therr useful Ife, once the asset becomes avaliable for use

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business are carmed intially at far value Following inihial recognition intangible assets are
carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses Intangible assets with a fintte Iife have no
residual value and are amortised on a straight-ine basis over ther expected useful Ives with charges included in administrative
expenses as follows

Existing customer contracts 5 years
Existing customer relationships 10 years
Tools and technology 7 years

The carrying value of intangible assets 1s reviewed for mparment whenever evenis or changes in circumstances indicate the
carmying value may not be recoverable

Goodwill

Busmess combinations on or after 1 January 2004 are accounted for under IFRS 3 (Revised) using the purchase method Any
excess of the cost of the business combination aver the Group's Interest in the net farr value of the iIdentfiable assets, llabilihies and
contingent habites 1s recogrised In the balance sheet as goodwill and 1s not amortised Goodwil recognised on acquISILIoNs prior
to 1 January 2004, the date of transition to IFRS, 1s recorded at its amortised cost at transtion to IFRS and 1s no longer amortised
Any goodwill asset ansing on the acquisition of equity accounted entiies 1s included within the cost of those entities

After intial recognition, goodwill is stated at cost less any accumutated impairment losses, with the carmying value being
reviewed for impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be imparred

For the purpose of mpamment testing, goodwill is allocated to the related cash-generating units montored by management, usually
at business segment level or statutory company level as the case may be Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit s less than its carrying amount, Including goodwill, an impaiment loss 1S recogrised in the Income staterment

Goodwill ansing en acquisitions prior to 31 December 1997 remans set off directly against reserves even if the related investment
becomes imparred or the business Is disposed of

Impairment of assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be imparred If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset 1s required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount
Where an asset does not have independent cash flows, the recoverable amount is assessed for the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs The recoverable amount i1s the hugher of the farr value less costs to sell and the value in use of the asset or cash-
generating unit Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 1s considered impaired and 1s
written down to its recoverable amount In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme value of money and the nsks specific to the
asset Imparment losses of continuing operations are recognised i the income statement N those expense categones consistent
with the function of the iImparred asset

Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised at therr fair value which inhally equates to the consideration given plus directly attnbutable
transaction costs associated with the investment
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2 Summary of significant accounting policles continued

Inventories

Inventones are camed at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value after malang allowance for any cbsolete
or slow-mowving tems Costs include those incurred in binging each product to its present location and condition, on a first-in,
first-out basis

Net realisable value 1s the estmated selling pnce In the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale

Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables, which generally have 30-90 day terms, are recognised and camed at therr onginal nvoice armount less an
allowance for any uncollectable amounts An estmate for doubtful debts 1s made when collection of the full amount 15 no longer
probable Batances are wntten off when the probability of recovery is assessed as being remote

Receivables subject to factoring arrangement

Some of the Group’s trade recevables are subject to factonng arrangements These transactions do not meet IAS 39's
requirements for derecognition, since the nsks and rewards have not been substantially transferred  All recevables sold through
factonng transactions which do not meet the 1AS 38 derecognition cntena continue to be recognised in full in the Group financial
statements even though they are legally subject tc the factonng amangement, a corresponding liabilty 1s recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet as 'Factor Financing' Gains and losses relating to the sale of such assets are not recognised

untd the assets are derecognised

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet compnse cash at bank and in hand and short-term deposits with an onginal
maturity of three months or less

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits
as defined above, net of outstanding bark overdrafts

Interest-bearing borrowings
All borrowings are intially recognised at far value less directly attnbutable transaction costs Borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense when incurred

After initial recognition, Interest-beanng borowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectrve interest
method Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs and any discount or premium on settlernent

De-recognition of financial assets and habilities

Financia! assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of smilar financial assets} 18
de-recognised where

« the nghts to receve cash flows from the asset have expired,

= the Group retains the nght to recenve cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an cbligaticn to pay them in full
without matenal delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement, or

= the Group has transferred its nghts to receive cash flows from the asset and erther {g) has transferred substantially all the
nsks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has nerther transferred nor retained substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset

Financial kabilitres
A financal habilty 1s de-recognised when the obligation under the liabilty 1s discharged or cancelled or exprres

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its nsks associated with foreign currency fluctuations Forward
contracts are Intially recognised at farr value an the date that the contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at far
value at each reporting date The farr value of ferward currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange
rates for contracts with similar matunty profiles Forward contracts are recorded as assets when the farr value i1s positve and as
llabiies when the far value 1s negative

Any gains or losses ansing from changes in far value on forward contracts are taken directly to the income statement
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Foreign currency translation

The Group's presentation currency 1s Pounds Sterling (£) Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
rtems included in the financial statemenits of each entity are measured using that functonal currency  Transactions in fareign
currencies are nitially recorded in the functional cunmency at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets
and labites denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date All differences are taken to the censclhidated income statement

Non-monetary terns that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
as at the date of inttial transaction

The functional currencies of the overseas subsidianes are Eure (€), US dollar (US$) and South Afncan rand ZAR) As at the
reporting date, the assets and liabilties of these overseas subsidianes are translated o the presentation currency of the Group
at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and therr ncome statements are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year Exchange difierences arsing on the retranslation are recognised in the consolidated staterment of comprehensive
ncome On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in the consoldated staterment of
comprehensive Income refating to that particular foreign operation 1s recognised in the income statement

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estmate can be
made of the amount of the obligation

If the effect of the time value of money I1s matenal, provisicns are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropnate, the risks specific to
the labilty Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of ttime 1s recognised as a borrowing cost

Taxation

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and pnor penods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
pad to the tax authonties The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantvely
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is recogrised on all temporary dfferences ansing between the tax bases of assets and llabilties and therr
carrying amounts i the financial statements, with the following exceptions

s where the temporary difference anses from the initial recognition of goodwaill or from an asset or hiabiity in a transaction that
1S not a business combination that at the tme of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,

+ inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with mvestments in subsidianes, associates and jomt ventures, where
the tming of the reversa! of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, and

+ deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be avalable aganst which
the deductible temporary differences, camed forward tax credits or fax losses, can be utilised

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related asset 1s realised or lability 1s settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Income tax 1s charged or credited directly to the statement of comprehensive income If 1t relates to tems that are credrted
or charged to the statement of comprehensive Income Otherwise Income tax 1s recognised in the income statement

VAT
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT except

» where the VAT incurred on a purchase of goods and serices i1s not recoverable from the taxation authonty, n which case
the VAT 1s recogrised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense tem as applicable, and
= trade recevables and payables are stated with the amount of VAT included

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authonty 1s included as part of recevables or payables
in the balance sheet
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2 Summary of significant accounting pelicies continued

Revenue

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can
be rehably measured Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration recenved, excluding discounts and rebates
gnven to customers, VAT and other sales tax or duty The following spectfic recognition critena must also be met before revenue
15 recognised

Product
Revenue 1s recognised when the signficant nsks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on
dispatch of goods

Professional Sennces

Revenue 1s recognised when recevable under a contract following delvery of a service or in line with the stage of work completed
The stage of completion is determined by reference to the costs Incurred as a proportion of the total estimated costs of the
contract and unbilled revenue 1s recognised within accrued income |If the total estmated costs and revenues of a contract cannot
be relably estimated, revenue Is recognised only to the extent that costs have been incurred A provision 1s made as soon as aloss
1s foreseen

Support and Managed Services

Contracted service revenue Is recognised on a percentage of completion basis Usually revenue 1s recogrised on a straight-line
basis, when this i1s representative of the stage of completion of an mdvidual contract Unrecognised contracted revenue 1s mcluded
as deferred income n the balance shest Amounts invoiced refating to more than one penod are deferred and recognised over therr
relevant Ife

On a limrted number of Support and Managed Service contracts recognising revenue on a straght-ine basis 1s not representative
of the stage of completion On these contracts, the stage of completion 1s determined by reference to the costs incurred as a
proportion of the total estimated costs of the contract and unbilled revenue 1s recognised within accrued income  If a contract
cannot be refiably estimated revenue 1s recogrised only to the extent that costs have been incurred A provision 1s made as soon
as a loss 1s foreseen

Where a contract contans several elements, the indvidual elements are accounted for separately where appropnate

Finance income
Income 1s recognised as interest accrues

Dmdends
Dndend income 1s recognised when the Group's nght to recenve payment is established

Operating leases
Rental ncome ansing from operating leases 18 accounted for on a straight-ine basis over the lease term

Pensions and other post-employment benefits

The Group operates a defined contnbution scheme avallable to all UK employees Contrnibutions are recognised as an expense
In the Income statement as they become payable n accordance with the rules of the scheme There are no material pension
schemes within the Group's overseas operations

Exceptional items

The Group presents as exceptional tems on the face of the Income staternent, those matenal items of Income and expense
which, because of the nature and expected infrequency of the events gving nse to them, ment separate presentation to allow
shareholders to understand better elements of financial performance n the year, so as to facilitate companson with prior penods
and to assess better trends in financial performance
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2010

2 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Share-based payment transactions
Employees (including Executive Directors) of the Group can receve remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services in exchange for shares or nghts over shares (‘equity-settled transactions’)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees 1s measured by reference to the farr value of the award at the date at which
they are granted The far value s determined by utiising an appropnate valuaton model, further details of which are grven in note
27 Invalung equity-settled transachons, no account 1s taken of any performance conditions as none of the conditions set are
market-related ones

The cost of equity-settled transactions 1s recogrused, together with a corresponding increase In equity, over the penod in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfiled, ending on the date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (‘'vesting date’) The cumulative expense recognised for equity-setftled transactions at each reporting date, until the vesting
date, reflects the extent to which the vesting penod has expired and the Directors’ best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultmately vest The income statement charge or credit for a pencd represents the movement in cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that penod As the schemes do not include any market-related performance
condtions, No expense is recognised for awards that do not ufimately vest

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are medffied, as a minimum, an expense 1s recognised as if the terms had not been
modified In addition, an expense 1s recognised for any modffication, which increases the total far value of the share-based
payment arrangement, or I1s otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modrfication

Where an equity-settled award 1s cancelled, 1t 1s treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately However, if a new award 1s substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it 1s granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modtication of the onginal award, as descnbed in the previous paragraph

The dilutive effect of outstanding optons is refiected as additional share dilution in the computation of earnngs per share
(see note 10)

The Group has an employee share trust for the granting of non-transferable opttons to executives and senior employees Shares in
the Group held by the employee share trust are treated as investment in own shares and are recorded at cost as a deduction from
equity (see note 26)

Own shares held

Computacenter plc shares held by the Group are classified in shareholders’ equity as ‘own shares held’ and are recognised at
cost Consideration recenved for the sale of such shares 1s also recognised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds
from sale and the onginal cost being taken to revenue reserves No gain or loss 1s recognised In the performance staternents on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of equity shares
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3 Segmental analysis

For management purposes, the Group I1s organised 1nte geographical segments, with each segment determined by the location
of the Group’s assets and operaticns The Group's business in each geography 1s managed separately and held in separate
statutory entities

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the below reportable operating segments

Management monitor the operating results of its geographical segments separately for the purposes of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment Segment performance is evaluated based on adjusted operating profit or loss
which 1s measured differently from operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements At a Group level, however,
management measure performance on adjusted profit before tax Adjusted operating profit or loss takes account of the nterest
paid on customer-speciiic financing ({CSF’) which management consider to be a cost of sale for management reporting purposes
Excluded from adjusted operating profit 1s the amortisation of acquired iIntangibles, excephional items and the transfer of intemal
ERP implementation costs as management do not consider these items when reviewing the undertying performance of a segment

Segmental performance for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 was as follows

UK Gemany France Benelux Total

£'000 2000 £'000 £'000 £'000
For the year ended 31 December 2010
Results
Revenue 1,265,431 1,005,812 359,611 45641 2,676,495
Adjusted gross profit 188,614 131,511 37,815 4,753 363,693
Adjusted net operating expenses (148,277) (111,014) (36,825) (6,150) (299,266}
Adjusted segment operating profit/(loss) 43,337 20,497 990 (397) 64,427
Adjusted net interest 1,626
Adjusted profit before tax 66,053
Other segment information
Capital expenditure
Property, plant and equipment 10,6562 5,967 491 108 17,118
Intangible fixed assets 11,835 701 138 - 12,774
Depreciation 21,142 8,971 491 118 31,722
Amortisation 4,073 2,339 138 - 6,550
Share-based payments 1,918 489 213 - 2,620
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2010

3 Segmental analysis continued

UK Germany France Benetux Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

For the year ended 31 December 2009
Results
Revenue 1,226,917 930,673 319,384 26,224 2,503,198
Adjusted gross profit 181,149 124,395 37,448 2,838 345,830
Adjusted net operating expenses (143,310) {104,831} (40,169} 3,597) (291,907)
Adusted segment operating profit/(loss) 37,839 19,564 (2,721) 759 53,923
Adjusted net interest 302
Adjusted profit before tax 54,225
Other segment information
Capital expenditure
Property, plant and equipment 11,042 8,107 783 118 20,050
Intangible fixed assets 11,891 15,301 71 - 27,263
Depreciation 24,015 10,064 1,118 129 35,326
Amortisation 3,302 1,209 120 - 4,631
Share-based payments 1,893 367 305 - 2,555
Reconciliation of adjusted results
Management review adjusted measures of perfonrmance as shown in the tables above Adjusted profit before tax excludes
exceptonal tems and the amortisation of acquired intangibles as shown below

2010 2009

£'000 £:000
Adjusted profit before tax 66,053 54,225
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {6558) 617
Exceptional tems - {5,299
Profit before tax 65,398 48,409
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3 Segmental analysis continued

Reconciliation of adjusted results continued

Management also review adjusted measures for gross profit, operating expenses, operating profit and net interest, which in
addition takes account of interest costs of CSF within cost of sales (as these are conskdered to form part of the gross profit
performance of a contract) The reconciliation for adjusted operating profit to operating profit, as disclosed in the Consolidated
Income Staterment, 15 as follows

UK Germany France Benelux Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
For the year ended 31 December 2010
Adjusted segment operating profit/{loss) 43,337 20,497 990 (397} 64,427
Add back interest on CSF 1,442 678 - - 2,120
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 519) (136) - - {655}
ERP implermentation costs (4,250) 4,250 - - -
Segment operating profit/{loss) 40,010 25,289 930 (397) 65,892
For the year ended 31 December 2009
Adjusted segment operating profit/loss) 37,839 19,564 2.721) (759) 53,923
Add back interest on CSF 2,921 1,051 - - 3,972
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {(481) {36) - - {517}
Exceptional tems {3,155) (291) {1,613) (240) {5,299}
ERP mplermentation costs (2,728) 2,728 - - -
Segment operating profit/{loss) 34,396 23,0186 (4,334) (999) 52,079

Sources of revenue

Each geographical segment pnncipally consists of a single entity with shared assets, liabities and captal expenditure The Group
has three sources of revenue, which are aggregated and shown in the table below The sale of goods is recorded within product
revenues and the rendenng of services 1s split into Professional and Support and Managed Services

Revenue performance is reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker excluding the UK Trade Distnbution business, wiich was
disposed of on 27 Novermber 2009 The table below reflects revenue performance before and after the impact of the sold business

2010 2000
£000 £'000
Sources of revenue
Product revenue
Ongoing operations 1,888,362 1678613
Trade distnbution - 84,589
Total product revenue 1,888,362 1,763,202
Services revenue
Professional services 192,448 175,364
Support and managed services 595,685 564,632
Total services revenue 788,133 739,896
Total revenue 2,676,495 2,503,198

Information about major customers

Included in revenues ansing from the UK segment are revenues of approximately £311 million (2008 £397 million) which arose
from sales to the Group's largest customer For the purposes of this disclosure a single customer 1s considered to be a group of
entites known to be under common control This customer consists of entrties under control of the UK Govemment, and includes
the Group’s revenues with central govemment, local government and certain govermment controlled banking institutions
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2010

4 Group operating profit

This is stated after charging
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Audtors’ remuneration
Audt of the financial statements 400 416
Other fees to auditors - local statutory audits for subsidianes 31 27
- other services in pursuant of legislation 12 12
- taxation services 68 146
— other services 46 o8
557 699
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 31,722 35,326
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 815 23
Profit on disposal of business, net of goodwill - 1,879
Amortisation of ntangible assets 6,550 4,631
Net foreign currency differences {35) {897)
Costs of nventones recogrnised as an expense 1,696,592 1,588,654
Operating lease payments — minimum lease payments 37,343 40174

In addition to the auditors’ remuneration disclosed above, further costs £139,000 incurred n 2009 in relation to non-audit services
in respect of the acquisition of becom Informationssysteme GmbH were capitalised at 31 December 2009

5 Exceptional items

2010 2008
£1000 £:000
Operating profit
Profit on disposal of business, net of goodwill - 1,879
Restructunng costs - (7,178)
- {5,299)
Income tax
Tax on exceptional tems included in operating profit - 1,415

The prafit on disposal of business of £1,8798,000 arose from the Group disposing of its Trade Distnbution drasion to Ingram Micro in
Novernber 2009 The disposal did not match the cntena of IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations’
as the disposal did not represent a separate major Iine of business or geographical area of operations and hence was not treated
as a discontinued operation The Group recewved consideration of £2,982,000 in cash and cash equivalents, net of costs incurred
In relation to the sale This was offset by the disposal of goodwill associated with the business of £1,002,000 The directly
attnbutable goodwill associated with the Trade Distnbution business onginally arose from the acquisition of Metrologie UK in 1998
Separately, related inventones of £8,574,000 were sold to Ingram Micro at cost

Restructunng costs arose in 2009 from the change programme to reduce costs They included expenses from headcount
recluctions of £5,309,000 and vacant premises costs of £1,869,000
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6 Staff costs and Directors’ emoluments

2010 2009
£000 £:000
Wages and salanes 440,352 427,853
Social secunty costs 67,136 66,407
Share-based payments 2,620 2,555
Pension costs 15,938 16,142
526,046 512957
Share-based payments anse from transactions accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions
The average monthly number of employees dunng the year was made up as follows
2010 2009
No. No
UK 4,947 4,765
Germany 4,169 4,093
France 1,203 1,121
Benelux 195 184
10,514 10,245
7 Finance income
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Bank nterest recenvable 1,878 1,249
Income from investments 451 58
2,329 1,307
8 Finance costs
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Bank loans and overdraits 352 429
Finance charges payable on customer-speciic financing 2,120 3,872
Finance costs on factonng 206 391
Other nterest 145 185
2,823 4,977
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2010

9 Income tax

a) Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2010 2009

£'000 £000
Tax charged in the income statement
Current ncome tax
UK corporation tax 12,917 11,181
Foreign tax 3,306 1,394
Adustments in respect of pror penods (1,682) {853)
Total current income tax 14,541 11,722
Deferred tax
Ongnation and reversal of termporary differences (1,239) (2,284)
Losses utiised 5,535 4,803
Changes in recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets (6,608) (3,691)
Adjustments in respect of pnor penods 2,849 148
Total deferred tax 537 (1,024)
Tax charge in the income statement 15,078 10,688
b} Reconciliation of the total tax charge

2010 2009

£7000 £1000
Accounting profit before iIncome tax 65,398 48,409
At the UK standard rate of corporation tax of 28 O per cent 2009 28 0O per cent) 18,311 13,555
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,446 803
Non-deductible element of share-based payment charge 490 715
Relief on share option gains (607) (364}
Adustments in respect of current income tax of previous penods 1,167 (705}
Higher tax on overseas eamings 110 69
Cther differences 781 (457)
Effect of changes in tax rate 197 -
Current year profits offset aganst brought forward losses (438) -
Capital gan relieved by unrecognised losses brought forward - (835)
Changes in recoverable amounts of deferred tax assets (6,608) (3,691)
Losses of overseas undertakings not available for relief 229 1,609
At effective Income tax rate of 23 1 per cent (2009 22 1 per cent) 15,078 10,698

c) Tax losses

Deferred tax assets of £11 3 milion {2002 £11 4 millon) have been recogrised In respect of losses camed forward

In addiiion, at 31 Decamber 2010, there were unused tax losses across the Group of £171 2 millon (2009 £188 1 rmulion} for
which no deferred tax asset has been recognised Of these losses, £99 4 milkon (2009 £111 1 millon) anse in Germany, albett
a significant proportion have been generated in statutory entities that no longer have signficant levels of trade The remaining

unrecognised tax losses relate to other loss-making overseas subsidianes
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9 Income tax continued

d) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax at 31 December relates to the following

Consolidated balance shest Consolidated income statement

2010 2009 2010 2009
£'000 £'000 £'000 £:000

Deferred income tax kabilities
Accelerated capital allowances 922 438 {752) (250)
Revaluations of foreign exchange contracts to far value 56 - 56
Effect of changes in tax rate on opening hability - - (45) -
Ansing on acquisition - 1,238 - (135)
Gross deferred iIncome tax liabiliies o978 1,674
Deferred income tax assets
Relief on share opton gans 2,266 909 {568) {512)
Other temporary differences 2,049 3,751 1,478 (1,238
Effect of changes in tax rate on opening lability - - 234 —
Revaluations of foreign exchange contracts to far value - (27) {27) -
Losses available for offset aganst future taxable income 11,262 11,423 161 1,111
Farr value adjustrnents on acquisition of subsidiary (note 16} - 388 - -
Gross deferred income tax assets 15,577 16,444
Deferred income tax charge 537 (1,024)
Net deferred income tax asset 14,599 14,770

At 31 December 2010, there was neo recognised or unrecognised deferred income tax liability (2009 £nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted eamings of the Group’s subsidiares as the Group has no liability to additional taxation should such
amounts be remitted due to the avalability of double taxation relef

e) Impact of rate change

The Finance (No 2) Act 2010 reduced the main rate of UK Comporation Tax from 28 per cent to 27 per cent with effect from 1 Apni
2011 The mpact of the new rate is to reduce the UK deferred tax asset by £0 2 milion Additional changes to the main rate of UK
Corporation Tax to reduce the rate by 1 per cent per annum to 24 per cent by 1 Apnl 2014 have been proposed These changes
have not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and consequently are not included in these financial statements
The effect of these proposals would be to reduce the UK net deferred tax asset by £0 2 milicn

10 Earmings per ordinary share

Eamings per share {'EPS’) amounts are calculated by dviding profit atinbutable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year {excluding own shares held)

Diluted earmings per share amounts are calculated by dwviding profit attnbutable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year (excluding own shares held) adjusted for the effect of diutive options

Adjusted basic and adjusted diuted EPS are presented to provide more comparable and representative information Accordingly
the adjusted basic and adjusted diuted EPS figures exclude amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional tems

2010 2009

£'000 £000

Profit attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 50,321 37,703
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 655 517
Tax on amorbisation of acquired mtangbles (187} {145)
Exceptional tems within operating profit - 5,299
Tax on exceptional tems included in profit before tax - {1,415)
Profit before amortisation of acquired intangibles and exceptional items 50,789 41,959
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the vear ended 31 December 2010

10 Eamings per ordinary share continued

2010 2008
000's 000's
Basic weighted average number of shares (excluding own shares held) 147,752 146,918
Effect of difution
Share optons 6,370 4,671
Diluted weighted average number of shares 154,122 151,689
2010 2009
pence pence
Basic earnings per share 34.1 257
Diluted eamings per share 32.6 249
Adjusted basic earmings per share 34.4 2886
Adjusted diuted eamings per share 33.0 277
11 Dividends paid and proposed
2010 2008
£1000 £'000
Declared and pad dunng the year
Equity dvidends on ordinary shares
Final dvidend for 2009 il (2008 5 5 pence) - 8,097
intenm dmdend for 2010 3 5 pence (2009 3 0 pence) 5,173 4,417
Additional iIntenm dvidend for 2009 8 0 pence {2008 nil) 11,811 -
16,984 12,514
Proposed {not recognised as a liability as at 31 December)
Equity dwdends on ordinary shares
Final dvidend for 2010 9 7 pence (2009 nil) 14,926 -
Additional ntenm dividend for 2009 8 0 pence {2008 nif) - 11,863
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures, fithngs,
Freehoid land  Shortleasshold — equipment and
and builkdings  improvements wvehicles Total
£ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2009 67,507 17,629 164,716 249,852
Additions 21 2,991 16,662 19,674
Acquisihon of subsidiary undertaking - - 376 376
Disposals - (123) (16,483) {16.606)
Foreign currency adjustment {97) (1,531) {4,205) {5,833)
At 31 December 2009 67,431 18,966 161,066 247,463
Additions - 2,816 14,302 17,118
Disposals - (1,506) (8,377} {9,883)
Foreign currency adjustment (40} 642) (1,555} (2,237)
At 31 December 2010 67,391 19,634 165,436 252,461
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2009 23,580 8,893 94,064 126,537
Provided dunng the year 2,543 1,850 30,833 35,326
Disposals - (123) (16,453) (16,576)
Foreign currency adjustment (6) {1,128) (1,880} (3.114)
At 31 December 2008 26,117 9,492 106,564 142,173
Provided dunng the year 2,535 2,685 28,502 31,722
Disposals - {1,345) (7,351) (8,896)
Foreign currency adjustment 3 470) (1,147) (1,820)
At 31 December 2010 28,649 10,362 124,568 163,579
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 38,742 9,272 40,868 88,882
At 31 December 2009 41,314 9,474 54,502 105,290
At 1 January 2009 43,927 8,736 70,652 123,315

Included in the figures above are the following amounts relating to leased assets which are used to satisfy specific

customer contracts
Fixtures, fttings, equipment
and vehickes

2010 2009

£'000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 85,651 82,661
Additions 4,262 10,462
Disposals (5,844) {7.472)
At 31 December 84,069 85,651
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 47,579 31,742
Charge for year 18,766 23,309
Disposals (4,884} (7,472
At 31 December 61,461 47,579
Net book value 22,608 38,072
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2010

13 Intangible assets

Cther
ntangible
Goocwil Software assets Total
£'000 2000 £°000 £'000

Cost
At 1 January 2009 30,812 35,131 6,422 72,365
Additions 13,584 11,264 526 25,383
Acquisiion of subsidiary undertaking - 161 1,729 1,880
Disposals (1,002) (131) - (1,133
Foreign currency adjustrnent - (989) 32) (1,020}
At 31 December 2009 43,404 45,426 8,645 97,475
Additions - 12,774 - 12,774
Forexgn currency adjustment {437) (312) 80) {829}
At 31 December 2010 42,967 57,888 8,565 109,420
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2009 - 17,661 3,153 20,814
Charged dunng the year - 4,114 517 4,631
Disposals - (131) - {131}
Foreign cumrency adjustment - (791) (13} (804)
At 31 December 2002 - 20,853 3,657 24,510
Charged dunng the year - 5,801 748 6,550
Foreign currency adjustrnent - (158) (13) (171)
At 31 December 2010 - 26,496 4,393 30,889
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 42,967 31,392 4,172 78,531
At 31 December 2009 43,404 24,573 4,988 72,965
At 1 January 2009 30,812 17,470 3,269 51,551
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14 Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill acquired through business combinations have been allocated to the following cash-generating units

« Computacenter (UK) Limited
« RD Trading
» Computacenter Germany

These represent the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill 1Is monitored for intermal management purposes

Movements in goodwill

Computacenter Computacenter

UK Limtted RD Trading Germany Total

£000 £1000 £000 £'000

1 January 2009 29,977 835 - 30,812
Additions 1,454 - 12,140 13,594
Disposals {1,002) - - (1,002)
31 December 2009 30,429 835 12,140 43,404
Foreign currency adjustment - - (437 {437)
31 December 2010 30,429 835 11,703 42,967

On 27 November 2009, Computacenter UK sold its Trade Distnbution busmess As a consequence, directly atinbutable goodwill
of £1,002,000 was dispesed of, and included within the exceptional profit on disposal of business (note 5) This goodwill arose from

the acquisition of Metrologie UK in 1999

Additions to goodwill n 2009 arose frorm the purchase of becom in Germany on 26 Novernber 2008 and Thesaurus in the UK

on 27 November 2009

The acquired assets and labilities of becom were fully integrated within Computacenter Germany during the first half of 2010
The goodwill ansing on the acquisition 1s tested for mparment against the Computacenter Germany cash-generating unit

The acquired assets and liabilities of Thesaurus were iImmediately integrated within Computacenter {UK) Limited, consequently
the goodwill ansing on the acquistion 1s tested for impaiment aganst the Computacenter (UK} Limited cash-generating urit

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations

The recoverable amounts of all three cash-generating units have been determined based on a value-in-use calculation To calculate
this, cash flow projections are based on financial budgets approved by senior management covenng a three-year penod and on

leng-term market growth rates of 2 5 per cent (2009 2 5 per cent) thereafter

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation for all cash-generating units for 31 December 2010 and 31 December

2009 are
¢ budgeted revenue, which is based on long-run market growth forecasts,

+ budgeted gross margins, which are based on average gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted

year, adjusted for expected long-run market pricing trends, and

» the discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 12 0 per cent (2009 12 0 per cent)

Each cash-generating unit generates value substantially in excess of the carrying value of goodwill attnbuted to each of them
Management therefore believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the camying

value of the unit to matenally exceed is recoverable amount

No impairment provision on goodwill has been required at either 31 December 2010 or at 31 December 2009

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets consist of customer contracts, customer refationships and tools and technology The expected useful lives

are shown nnote 2
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 December 2010

15 Investments
a) Investment in associate

2010 2009
£1000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 57 -
Acquired via subsidiary undertaking - 57
At 31 December 57 57
Impairment
At 1 January - -
Charge for year (10) -
At 31 Decernber (19) -
Carrying value 47 57

Dunng 2009 the Group acquired a 20 per cent interest n Gonicus GrmbH as part of the acquisition of becom Therr pnncipal actvity
i1s the prowision of Open Source Software Gonicus is a private entrty, Incorporated in Germany, that 1s not listed on any public
exchange and therefore there 1s no published quotation pnce for the farr value of this investment The reporting date of Gonicus

1s 31 December An imparment provision of £10,000 (2009 £nif) has been recorded in 2010 as a result of losses expected at

Gonicus GmbH The carrying value of the iInvestment at 31 December 2010 £47,000 (2009 £57,000)

b} Investment in subsidiaries

The Group's pnncipal subsidiary undertakings are as follows

Propertion of voting nghts
and shares held
Country of

Name INCOTporaton Nature of business 2010 2009
Computacenter (UK) Limited England IT Infrastructure serices 100% 100%
Computacenter France SA France IT Infrastructure services 100% 100%
Computacenter Holding GmbH Germany IT Infrastructure serices 100% 100%
Computacenter GrmbH Germany IT Infrastructure services 100% 100%
CC Managed Services GmbH Germany IT Infrastructure services 100% 100%
Computacenter NV/SA Belgium IT Infrastructure services 100% 100%
RD Trading Limited England IT Asset Management 100%* 100%"
Computacenter PSF SA Luxembourg IT Infrastructure services 100% 100%
Computacenter USA USA IT Infrastructure services 100%* 100%"
Computacenter Services (Ibena) SLU Spain International Call Centre Services 100%* 100%™
Digica Group Holdings Limited England  IT infrastructure and application services 100% 100%
Allnet Limited England In-premises cabling services 100% 100%
becom Informationssysterne GmbH Germany IT Infrastructure services 100%** 100%™

*  Includes mdirect holdings of 100 per cent via Computacenter (UK) Limitad
" Includes indrect holdings of 100 per cent via Computacenter Hokding GmbH

Computacenter pic 1s the ulimate parent entity of the Group
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16 Business combinations
becom Informationssysteme GmbH (‘becom’)

On 26 November 2009 the Group acquired 100 per cent of the voting shares of becom for a consideration of €2 O milion

The costs of acquistion amounted to €258,000 becomn 1s based in Germany and s a leading IT infrastructure services provider
The acqguistion has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting The 2009 consolidated financial statements

include the resufts of becom for the one month pencd from the acquistion date
The book and fair values of the net assets at date of acquisttion and at 31 December 2010 were as follows

2009 2010
Provsional Fina
2009 far value far value
Book value to Group to Group
£000 £000 £:000
Intangible assets
Compnsing
Existing custormer relationships - 1,348 1,348
Software 151 151 151
Total ntangible assets 151 1,499 1,499
Property, plant and equipment 376 376 376
Investment In associate 169 64 64
Deferred income tax assets - 388 388
Inventones 275 275 275
Trade and other recevables 13,512 12,220 12,220
Prepayments 9N 91 N
Cash and short-term deposits 286 286 286
Trade and other payables (15,009} (17,706) (17,7086)
Deferred income (110) (110} (110)
Bank overdraft #.a11) {7.111) {7,111}
Deferred tax habilities - {405) (405)
Net liabilities (7,370) (10,133) (10,133)
Goodwill ansing on acquistion 12,140 12,140
2,007 2,007
Discharged by
Cash pad 1,778 1,778
Costs associated with the acquisttion, settled in cash 229 229
2,007 2,007
Cash and cash equivalents acquired
Cash and short-term deposits {286) (286)
Bank overdraft 7111 7,111
Cash outflow on acquisition 8,832 8,832

From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2008, becom contrbuted £12,114,000 to the Group's revenue and £196,000 to the

Group's profit after tax

The provisional and final far values include adjustrments to the book values to recognise addrional accruals for further expected

tax labihes and to reflect the value of the customer relationships acquired with the business At acquisition becorm held vanous
intercompany balances with other companies within the Group of which it was a member As part of the far value calculations

the Group has made provision against these receivables where it does not expect to recover the amounts due Deferred tax assets

anse from the temporary differences on the other far value adjustments

Included in the £12,140,000 of goodwill that arose on acquisition are certain intangible assets that cannot be indvidually separated

and reliably measured from the acquiree due to therr nature These items include the expected value of synergies and an

assembled workforce
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2010

16 Business combinations continued

Thesaurus Computer Services Lirmited (‘Thesaurus’)

On 27 Novermber 2009 the Group acquired certain assets and habilities of Thesaurus from Thesaurus Computer Senvices Limited
and BDO LLP for a consideration of £900,000 The costs of acquisition amounted to £10,000 Thesaurus Is a private company
based in the UK which prondes mainframe service solutions

The book and provisional and final farr values of the assets acquired were as follows

2009 2010

Provisionat Finat

2009 far value far value

Book value to Group to Group

£:000 £'000 £'000

Customer relationships - 381 381
Creditors (146) (146) (1486)
Deferred iIncome (779) {779) {779}
Net liabilties (925) (544) (544)
Goodwill ansing on acquistion 1,454 1,454
910 910

Discharged by

Cash 900 200
Costs associated with the acquisition, settled in cash 10 10
910 910

From the date of acquistion to 31 Decermber 2008, Thesaurus contnbuted £1,003,000 to the Group’s revenue and £52,000
to the Group's profit after tax

Included in the goodwill of £1,454,000 recognised above are certain intangible assets that cannot be ndividually separated and
reliably measured from the acquiree due to ther nature These items include the expected value of synergies and an assembled
workforce

If the acquisiions of becom and Thesaurus had taken place at the beginning of 2009, Group revenues for the year ended
31 December 2009 would have been £2,596,314,000 and profit after tax would have been £27,528,000 In the 11 months pnor
to acquisition in 2009, becom reported a loss of £10,330,000

17 Inventories

2010 2009

£000 £:000
Inventones for re-sale 81,569 67,086
18 Trade and other receivables

2010 2009

£'000 £000
Trade recevables 467,808 473,336
Cther recevables 3,325 2,310

471,133 475546

For terms and conditions relating to refated party recevables, refer to note 32
Trade recenvables are non-interest beanng and are generally on 30-80 day terms
Note 24 sets out the Group's strategy towards credit nsk.
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18 Trade and other receivables continued
The moverments In the provision for impairment of recenvables were as follows

2010 2009
£'000 £'000
At 1 January 10,877 13,645
Charge for the year 10,120 7,367
Utihsed {3,548} (4,310}
Unused amounts reversed (3,748) (6,042)
Foreign cumrency adjustment (701) (583)
At 31 December 13,100 10,977

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade recevables is as follows

Nerther past Past due but not mpared
due nor

Total mpared <30 days 30-60 days 60-90 days 90-120 days >120 days
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £ 000 £'000
2010 467,808 384,107 60,184 14,015 3,071 2,701 2,830
2009 473,336 303,215 55,281 14,719 6,426 1,977 1,718

At 31 December 2010, Trade recevables include recevables sold and financed through factonng transactions of £191 0 million
(2009 £299 2 milllon ) which do not meet IAS 39 cntena for derecognition These recevables continue to be recognised in full in the
Group financial statements even though they are legally subject to the factonng arrangement, a corresponding liability 1s recorded in
the consolidated balance sheet as Factor Financing (see Note 21)

19 Cash and short-term deposits

2010 2009
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 104,269 53,017
Short-term deposits 55,000 55,000

159,269 108,017

Cash at bank and in hand earns interest at floating rates based on dally bank deposit rates  Short-term deposits are made for
varying penads of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam
interest at the respective short-term deposit rates The farr value of cash and cash equivalents i1s £159,269,000 (2009
£108,017.000)

Due to strong cash generation over the past three years, the Group 1S now i a position where it can finance its requirements
from its cash balance As a resuft, the Group has not renewed a number of overdraft and factonng faciities dunng 2010,

and consequently the uncommitted overdraft and factonng faciities avalable to the Group has reduced to £16 5 millon at

31 December 2010 (2009 £100 3 million)

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse the following at 31 December

2010 2009
£'000 £1000
Cash at bank and in hand 104,269 53,017
Short-term deposits 55,000 55,000
Bank overdrafts (note 21) (3,336) (3,063)
155,933 104,954
20 Trade and other payables
2010 2009
£'000 £1000
Trade payables 258,861 229,038
Cther payables 181,929 149,801

440,790 378,929

Tems and condrtions of the above financial labilites
For terms and condihons relating to related parties, refer to note 32
Trade payables are non-interest beanng and are normally settled on net monthly terms

Other payables, which prncipally relate to other taxes, social secunty costs and accruals, are non-interest beanng and have
an average term of three months
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2010

21 Financial liabilities

2010 2009
£:000 £ 000
Current
Bank overdrafts 3,336 3,063
Other loans - ‘CSF’ 2,024 6,315
Other foans — ‘Non-CSF’ - 3,605
Factor financing 16,494 14,846
Current obligations under finance leases ~ ‘CSF’ (note 22a) 16,082 20,718
Current obligations under finance leases — 'Non-CSF’ (note 22a) - 100
37,936 48,647
Non-current
Other loans - ‘CSF’ 1,508 173
Non-current cbligations under finance leases — ‘CSF' (note 22a) 8,812 21,849
10,320 22,022

a) Bank overdrafts
The bank overdrafts are unsecured and are subject to annual review

b) Finance leases
The finance leases are only secured on the assets that they finance These assets are in the main used to satisfy specific customer
contracts There are a small number of assets that are utlised intemally

c¢) Other loans
The other loans are unsecured borrowings to finance equipment sold to customers on specific contracts or for equipment
for own use

Other loans comprise the following

Maturity date Interest rate £'000

31 December 2010
2011 0%—7 84% 1,988
2012 0% 1,504
2013 3 95%—4 60% 34
2014 3 09%—4 25% 4
2015 2 47%-3 34% 2
3,532
less cument instalments due on other loans 2,024
1,508
Maturty date Interest rata £ 000

31 December 2009
2010 0%—6 91% 9,686
2011 7 84% 270
2013 3 95%-4 60% 119
2014 3 09%-4 25% 8
10,093
Less cument instalments due on other loans 9,820
173

The table below summanses the maturity profile of these loans

2010 2000
£'000 £:000
Not later than one year 2,024 9,920
After one year but not more than five years 1,508 173
3,532 10,093

The finance lease and loan facilities are committed
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21 Financial liabilities continued

d) Factor financing
Computacenter UK has access to factor financing arangements

France
Factor finance expired dunng the year and has not been renewed

UK

Factor financing 1s i respect of trade debts factored with recourse which represents a proportion of the debts Under the terms
of the arrangement certan trade debts are sold to the factor who in tum advances cash payments in relation to these debts

A non-utthsation fees 1s payable at 0 25 per cent of the avallable facilty where the amounts drawn down equate to less than

50 per cent of said facility In the event of a default n payment of a debtor the Group 1s obliged to support losses to the extent

of cash advanced aganst that debt In normal circumstances this will be recovered from the cash pool of debts in which they hold
aninterest The Group 1s obliged to repay any advance of cash in excess of the maximum amount available for draw-down as
calculated under the terms of the agreement

e) Facilities

At 31 December 2010, the Group had available £15 5 milion of uncommitted overdraft faciities (2009 £100 3 milkon of
uncommitted overdraft and factonng facities) The Group also had access to a £60 0 milion (2008 £60 0 milion) committed facilrty
of which £43 5 milion (2009 £42 9 million) 1s not utiised as at the balance sheet date This faciity 1s due to expire In May 2011

22 Obligations under leases

a)} Finance lease commitments

The Group has finance leases for vanous tems of plant and machinery, these leases have no terms of renewal or purchase options
and escalation clauses Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net mintmum
lease payments are as follows

2010 2009

Mmimum Present vatue Minmum  Prasent vakse of
payments  of payments payments payments
£'000 £000 £ 000 £000
Within one year 16,843 16,082 22,462 20,818
After one year but not more than five years 9,343 8,812 22,848 21,849
26,186 24,894 45310 42 667

Future finance charges {1,292) (2,643)

Present value of finance lease obligation 24,894 42 667

b) Operating lease commitments where the Group is lessee
The Group has entered into commercial leases an certan properties, motor vehicles and items of small machinery There are
no restnctions placed upon the Group by entenng ntc these leases

Future commitrnents payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows

2010 2009

£1000 £000

Not later than one year 36,377 35,756
After one year but not more than five years 63,231 47,993
More than five years 16,294 14,574
115,902 98,323

¢) Operating lease receivables where the Group is lessor
Dunng the year the Group entered into commercial leases with customers on certain tems of machinery These leases have
remaning terms of between one and five years

Future amounts recevable by the Group under the non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December are as follows

2010 2009

£000 £'000

Not later than one year 17,138 22,948
After one year but not more than five years 7,887 14,704
25,025 37,652

The amounts recevable are directly related to the finance lease obligations detaled in note 21
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2010

23 Provisions

Property

£'000

At 1 January 2010 13,807
Ansing dunng the year 2,132
Utilsed (2,308}
Movement in discount rate {5}
Exchange adjustment (232)
At 31 December 2010 13,393
Current 2010 2,644
Non-current 2010 10,749
13,393

Current 2009 2,202
Non-current 2009 11,605
13,807

Assumptions used to calculate the property provisions are based on the market value of the rental charges plus any contractual
dilapidation expenses on empty properties and the Directors’ best estimates of the ikely trme before the relevant leases can be
reassigned or sublet, which ranges between one and seven years The provisions n relaton to the UK properties are discounted
at a rate based upon the Bank of England base rate Those in respect of the European cperations are discounted at a rate based
on Eunbor

24 Financial instruments

An explanation of the Group's financial nstrument nsk management objectives, policies and strategies are set out in the Finance
Director's Review on pages 18 to 21

Credit risk

The Group principally manages credit nsk through management of customer credit inits The credit imits are set for each
customer based on the creditworthiness of the customer and the anticipated levels of business actvity These Imits are initially
determined when the customer account 1s first set up and are regularly monitored thereafter The balance of trade receivables
refates to customers for whom there 1s no recent history of default In determining the recoverabiity of the trade recevables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade recevables from the date the credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date The maximum exposure on trade recevables, as at the reperting date, i1s ther carrying vafue In France, credit nsk is
mitigated through a credit nsurance policy which applies to non-Government customers and provides insurance for approximately
50 per cent of the relevant credit nsk exposure

With respect to credit nsk ansing from the other financial assets of the Group, which compnise cash and cash equivalents, the
Group’s exposure to credit nsk anses from default of the counterparty, with a mapamum exposure equal to the carrying amount
of cash and cash equvalents

There are no significant concentrations of credit nsk within the Group

Interest rate risk

The Group finances iis operations through a mixture of retained profits, bank borrowings, cash and short-term deposits, invoice
factonng In the UK and finance leases and loans for certain customer contracts The Group's bank borrowings, other faciliies and
deposits are at floating rates No interest rate denvative contracts have been entered inte When long-term borowings are utlised,
the Group’s policy 1s to maintain these borrewings at fixed rates to imit the Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations

Fair values

The canmying value of the Group's short-term recevables and payables is a reasonable approximation of their far values
The farr value of all other financial instruments camed within the Group's financial statements 1s not matenally different from
therr carrying amount
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24 Financial instruments continued

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitvity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other vanables held constant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the mpact on floating rate borrowings) There 1s no impact on the Group's equity

Efiact
Change on profit
n bass before tax
ponts £'000
2010
Sterling +25 236
Euro +25 38
2009
Sterling +25 a7
Euro +25 (52}

The impact of a reasonably possible decrease to the same range shown in the table would result in an opposite impact on the
profit before tax of the same magnitude

Forward currency contracts

At 31 December 2010 the Group held 148 foreign exchange contracts {2009 61) as hedges of an inter-company loan and future
expected payments to suppliers The exchange contracts are being used to reduce the exposure to foreign exchange nsk The

terms of these contracts are detailed below

31 December 2010

Buy Sell Value of Matunty Contract
curmency currency contracts dates rates
UK Euros Stering €1,100,000 Feb 11 11628
Dollars Sterling $12,623,564 Jan—Mar 11 1 5572-16189
Germany Dollars Euros $75,468,000 Jan-Aug 11 12281417
Euros Dollars €5,724,727 Jan-Apr 11 12791319
31 December 2009
Buy Seil Value of Matunty Contract
currency currency contracts dates rates
UK
Euros Sterling €2,830,000 Mar 10 11208
Sterling Dollars $5,632,000 Jarn—Feb 10 1584-1615
Sterling SArand R400,500 Jan 10 119438
Dollars Sterling $2,537,000 Jan-Feb 10 15941 668
SA rand Sterling R801,000 Jan 10 11 958-11 978
Gerrnany
Dollars Euros $39,906,000 Jan-Apr 10 1 435-1 508
Euros Dellars $2,685,000 Jan-Feb 10 1 460-1 487

Exchange rate sensitivity

The majomty of the transactions in each of the Group’s geographical segments are denominated in the functional currency of that
segment There are, however, a Iimited number of transactions where foreign currency exchange nsk exists In these instances
the Group enters into forward cumrency contracts, as shown in the above table, in order to mrigate such nsk At the end of the

year the fair value of the outstanding contracts was an asset of £5662,000 (2009 £726,000)

Cther than differences ansing from the translation of results of operations outside of the Group's functional currency, reasonably
foreseeable movernents in the exchange rates of +10 per cent or -10 per cent would not have a matenal impact on the Group's

profit before tax or equity
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24 Financial instruments continued

Liquidity risk

The table below summanses the matunty profile of the Group’s financial labilities as at 31 December based on contractual
undiscounted payments

On demand <3 months 312 months 1-5years >5 ysars Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £ 000 £000

Year ended 31 December 2010
Financial labilihes 20,498 5157 13,033 10,884 - 49,572
Property provisions - - 2,688 9,348 1,972 14,008
Trade and other payables - 440,790 - - - 440,790
20,498 445,947 15,721 20,232 1,972 504,370
On damand <3 months 3-12 months 1-5years =5 years Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £'000

Year ended 31 December 2009
Financial llabilites 18,608 11,805 37,399 23,027 - 90,639
Property provisions - 312 1,844 9,345 2,847 14,348
Trade and other payables - 378,929 - - - 378,929
18,608 390,846 39,243 32372 2,847 483,916

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Financial nstruments which are recognised at farr value subsequent to initial recognition are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the far value 1s observable The three levels are defined as follows

+ Level 1 far value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilties,

s Level 2 far value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted pnces included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or lability, erther directly (ie as pnices} or indirectly (i e denved from pnces), and

+ Level 3 far value measurements are those dernved from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or ability
that are not based on abservable market data (unobservable inputs)

At 31 December 2010 the Group bad forward currency contracts, which were measured at Level 2 far value subsequent to initial
recogrition, to the value of an asset of £562,000 {31 December 2000 £726,000)

The realised losses from forward currency contracts in the penod to 31 December 2010 of £164,000 (2009 gan of £1,370,000),
are offset by broadly equivalent realised gans on the related undertying transactions

25 Capital management

Computacenter’s approach to capital management is to ensure that the Group has a strong capital base to support the
development of the business and t¢ maintain a strong credit rating, whilst aming to maxamise shareholder value

Consistent with the Group's aim to maximise return to shareholders, the dvidend policy 1s to mantain a dwdend cover of between
2-2 5times In 2010 the cover was 2 5 times, on a pre-exceptional basis (2009 2 5 tmes)

The Group's capital base 1s pnmanly utilsed to finance its fixed assets and working capital requrements The Group intends to
optimise the use of working capital and improve its cash flow As a consequence, the UK exited the Trade Distnbution business
in 2009, and has sourced an increasing proportion of ts product business via distnbutors in order to reduce the working capital
requirements of the business

Capital 1s allocated across the Group in order to minimise the Group's exposure to exchange rates Each country finances its own
operations, typically resulting in borowings in France with cash on deposit in the UK and Germany Dunng 2010, we introduced
a cash pooling arrangement, which group companies can access and allows the Group to pool its funds without physical money
movements

In certain crcumstances, the Group enters into customer contracts that are financed by leases, which are secured only on the
assets that they finance, or loans Whilst the cutstanding amounts of this ‘customer-specific financng’ are included within net
funds for statutory reporting purposes, the Group excludes this ‘customer-spectic financing' when managing the net funds of the
business as this outstanding financing 1s maiched by committed future revenues These financing faciiies, which are committed,
are thus outside of the normal working capital requirements of the Group's product resale and semices activities
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25 Capital management continued
The measures of net funds that the Group monrtors are

2010 2009

£'000 £'000

Net funds excluding customer-specific financing 139,439 86,403
Customer-specrfic loans {3,532) (6,488)
Customer-speciic finance leases {24,894) (42,567)
Net funds 111,013 37,348

The net funds (excluding customer-specific financing) improved in the year from £86 4 million to £139 4 millon by the end of the
year The Group has a history of strong cash generation, however the nse in net funds in 2010 was unusual, gven the increase

In product revenues, due to a number of factors Firstly, following the exit from the CCD business in the UK in late 2009, the UK
increased the mix of s purchasas via distnbuters, resuting in lower stock holdings Secondly, the Group continued to benefit from
the extension of a temporary improvernent in credit terms with a significant vendor, equivalent to £38 milion at 31 December 2010,
an increase of approxmately £8 millon over the course of the year

Each operating country manages working capital i ine with Group policies The key components of working capital, 1 e trade
recenvables, inventory and trade payables, are managed in accordance with an agreed number of days targsted in the budget
process, in order to ensure efficient capital usage

An irnportant element of the process of managing capital efficiently is to ensure that each operating country rewards behaviour at
an Account Manager and Account Director [evel to minimise working caprtal, at a transactional level This is achieved by increasing
commuission payments for early payment by customers and reduced commission payments for late payment by customers, which
encourages appropnate behaviour

The Group regularly reviews the adequacy of its facilihies aganst any foreseeable peak borrowing requirement and, as a result of the
strong cash postion, has allowed certan bank and factonng faciies to expire dunng 2010 At 31 December 2010, the Group had
avalable £15 5 milion of uncommitted overdraft facities (2009 £100 3 milton of uncommitted overdraft and factonng facilities)

The Group also still has access to a £60 0 million (2009 £60 0 milion) three year committed facility established n May 2008, of
which £43 5 millon (2009 £42 9 million) 1s not utiised at the balance sheet date This facility 1s due to expire In May 2011

26 Issued capital and reserves
Authorised share capital

in accordance with the Companies Act 2008, the Company no longer has an authonsed share capital The Company’s Articles
of Association has been amended to reflect this change

A ordinary shares

Issusd and fully paxd No. '000 £'000
At 1 January 2009 153,021 9,181
Crdinary shares issued dunng the year for cash on exercise of share options 78 5
At 31 December 2009 153,099 9,186
Purchase of own ordinary shares for cancellation (115) (")
Ordinary shares issued dunng the year for cash 109 8
Ordinary shares 1ssued dunng the year for cash on exercise of share options 787 46
At 31 December 2010 153,880 9,233

The holders of A ordinary shares are entitled to receve dvidends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at the general meetings of the Cornpany On a winding up of the Company, holders of A ordinary shares may be entitled
to the residual assets of the Company

The Company has a number of share option schemes under which options to subscnbe for the Company's shares have been
granted to certain executives and senior employees (hote 27)

Share premium

The share premium account 1s used to record the aggregate amount or value of premiums paid when the Company's shares
are issued/redeemed at a premium

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve 1S used to mantan the Company's capital following the purchase and cancellation of it own shares
Dunng the year the Company repurchased 115,371 of its own shares for cancellation (2009 nul)
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26 Authorised and issued capital and reserves continued

Own shares held
Own shares held compnse the following

i) Computacenter Employee Share Ownership Plan

Shares in the parent undertalang compnse 5,277,811 (2009 4,998,011) 6 pence ordinary shares of Computacenter plc purchased
by the Computacenter Employee Share Ownership Plan {‘the Plan’) The number of shares held represents 3 4 per cent (2009

3 3 per cent) of the Company’s issued share capital

None of these shares were awarded to executves of the Company under the Computacenter (UK) Limited Cash Bonus and Share
Plan Options previously awarded are to be held on behalf of employees and former empioyees of Computacenter (UK) Limited and
therr dependants, excluding Jersey residents The distnbution of these shares 1s dependant upon the trustee holding them on the
employees’ behalf for a restnctive pened of three years

Since 31 December 2002 the definition of beneficianes under the ESOP Trust has been expanded to include employees who
have been awarded options to acquire ordinary shares of 8 pence each in Computacenter plc under the other employee share
plans of the Computacenter Group, namely the Computacenter Services Group plc Approved Executive Share Option Plan, the
Computacenter Employee Share Option Scheme 1998, the Computacenter Services Group pic Unapproved Executive Share
Option Scheme, the Computacenter Performance Related Share Option Scheme 1998, the Computacenter Sharesave Plus
Scherne and any future similar share ownership schemes

All costs Incurred by the Plan are settled directly by Computacenter (UK) Limited and charged in the accounts as incumred

The Ptan Trustees have waved the dividends recevable in respect of 5,277,811 (2009 4,998,011} shares that it owns which
are all unallocated shares

i} Computacenter Qualfying Employee Share Trust (‘the QUEST)

The total shares held are 115,530 (2009 730,565), which represents C 1 per cent (2008 0 5 per cent) of the Company's 1ssued
share capital All of these shares will continue to be held by the Quest until such tirme as the Sharesave options granted aganst
themn are exercised The market value of these shares at 31 December 2010 was £448,256 (2009 £1,829,000) The Quest
Trustees have waved dvidends in respect of all of these shares Dunng the year the Quest subscnbed for 407,023 (2009 ni)

6 pence ordinary shares

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve I1s used to record exchange differences ansing from the translation of the financial
staterments of foreign subsidianes

80 Computacenter plc Annual Report and Accounts 2010




27 Share-based payments

Executive share option scheme

Duning the year, options were exercised with respect to 267,000 {2009 115,000) 6 pence ordinary shares at a nominal value
of £16,020 (2009 £6,900) at an aggregate premium of £674,880 (2009 £283,075)

Under the Computacenter Employee Share Option Scheme 1998 and the Computacenter Services Group Executive Share
Scheme, options in respect of 285,000 (2009 1,385,383) shares lapsed

The numbers of shares under cptions outstanding at the year-end compnse

2010 2000

Number Number

Date of grant Exerasable between Exerose pnce outstanding oulstanding
27/09/2000 27/09/2003-26/09/2010 380 00p - 169,000
19/09/2001 19/09/2005-18/09/2011 24500p - 50,000
19/09/2001 19/09/2006-18/09/2011 24500p - 50,000
10/04/2002 10/04/2005-09/04/2012 32200p 168,816 203,816
10/04/2002 10/04/2005-09/04/2012 331 00p 35,000 45,000
21/03/2003 21/03/2006-20/03/2013 266 50p 42,500 62,500
02/04/2004 02/04/2007—01/04/2014 424 00p 39,000 45,000
24/10/2008 24/10/2009-23/10/2016 25000p 1,462,800 1,674,800
17/04/2007 17/04/2010-16/04/2017 285 00p 225,200 225,200

1,973,316 2,525,316

Please refer to the information given in the Directors’ interest In share incentive schemes table in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on page 39 for details of the vesting conditions attached to the Executive share options

The following table illustrates the number {No '} and weighted average exercise pnces (' WAEP') of share options for the Executive
Share Option Scheme

2010 2010 2009 2009
No. WAEP No WAEP

Executve share option scheme
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year' 2,525,316 2,72 4,025,699 £2 93
Granted dunng the year - - - -
Forferted dunng the year {285,000) 3.34 (1,385,383) £3 34
Exercised dunng the year? {267,000) 2.59 (115,000} £2 62
Quistanding at the end of the year 1,973,316 265 2525316 g272
Exercisable at the end of the year 1,973,316 2,85 2,300,116 £2 71

The weighted average remaining contractual Ife for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 201015 5 27 years
(2009 5 70 years)

Notes

' Included within thes batance are opbons over 203,816 (2009 517,816) shares that have not been accounted for under IFRS 2 as the options were granted on
or befors 7 Novermber 2002 Thess ophons have not been subsaquently modified and therefore do not need to be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2

2 The weghted average share pnce at the date of exercsse for the options exercised s £3 32 (2009 £3 20}

Computacenter Performance Related Share Option Scheme

Under the Computacenter Performance Related Share Option scheme, options granted will be subject to certain performance
conditions as descnbed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Dunng the year no options lapsed (2009 206,367) No options were granted dunng the course of the year
At 31 December 2010 the number of shares under outstanding options was as follows

2010 2009

Number Number

Date of grant Exerasable between  Exercise pace outstanding outstanding
10/04/2002 10/04/2005-09/04/2012 322 00p 189,440 189,440
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27 Share-based payments continued

The following table ilustrates the number {No '} and weighted average exercise prices (‘WAEP') of share options for the
Performance Related Share Option Scheme

2010 2010 2009 2009
No. WAEP No WAEP
Computacenter performance related share option scheme
Outstanding at the begnning of the year’ 189,440 3.22 385,807 £375
Forfeited durng the year - - (206,367) £4 24
Cutstanding at the end of the year 189,440 3.22 189,440 £322
Exercisable at the end of the year 189,440 3.22 189,440 £3 22
Notes

v Inchudad within ths bakance are options over 189,440 (2009 189,440) shares that have not been accounted for under IFRS 2 as the options were granted on
or before 7 Novermnber 2002 These optons have not been subsaquently modified and therefore do not need o be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2

The weighted average remaining contractual Iife for the share options outstanding as at 31 December 201015 1 3 years
(2009 2 3 years)

Computacenter LTIP Performance Share Plan

Under the Computacenter LTIP Performance Share Plan, shares granted will be subject to certain performance condtions
as descnbed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

Dunng the year 1,195,677 (2009 3,029,337) shares were awarded, 850,791 (2009 1,216,601) were exercised and 149,747
(2009 383,260) lapsed

At 31 December 2010 the number of shares outstanding was as follows

2010 2008

Share pnce at Number Number

Date of grant Maturity date date of grant outstanding outstanding
17/04/2007 01/04/2000 28225p - 35,526
17/04/2007 01/04/2010 282 25p - 739,529
17/03/2008 17/03/2010 180 00p - 180,347
17/03/2008 01/04/2011 18000p 1,161,872 1,117,942
13/03/2009 13/03/2012 12650p 1,282,117 1,323,685
13/03/2009 13/03/2011 126 50p 129,952 156,944
20/03/2009 20/03/2012 12300p 1,500,000 1,500,000
15/03/2010 15/03/2013 3158p 1,175,171 —

5,249,112 5053973

The weighted average share pnce at the date of exercise for the options exercised 1s £3 12 (2000 £1 28)
The weighted average remamning contractual ife for the options outstanding as at 31 December 2010 1s 1 9 years (2009 2 4 years)

Computacenter Sharesave Scheme

The Company operates a Sharesave Scherme which is avalable to all employees and full tme Executive Directors of the Company
and iis subsidianes who have worked for a qualfying penod All options granted under this scheme are satisfied at exercise by way
of a transfer of shares from the Computacenter Qualifying Employee Share Trust Dunng the year 1,487,532 (2009 585,766)
options were granted with a far value of £2,286,768 (2009 £543,319)
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27 Share-based payments contnued

Under the scheme the following options have been granted and are outstanding at the year-end

2010 2009
Number Nurmber
Date of grart Exercisable between Share pnce outstanding outstanding
October-2004 01/12/2008-31/05/2010 33500p - 64,421
QOctober-2005 01/12/2010-31/05/2011 222 00p 10,731 81,894
October-2006 01/12/2009-31/05/2010 254 00p - 131,409
October-2006 0/12/2011-31/05/2012 254 00p 61,565 65,818
October-2007 01/12/2010-31/05/2011 178 00p 155,840 1,101,273
October-2007 01/12/2012-31/05/2013 178 00p 529,609 570,565
Qctober-2009 01/12/2012-31/05/2013 320 00p 368,291 407,336
October-2009 01/12/2014-31/05/2015 320 00p 146,629 173,248
October-2010 01/12/2013-31/05/2014 286 00p 592,900 -
October-2010 01/12/2015-31/05/2016 258 COp 893,243 -
2,758,808 2595964

The following table illustrates the No and WAEP of share options for the Sharesave scheme
2010 2010 2000 2009
No. WAEP No WAEP

Sharesave scheme

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 2,595,964 2.21 3,043,897 £213
Granted dunng the year 1,487,532 2.69 585,766 £320
Forfeted during the year (305,699) 2.63 (970,622) £2 36
Exercised dunng the year’ (1,018,989) 1.85 83,077) £2 31
QOutstanding at the end of the year 2,758,808 255 2,585,964 £221
Exercisable at the end of the year 166,571 1.81 195,830 £2 81

MNotes

' The weghted average share pnce at the date of exarcise for the options exercised 1s £3 63 (2009 £2 68)

The weighted average remaining contractud Iife for the options outstanding as at 31 December 2010 1s 3 5 years (2009 2 3 years})

The fair value of the Executive Share Ophtion Scheme, the Performance Related Share Cption Scheme, the LTIP Performance
Share Plan and Sharesave Scheme plans are estimated as at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation model The
following tables give the assumptions made dunng the year ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009

2010
LTP LTP
pesformance performance SAYE SAYE
Nature of the amangement share plan share plan scheme scheme
Date of grant 15/03/10 15/03/10 29/10/10 29/10/10
Number of instruments granted 1,075,637 120,040 593,109 864,423
Exercise pnce £nil £l £2 86 £2 58
Share pnce at date of grant £316 £316 £3 66 £3 66
Contractua! Ife (years) 3 2 3 5
Seenote 8 Seenote 9
onpage38n  onpage38n Three-year Five-year
the Directors’ the Drectors’ service panod service penod
remunesation remuneration and savngs and sawngs
Vesting conditions report report requirament requirement
Expected volatility n‘a n/a 56 0% 49 10%
Expected option fe at grant date (years) 3 2 3 5
Risk-free interest rate n/a n/a 1 88% 1 88%
Dwvidend yield 348% 348% 3% 301%
Fair value per granted instrument determined at grant date £2 83 £283 £147 £158
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27 Share-based payments continued

2009
LTIP LTiP LTP
performance performance performance SAYE SAYE
Naturg of the arrangement share plan sharo plan shara plan scheme scheme
Date of grant 20/03/09 13/03/0¢ 13/03/09 29/10/09 29/10/09
Number of instruments granted 1,500,000 156,944 1,372,393 409,604 176,162
Exercise pnce £nil £nil £nil £3 20 £320
Share pnce at date of grant £123 £127 £1 27 £2 94 294
Contractual Iife (years) 3 3 3 3 5
See nots 10 Seencte Seanote 9
on page 38 n on page 38 I on page 38 In Three-year Five-year
the Duectors' the Duectors' the Dvectors’ sarice penod service penod
remuneraion remuneraton remumeration and sawngs and savings
Vesting conditions report report report requIrament reguirement
Expected volatity n‘a n/a n/a 53 B0% 48 90%
Expected option life at grant date (years) 3 3 3 3 5
Risk-free nterest rate n/a rva r/a 280% 280%
Dvidend yield 667% 6 48% 6 48% 27%% 279%
Farr value per granted instrument determined at grant date £099 £1 10 £102 £0 80 £100

The expected Iife of the options 1s based on historical data and 1s not necessanly indicative of exercise pattems that may occur

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the recent histoncal volatility 18 indicative of future trends, which may also not

necessanly be the actual cutcome

No other features of the opticns granted were incorporated nto the measurement of far value

28 Analysis of changes in net funds

At

At

1 January Cash flows Non-cash Exchange 31 December

2010 n year flow differences 2010

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cash and short-term deposits 108,017 52,452 - {1,200} 159,269
Bank overdraft (3,083) (383) - 110 {3,336)
Cash and cash equivalents 104,954 52,069 - {1,020) 155,933
Other loans and leases non-CSF (3,705) 3,705 - — -
Factoer financing {14,846) (1,568) - (80) (16,494)
Net funds excluding customer-specific financing 86,403 54,206 - (1,170) 139,439
Customer-specific finance leases (42,567) 20,641 (3,468) 500 (24,894)
Customer-specific other loans (6,488) 2,960 - (4 (3,532)
Total customer-specific financing (49,055) 23,601 {3,468) 496 (28,426)
Net funds 37,348 77,807 {3,468) 674) 111,013
AL At

1 January Cash flows Non-cash Exchange 31 December

2009 n year flow differences 2009

£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000

Cash and short-term deposits 53,372 55,698 - (1,052) 108,017
Bank overdraft (6,483) 2,901 - 519 (3,063)
Cash and cash equwvalents 45,889 58,598 - (533) 104,954
Other loans and leases non-CSF - (3,705) - - (3,705)
Factor financing (42,280) 25,600 - 1,834 (14,846)
Net funds excluding customer-specific financing 4,609 80,493 - 1,301 86,403
Customer-specriic finance leases (55,191) 21,056 {10,163 1,731 (42,567)
Customer-specific other loans (34,009) 27,496 - 25 (6,488)
Total customer-specific financing (89,200) 48,552 (10,163) 1,756 (49,055)
Net (debt)/funds (84,591) 129,045 (10,163) 3,057 37,348
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29 Adjusted management cash flow statement

The adjusted managernent cash flow has been provided to explain how management view the cash performance of the business
There are two pnmary differences to this presentation compared to the statutory cash flow statement, as follows

1} Factor financing 1s not Included within the statutory definition of cash and cash equivalents, but operationally 1s managed
within the total net funds/borrowings of the businesses, and

2) Iltems relating to customer-specific financing are adjusted for as follows

a Interest paid on customer-specific financing i1s reclassified from interest paid to adjusted operating profit, and

b Where customer-specific assets are financed by finance leases and the habilities are matched by future amounts recevable
under customer operating lease rentals, the deprectation of leased assets and the repayment of the capital element of
finance leases are offset within net working capital, and

¢ Where assets are financed by loans and the liabiities are matched by amounts recenvable under customer operating lease
rentals, the movement on loans within financing actvities s offset within working capital

Overviow

2010 2009
£000 £'000
Adjusted profit before taxation 66,053 54,225
Net finance mcome {1,626) (302)
Depreciation and amortisation 19,506 17,695
Share-based payment 2,620 2,555
Working capital movements 21,358 65,337
Other adustments 293 (1,567)
Adjusted operating cash inflow 108,204 137,943
Net interest receved 1,204 1,149 E
income taxes paid (11,281) (17,500) S
Capital expenditure and disposals (25,258) (21,294) g
Acquisitions and disposals - {6,775) g
Equity dvidends paid {16,984) (12,514) f=
Cash inflow before financing 55,885 81,009 g
Financing o
Proceeds from issue of shares 822 44
Purchase of own shares (2,501) (560)
Increase in net funds excluding CSF in the period 54,206 80,493
Increase in net funds excluding CSF 54,206 80,493
Effect of exchange rates on net funds excluding CSF {1,170} 1,301
Net funds excluding CSF at beginning of penod 86,403 4,609
Net funds excluding CSF at end of period 139,439 86,403
30 Capital commitments &
At 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 the Group held no significant commitments for capital expenditure é
31 Pensions and other post-employment benefit plans g
The Group has a defined contnbution pension plan, covenng substantially all of its employees in the UK The amount recogrised (E
as an expense for this plan is detalled in note 6
i
a
3
&
v
=
&
€
I
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 Decemnber 2010

32 Related party transactions

Dunng the year the Group entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with related parties Transactons entered
into are as described below

Biomni provides the Computacenter e-procurement system used by many of Computacenter’s maior customers An annual
fee has been agreed on a commercial basis for use of the software for each installation Both PJ Ogden and PW Hulme are
birecters of and have a matenal interest in Biomni Limited

The table below prowvides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant
financial year

Saesto Purchases Amounts Amounts
related from related owed by owed to
parbes parties related partes related parties

£:000 £'000 £'000 £000
Biomni Limited 12 31 2 -

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that preval in anm’s length transactions
Qutstanding batances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash There have been no guarantees provided
or recenved for any related party recewvables The Group has not recognised any prowision for doubtful debts relating to amounts
owed by related partes This assessment 1S undertaken each financial year through exarmining the financial position of the related
party and the market in which the related party operates

Compensation of key management personnel (including Directors)

The Board of Directors is identified as the Group’s key management personnel Please refer to the information given in the
Directors’ remuneration table in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 39 for detads of compensation given to the Group’s
key management persennel A summary of the compensation of key management personnel 1s provided below

2010 2009

£000 £000
Short-tenm employee benefits 1,734 1,725
Social secunty costs 353 235
Share based payment transactions 974 851
Pension costs 12 11
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 3,073 2,922

The interest of the key management personnel In the Group’s share incentive schemes are disclosed in the Directors’ remuneration
report on page 39

33. Events after the reporting period

On 15 February 2011, the Group announced its agreement to acquire TOP Info SAS and its subsichanes {'Top Info’), an mformation
technology reseller of hardware, software and services based in Pans, France The acquisition 1 still subject to competition
clearance in France, with the closing date not expected before the end of March 2011 The expected consideration totals

€21 miltlon payable on the clesing date with an additional €1 milion dependant upon the performance of Top Info In the penod to
31 December 2011 The management and exercise of control over Top Info will not pass to Computacenter until the closing date
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and farr view of the
state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod In prepanng those financial statements,
the Directors are required to

select suttable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explaned
in the financial statements, and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the gong concem basis unless it is Inappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue N business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply wath the Companies Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and cther regularties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial infformation included on the
company’s web site Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other junsdictions
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Independent auditor’s report to the
members of Computacenter plc

We have audited the Parent Company financial statements of Computacenter plc for the year ended 31 December 2010 wiich
compnse the Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 to 12 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audt work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 87, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the Parent Company financral staterments and for being satisfied that they give a true and farr view  Our responsibility
15 to audit and express an opinion on the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us ta comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audt involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This ncludes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Parent Company's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors,
and the overall presentation of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the Parent Company financial statements

s Give a true and far view of the state of the Company’s affarrs as at 31 December 2010,

» Have been property prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
+ Have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinicn

+ The part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2008, and

« The information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 18 consistent
with the Parent Company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report In respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requres us to report to you ff, in our

opinion

¢ Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recenved from branches not visited by us, or

« The Parent Company financial staterments and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and retums, or

e Certain disclosures of Directors' remmuneration specified by law are not made, or

«  We have not receved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Other matter
We have reported separately on the Group financial statements of Computacenter plc for the year ended 31 December 2010

£;V\sl- g %\7 o p

Nick Powell (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London
9 March 2011
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
Note £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 2 110,221 118,721
Tangible assets 3 25,331 26,847
Investments 4 161,943 158,323
297,495 304,991
Current assets
Debtors 5 90,126 90,126
Cash at bank and in hand 791 17
90,917 90,143
Creditors: amounts faling due within one year 8 113,569 146,364
Net current liabilities (22,652) (56,221)
Total assets less current liabilities 274,843 248,770
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 26,704 35,704
Provisions for liabilities and charges 246 438
Total assets less liabilities 247,893 212,630
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital g 9,233 9,186
Share premium account 9 3,697 2,929
Caprttal redemption reserve 9 74,957 74,950
Merger reserve 9 55,990 55,880
Own shares held 9 (8,185} (7,696)
Profit and loss account 9 112,201 77,271
Equity shareholders' funds 247,893 212,630

Approved by the Bogrd on 9 March 2011

MJ Nofris FA Conophy

Chief Executive Finance Director

oy Gl
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Notes to the Company financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of Computacenter pic were approved for ssue In accordance with a resolution of the Directors
on 9 March 2011 The balance sheet was signed on behalf of the Board by MJ Noms and FA Conophy

The financial statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accordance with the applicable UK
Accounting Standards

No profit and loss account i1s presented for the Company as permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The profit
after tax for the Company was £51,306,000 (2009 £826,000) There are no other recognsed gans or losses other than the
profit for the year

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in paragraph 20(b) of FRS 29 Financial Instruments  Disclosure and has
not disclosed information required by that standard, as the Group's consolidated financial statements, in which the Company
15 Included, provide equivalent disclosures for the Group under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments  Disclosures

Intellectual property
Licences purchased in respect of intellectual property are caprtalised, classified as an intangible asset on the balance sheet
and amortised on a straight-ine basis over the penod of the licencOe, normally 20 years

Depreciation of fixed assets
Freehald land 1s not depreciated Depreciation 1s provided on all other tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to wnte off the cost,
less estimated residual value, of each asset evenly over s expected useful ife, as follows

Freehold buildings 25 years

Investments
Fixed asset Investments are shown at cost less provision for Impairment In addrtion, subsequent to the adoption of UITF Abstract
41, investments in subsidianes also include the FRS 20 cost of share-based payments

Impairment of assets
The carmying values of assets are reviewed for imparment when events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the canyng value
may not be recoverable

Foreign currencies

Transactions In foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habilties
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange rulng at the balance sheet date All dfferences are
taken to the profit and loss account

Share-based payment transactions

The expense for share-based payments 1s recogrised in the subsidiary companies employing the relevant employses The
Company records a corresponding Increase in its investments In subsicianes with a credit to equity which is equivalent to the
FRS 20 cost In the subsidiary undertakings

Taxation

Corporation tax payable 1s provided on taxable profits at the current tax rate Where Group relief 1s surrendered from other
subsidianes in the Group, the Company 1s required to pay to the surrendenng company an amount equal to the loss surrendered
multiphed by the current tax rate

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all tming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result In an cbligation to pay more, or a nght to pay less, tax in the future have occurred at the balance
sheet date

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in penods in which timing
differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
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2 Intangible assets

Intebectual
property
£'000
Cost
At 1 January 2010 and 31 December 201G 169,737
Amortisation
At 1 January 2010 51,016
Charge in the year 8,500
At 31 December 2010 59,516
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 110,221
At 31 December 2009 118,721
3 Tangible assets
Freehold land
and buildings
£'000
Cost
At 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 42,350
Depreciation
At 1 January 2010 15,403
Charge in the year 1,616
At 31 December 2010 17,019
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 25,331
At 31 December 2009 26,947
4 Investments
Investiments Loans to
in subsidary subsdiary
undertakings undertakings Irvestment Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2010 228,487 2,754 25 231,266
Share-based payments 2,620 - - 2,620
At 31 December 2010 231,107 2,754 25 233,886
Amounts provided
At 1 January 2010 and 31 Decemnber 2010 69,164 2,754 25 71,943
Net book value
At 31 December 2010 161,943 - - 161,943
At 31 December 2009 158,323 - - 159,323

Details of the prncipal investments at 31 December in which the Company holds more than 20 per cent of the nominal value
of ordinary share caprtal are given in the Group accounts innote 156
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 December 2010

5 Debtors
2010 2009
£'000 £'000
Amount owed by subsidiary undertaking 90,000 90,000
Cther debtors 126 126
90,126 90,126
6 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2010 2009
£000 £000
Arnount owed to subsidiary undertaking 112,446 145,853
Accruals 568 137
Corporation tax 555 374
113,569 146,364
7 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2010 2009
£'000 £000
Deferred ncome 26,704 35,704
8 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred
taxaton
£000
At 1 January 2010 436
Capital aliowances in advance of depreciation (190}
At 31 December 2010 246
The deferred tax balance all relates to capital allowances in advance of depreciation
9 Reconciliation of shareholders’ funds and movements on reserves
Caputal Cwn Profit Total
Share Share redemption shares Merger and loss shareholders’
caprtal premium reserve held reserve aceount funds
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2009 9,181 2,890 74,950 (9,208) 55,990 88,476 222,279
Shares issued 5 39 - - - - 44
Exercise of options - - - 2,072 - {2,072) —
Total recognised gains
and losses In the year - - - - - 826 826
Purchase of own shares - - - {(560) - - {580}
Share options granted to
employees of subsidiary
companes - - - - - 2,555 2,565
Equity dvidends - - - - - {12,514} {12,514)
At 31 December 2009 9,186 2,929 74,950 (7,696) 55,990 77,271 212,630
Shares 1ssued 8 504 - - - — 512
Exercise of options 46 264 - 1,563 - {1,563} 310
Total recognised gans
and losses In the year - - - - - 51,306 51,306
Purchase of own shares - - - (2,501} - — (2,501)
Cancellation of own shares (N - 7 449 - (449) -
Share options granted to
employses of subsidiary
companies - - - - — 2,620 2,620
Equity dvidends - - - - - (16,984) (16,984)
At 31 December 2010 9,233 3,697 74,957 (8,185) 55,980 112,201 247,893
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10 Contingent liabilities

The Company has given a guarantee in the normal course of business to a suppler of a subsidiary undertaking for an amount
not exceeding £8,000,929 (2009 £6,715,000}, and to a customer of a subsidiary undertaking for an amount not exceeding
£5,998,800 (2009 £13,333,00)

The Company has provided cross guarantees in respect of certain bank loans and overdrafis of its subsidiary undertakangs
The amount outstanding at 31 December s £3,336,000 (2009 £3,0683,000)

11 Related party transactions

The Company has taken the exemption in FRS 8 not to disclose transactions with other wholly owned Group Companies
The Company has not traded with any of the related parties disclosed in note 32 of the Group accounts

12 Auditors' remuneration

All auditors’ remuneration 1s bome by Computacenter (LK) Ltd, a fully-cwned UK subsidiary of the Company
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Group five-year financial review

Year ended 31 December

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

£m om £m £m £m

Revenue 2,2609 2,3791 2,560 1 25032 2,676.5
Adjusted” operating profit 333 417 42 1 539 64.4
Adusted” profit before tax 380 427 431 54 2 66.1
Profit for the year 189 289 373 377 50.3
Adusted” difluted eamings per share 138p 18 5p 210p 27 Tp 33.0p
Net cash/(debt) excluding CSF 294 (16 2) 46 864 139.4
Year-end headcount 2,328 9,877 10,220 10,296 10,566

*  Before amortmsation of acqured ntangibles and exceptional tems  Adpusted operating profit s stated after charging finance costs on customer-specific financing
In 2008 and 2008 adjusted diuted EPS also excludes the effects of exceptonal tems withen the tax charge for the year

Group summary balance sheet

Year ended 31 December

2006 2007 2008 2008 2010
£m Em £m £m £m
Tangble assets 849 1164 1233 1053 88.9
Intangible assets 99 452 516 730 78.5
Deferred tax asset 62 82 167 164 15.5
Inventones 94 6 1105 1058 671 81.6
Trade and other recenables 427 3 454 2 5295 4756 471.1
Prepayments and accrued income 504 614 97 7 853 84.2
Forward currency contracts 01 04 {08 07 0.6
Cash 779 292 534 1080 159.3
Current habilities {459 8) (496 1) (602 6) (557 5) (588.2)
Non-current iabilites (26 4} (50 4) (53 B) (35 5) (22.0)
Net assets 2652 2781 321 14 3386 369.6
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Financial calendar

Titde Date

Dridenrd record date 13 May 2011

AGM 13 May 2011
Dmdend payment date 10 June 2011
Intenm results announcement 30 August 2011
Dvidend record date 16 September 2011
Dwvdend payment date 14 Cctober 2011
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